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I. Report to Shareholders 
 Thank you for the support of all shareholders and the efforts of all employees. Thanks to the persistence and 

professional management efforts, TSH Biopharm is committed to business of treating chronic diseases. We hereby 

present the 2021 business results, 2022 business plan summary, future company development strategies and overall 

operating environment impact. The report of all shareholders is as follows:

The Company’s Business Result for year 2021

(1) Business Plan Implementation Result 

The Company’s net operating revenue in 2021 is NT$ 413,483,000 with a decrease of NT$34,379,000 (7.68%) 
from NT$ 447,862,000 of 2020.  The net profit after tax in 2020 is NT$ 47,108,000 (23.49 %) with a decrease of 
NT$ 14,462,000 from NT$ 61,570,000 of 2020. The revenue mainly comes from cardiovascular diseases, 
gastrointestinal diseases and precision medical related testing products. The reduction is caused by the impact of 
epidemic in 2021, the reduction of outpatient visits in various medical institutions and the closure of some health 
examination centers, resulting in a decline in product sales, plus the delay of the R&D milestone due to the 
impact of the epidemic, so that the service revenue was not up to expectations. 

(2) Budget Implementation 

The Company’s net operating revenue in 2021 is NT$ 413,483,000, achieving 81% of the annual budget target. 

(3) Financial Income & Expenditure and Profitability Analysis 

Item                                                          Year 2021 

Financial Income & 
Expenditure 

Interest Income (in thousand dollars)  2,099 

Interest Expense (in thousand dollars)  80 

Profitability Analysis

Return on Asset (%)  3.93 

Return on Shareholder’s Equity (%)  4.35 

Net Profit Margin (%)  11.39 

Diluted Earnings Per Share (in 
dollars)  

1.23 

(4) Research & Development 

The achievements on the introduction and development of new products in 2021 are summarized below  
� March 2021: 

Cancer and non-cancer detection products for the Taiwan market was licensed by a NASDAQ listed 
company. 

� November 2021: 
Preliminary clinical trial of ABTA19, a new high-tech compound drug for cardiovascular disorders, was 
started. 

� December 2021: 
The new compound drug R19 for lowering blood lipids in Taiwan was launched.   

� December 2021: 
Alprosm Lyophilized Powder for Injection for the palliative treatment of peripheral arterial diseases was 
launched in Taiwan.  

 There are still a number of new products in the evaluation stage, which are expected to be introduced or solely 

developed. Our developing medicines are mainly based on Taiwanese new drugs, including new ingredients and new 

drugs and 505B2 (such as biosimilar drugs, new compounds, and new dosage forms) and completed by self or joint 

development, and it is estimated that at least 3 new drugs will be launched in Taiwan in the coming five years.  By the 

end of 2021, TSH has obtained three drug certificates including Rancad® Extended Release Tablet, R19 the new 

compound drug Cretol Tablet for lowering blood lipids, and Alprosm Lyophilized Powder for Injection and will 

continue to develop new products on the market. Meanwhile, the products developed and sold in Southeast Asia are 
expected to be launched in 8 countries within five years and jointly sold with strategic partners in China, the United 

States, Japan, and Europe. 
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Summary of Business Plan 2022  

(1) Business Operating Strategy 

In 2019, a five-year “dual transformation period” was set in the operating strategy to “actively explore Asian 
markets and deeply plough in Taiwan market”.  In 2020, we have launched the new drug Rancad®, and actively 
seek for the health insurance payment for Rancad® to benefit angina patients in Taiwan.  In the second half of 
year 2021, TSH obtained the drug permit of launching the new compound drug, Cretol Tablet for lowering blood 
lipids in Taiwan, and won the patent lawsuit with Merck Sharp & Dohme Corporation.  In the same month, TSH 
also obtained the drug license for Alprosm Lyophilized Powder for Injection, which will add a new source of 
business performance to the existing product portfolio. 

In the past two years, we have also invested in the evaluation and development of several new projects, and a 
total of six drug development projects are currently underway. More than half of the projects are self-developed 
products with global sales rights (marketing rights from Taiwan to China, the United States, Japan and Europe, 
etc.).  In the future, we will also actively cooperate with overseas companies for licensing opportunities in 
addition to the evaluation of R&D projects that are in line with the Company's development, not only building up 
and optimizing the R&D portfolio (Pipeline), but also increasing the opportunities and income of licensing. 

In addition to the original genetic testing products at the time of establishment, the patient care team has also 
joined the research of the endometrial cancer MPaP® DNA test developed in Taiwan and has obtained the 
product agency from Nasdaq listed companies of Korea and Germany.  In addition to the testing products, 
various types of medical materials are evaluated extensively, hoping to improve the life quality of chronic 
patients. 

Continuing from 2021, it is also expected that new products will be launched in 2022 to provide more treatment 
options to patients in Taiwan, while providing a driving force to improve the entire operation and talent 
cultivation of TSH.  TSH is moving towards the five-year goal, in hope of creating better welfare and 
environment of work for everyone.  

(2) Expected Sales Volume and its Basis 

The Company expects to sell 162,120,000 oral preparations and 88,000 injection preparations in 2022.  The 
expected sales volume is based on the statistical report of IMS and set by taking the competition and the change 
of supply and demand of the future market into account. 

(3) Important Production and Marketing Policies: 

1. Business Planning 
� The Company will accelerate the growth of performance in the export of self-made products and oversea 

licenses of early-stage developed products.  In addition to maintaining the progress of the international 
certification of original existing developed products, the corporation will also introduce joint developments 
and add values to international early-stage new drugs and use the “Double Engine” strategy to devote on the 
international drug development and sales & marketing. 

� New Business Model of Biotechnological Industry: The Company will introduce testing items 
accompanied with precision medicine.  With the rise of precision medicine, testing has become a part of 
treatment or preventive medicine, and AI becomes more popular and easy-to-access, and TSH Biopharm 
will continue to launch related testing products to satisfy more clinical requirements. 

2. Production Strategy 
To continue the corporation's strategy in the past, the part of drug production is still mainly based on 
commissioned production. At present, all products are commissioned and produced by PIC/S GMP 
certified manufacturing factories.  In addition, the temperature control of storage and transportation is an 
important factor for maintaining the quality of medicines in the entire distribution chain. Therefore, the 
Company cooperates with the government to implement the Good Distribution Practice (GDP) for western 
medicines, and includes active pharmaceutical ingredients (APIs) into the scope of the Company’s GDP.  
The testing business also adopts the same strategy and international-level certified laboratories while 
paying close attention to the implementation priorities and impact of the “Amendment of the 
Implementation of Specific Medical Technology Inspection and Medical Instruments Inspection or the 
Amendment to the Management of Use” and its impact.  In 2020, the Company will cooperate with Korean 
testing companies and provide internationally certified testing products to target groups and physicians 
with the best tools for cancer risk and cancer treatment, with the assistance and cooperation provided by 
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German testing companies in 2021. 

3. Marketing and R&D Strategy 
Double Engines Moving Forward in Three Rails to Provide Better Health Services 
Under the influence of Covid-19 in 2020, many human behavioral patterns undergo huge changes that have 
not been eased, and the ten-year old TSH Biopharm also starts to change with the environment.  We 
continue to focus on “Patient-centered” as our starting point and move forward by “double engines moving 
forward in three rails” and use “traditional pharmaceuticals” and “innovative medical treatments” as the 
mainstreams to create a medical product portfolio to satisfy patients with unmet medical needs and develop 
new ingredients, special formulations, chronic disease treatments, genetic testing, cancer testing, and joint 
development of innovative therapy, and become an international innovative biotech manufacturer and the 
best new drug development and marketing partner in Asia, and the Company is committed to provide better 
health services to all people before, during and after medical treatment. 

The Company’s Development Strategy

Corporate Vision: Committed to improve the quality of life of patients with unmet medical needs. 

Corporate Missions:

Focus: Aim at the patients, and strive to improve their life quality and unmet medical needs

Innovation: Create a portfolio of medical products, and work on the joint development of new ingredients, 
special dosage forms, chronic disease treatment, multiple genetic testing technologies, cancer 
detection, post-cancer tumor tracking, innovative therapies, etc.

Excellence: Become the best partner with international innovative biopharmaceutical companies for the 
development and marketing of new drugs in Asia

Impact from the External Competitive Environment, the Legal Environment, and the Overall Economic 
Environment

Challenge 1: The impact of COVID-19 on the pharmaceutical industry. 
� In 2020, COVID-19 has a huge impact on the whole world.  There were problems of the supply 

chain (including active pharmaceutical ingredient (API) and manufacturing capacity) observed 
in the pharmaceutical industry in early 2020, and the R&D also had impacts.  A large proportion 
of clinical trials currently in progress or going to be started have delayed the schedule of patient 
recruitment due to the COVID-19 epidemic, directly causing a delay of the product 
development schedule.  The clinical trials conducted by TSH in 2021 were also subject to delays 
of about 3~6 months, and appropriate adjustments and risk assessments will also be made for 
product development and licensing plans in the future.

Challenge 2:  The global pharmaceutical industry is transforming rapidly. 
� In the continuation of increases of global medical expenses, costs, political and economic 

changes and other factors in recent years, the rise of big data and precision medicine will lead to 
a rapid change of the business model of pharmaceutical companies. Therefore, TSH Biopharm 
conducts the double engines to move forward in dual rails in order to maintain the existing R&D 
power to launch a new drug on the market every year, and actively invest in innovation in line 
with the international trend. 

Challenge 3: The trend of international investments and merges 
� More and more startup companies are willing to invest in early-stage developments, and large 

pharmaceutical companies can participate in these startup companies through direct 
investments or licensing and allow the startup companies to develop new drugs in a more 
precise way, lowers risks, and improves the success rate. TSH Biopharm has also started 
diversified investments since 2019 or the goal of entering into the field of new products with the 
concept of strategic alliance.  Several new evaluation cases have been added in 2021, and it is 
expected that progress can be made by 2022. 
  

In the highly competitive environment, we will focus more on risk control, enhance specific regional channels, 
and cooperate with partners to expand our originally existing therapeutic areas. 

Chairperson: Chuan Lin;  General Manager: Sze-Yuan Yang;  Chief Accountant: Jhen-Ru Gan 

-3-



II. Company Profile 
1. Established on September 1, 2010. 

Company History:

Sep 2003 
Established TTY Therapeutics & Health (TTH) Division by parent company, and its product 
lines covered CV, GI, and CNS.

2004~2005 Committed to the fields of CV, GI, and CNS. 

Apr 2006 Launched “Mopride” for treatment of functional dyspepsia.

Mar 2007 Launched compound blood pressure lowering drug “Amtrel”.

Jan 2009 Launched “Catilon” for treatment of irritable bowel syndrome.

Jan 2010 Obtained preparation patent of “Amtrel”. 

Sep 2010 
Spinned off from parent company TTY and formally established TSH Biopharm with a 
paid-in capital of NTD150,000,000.  

Nov 2010 
Handled cash capital increase and issued NTD100,000,000 of new shares. The paid-in 
capital was increased to NTD250,000,000. 

Mar 2011 Approved public offering of shares by Financial Supervisory Commission.

Jun 2011 Registered for emerging stock trading on June 16, 2011.

Sep 2011 
Handled surplus capital increase and issued 30,000,000 new shares. The paid-in capital was 
increased to NTD280,000,000.

Dec 2011 Signed joint development agreement of ENIA11(TuNEX)  with Mycenax Biotech Inc. 

Apr 2012 
Handled cash capital increase and issued new shares of NTD37,340,000. The paid-in capital 
was increased to NTD317,340,000. Registered for OTC trading on April 30, 2012.

Aug 2012 Obtained drug certificate of “Linicor” for the treatment of hyperlipidemia.

Sep 2012 “Amtrel” won 2012 Taipei Biotech Award for technology commercialization. 

Sep 2012 
Products under development DMTA07 and ENIA11were selected as the Cross-strait Drugs 
R&D Cooperation Pilot Project by TFDA. 

Dec 2012 Initiated third phase of human clinical trial of ENIA11 (TuNEX).

Aug 2013 
Applied for MOEA’s “Industrial Technology Development Program” for third phase clinical 
test project of ENIA11 (TuNEX) bio-drug development, and approved by MOEA. 

Sep 2013 
Handled capital increase out of capital reserve and issued NTD34,900,000 of new shares. 
The paid-in capital was increased to NTD383,980,000. 

Jun 2014 
Participated in cash capital increase of Pharmira Laboratories Inc. with NTD70,000,000 and 
acquired 31.82% equity. 

Aug 2014 
Applied for MOEA’s A+Enterprise Innovation Plan for TRIA11 peptide biopharmaceutical 
development project for treatment of osteoporosis, and approved by MOEA. 

Feb 2016 
ENIA11 (TuNEX) passed third phase human clinical trial review (IND) on ankylosing 
spondylitis by the Ministry of Health and Welfare of Taiwan. 
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Mar 2016 Unblinded one of the two third phase human clinical trials of ENIA11 (TuNEX). 

Apr 2016 
Applied to the Ministry of Health and Welfare for inspection and registration of ENIA11 
(TuNEX). 

Jun 2016 Unblinded the second third phase human clinical trials of ENIA (TuNEX). 

Jul 2016 Applied to the Ministry of Health and Welfare for inspection and registration of RNTA06. 

Dec 2016 Applied to the Ministry of Health and Welfare for inspection and registration of CRTA04. 

Jul 2017 
ENIA (TuNEX) passed the inspection, registration and approval by the Ministry of Health 
and Welfare. 

Mar 2019 
Obtained the agency of Taiwan, Southeast Asia and Korea and the right of priority purchase 
of all CellMax Life’s liquid biopsy products and subsequent new products. 

Jun 2019 
Completed the unblind of bridging study of RNTA06 for treatment of angina pectoris and 
achieved the desired goal setting. 

Aug 2019 
Applied to the Ministry of Health and Welfare for new drug inspection and registration of 
RNTA06. 

Dec 2019 
Won the 16th National Innovation Award - Enterprise Innovation Group/Biotech 
pharmaceuticals and precision medicine category. 

Mar 2020 
This Company’s new drug RNTA06 received the NDA approval letter from the Ministry of 
Health and Welfare. 

Apr 2020 
Launched MPap® test in cooperation with Guzip Biomarkers Corporation and used for 
evaluating the endometrial risk. 

Jan 2021 
Exclusively obtained the rights of using the next generation sequencing (NGS)  technology 
Alpha-liquid® from IMBDx in Taiwan for early cancer postoperative monitoring and 
recurrence 

Feb 2021 
TSH Biopharm exclusively obtained the markets in specific regions and joint development 
rights of osteoporosis biosimilar drugs (code name: TRIAS) for treatment of osteoporosis. 

Mar 2021 

TSH Biopharm and a NASDAQ-listed company Centogen have forged into a cooperation 
agreement to provide cancer risk assessments and medication options for cancer patients 
(including the patients who suffer from breast cancer, ovarian cancer, prostate cancer, 
pancreatic cancer, etc.) in Taiwan and also to provide cancer hereditary risk assessment tests 
for healthy people. 

Oct. 2021 

General Manager of TSH Biopharm, Sze-Yuan Yang, won “The Golden Torch Award  for 
the Top 10 Managers of the Year”, and TSH Biopharm’s clinical application of circulating 
tumor cells and circulating tumor DNA technology for precise drug judgment and cancer 
tracking assistance won the “The Golden Torch Award  for the Top 10 Enterprises of the 
Year” 

Dec. 2021 
TSG Biopharm’s new compound drug Cretrol Tablet for lowering blood lipids  officially got 
its drug license. 

Jan. 2022 
Biopharm’s Alprosm Lyophilized Powder for Injection for the palliative treatment of 

peripheral arterial diseases officially got its drug license.
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III. Corporate Governance Report 
1. Organization 

(1) Organization structure of the Company 

(2) The business operations of the major departments 
Major Department Major Business 

General Manager’s Office 

Confirm the Company's short- and long-term goals, plan the development 

direction of the organization, find strategic partners, and ensure company 

performance. 

Audit Office Responsible and execute internal audit affairs of the Company. 

Corporate Development 

and R&D Division

Responsible for the introduction of new businesses or new products, and for 

project management and execution; synchronizing the drug development 

value chain based on drug safety mechanisms. 

Business Development 

Division

Responsible for overseas business cooperation such as technology 

authorization, product export, and project management of overseas business 

cooperation projects. 

Marketing Division 

According to the Company's development strategy, integrate marketing 
business resources to implement the marketing strategy before the launch of 

new products and the promotion of prescription drugs in order to enhance the 

Company’s professional image, brand effectiveness and organizational 

efficiency. 

Sales Division

According to the Company's disease category development and product 

development strategy in the field of precision medicine, it executes the sales 

promotion of prescription drugs and integrates marketing business resources 

to implement the marketing strategy before the launch of new products, so as 
to enhance the Company's professional image, brand effectiveness and 

organizational operation efficiency. 

General Administration 

Integrate the resources of the logistics unit according to the Company’s short- 

and long-term goals to maintain and provide various logistics support 

functions. The Finance and Accounting Department under its jurisdiction is 

responsible for the Company’s accounting and capital management business; 

the Administration Department is responsible for the Company’s human 

resources management, stock affairs, information, procurement, general 

affairs, Board of Directors, audit committee and Remuneration Committee 

deliberative units, secretarial administration and other businesses. 

Organizational 
Development and Human 
Resources Department 

Formulate the Company's human resources strategy; shape the core culture 
and values; integrate human resources and ensure that the acquisition, 
cultivation, performance and retention of them are closely linked with the 
organizational strategy, in order to establish a future competitive advantage 
for the organization.
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(2) Major shareholders of directors who are legal person shareholder 

Table 1: Major Shareholders of Legal Person Shareholder (to be confirmed) 
 March 31, 2022

Name of legal person shareholder (Note 1) Major shareholders of legal person shareholder (Note 2)

TTY Biopharm

Dawan Technology Co., Ltd.(9.46%), Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 

(3.74%), Nanshan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (2.75%), Wen-Yi Chang 

(2.45%), Ying-Jun Hsiao (2.01%), Wen-Hua Chang 

(1.77%),Wen-Ling Chang (1.75%), Jun-Ren Chang (1.61%) , 

JPMorgan hosting Sanskrit Vanguard Emerging Markets Equity 

Index Fund account (1.23%), Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.(1.19%) 
Note 1: If the director or supervisor is a representative of a legal person shareholder, the name of the legal person shareholder should be filled in. 

Note 2: Fill in the name of the main shareholder of the legal person shareholder (its shareholding ratio accounts for the top ten) and its shareholding ratio. If the main 

shareholder is a legal person, the following table 2 should also be filled in. 

Note 3: If a legal person shareholder is not a company organizer, the name of the shareholder and shareholding ratio should be disclosed, that is the name of the investor or 

donor (Please refer to the announcement of the Court of Justice for inquiry) and the ratio of capital contribution or donation, and make a note of “Deceased” if the 

donor has passed away. 

Table 2: Major shareholders who are mostly legal person shareholders
March 31, 2022

Name of legal person (Note 1) Major shareholders of a legal person (Note 2)

Dawan Technology Co., Ltd.

Yu-Bin Hsiao (36.98%), Ying-Jun Hsiao (28.69%), 
Charity Trust Liyuan Welfare Fund special account 
(11.02%), Yong-Liang Wu (8.50%), Mei-Qin Hsu 
(9.14%), Jia-Yu Hsiao (3.11%), Carl Hsiao(2.56%)

Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Fubon Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (100%)

Nanshan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Ruen Chen Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (89.4969%), 
Ruen Hua Dyeing and Weaving Co., Ltd. (1.3441%), 
Ying-Zhong Du (1.1576%), Ruen Tai Shing Co., Ltd. 
(0.9653%), Ruentex Development Co., Ltd. (0.2319%), 
Ruentex Industries Ltd. (0.2133%), Yen Sin 
Corporation (0.1563%), Ruentex Leasing Co., 
Ltd.(0.1321%), Chi-Pin Investment Company 
(0.1069%), PAN CITY CO., LTD.(0.0945%)

Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.
Ministry of Transportation and Communications 
(100%)

Note 1: If the main shareholder of the above table 1 is a legal person, the name of the legal person should be filled in. 

Note 2: Fill in the name of the main shareholder of the legal person (its shareholding ratio accounts for the top ten) and its shareholding ratio. 

Note 3: If a legal person shareholder is not a company organizer, the name of the shareholder and shareholding ratio should be disclosed, that is the name of the investor or 

donor (Please refer to the announcement of the Court of Justice for inquiry) and the ratio of capital contribution or donation, and make a note of “Deceased” if the 

donor has passed away.
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(3)  Disclosure of the professional qualifications and independence of the directors 

Qualifications

Name
Professional qualifications and 

experience (see N ote 1) 
Independence status (see Note 2) 

Number of other public 

companies where they 

concurrently serve as an 

independent director

TTY Biopharm 

Representative: 

Chuan Lin

He has served as professor in the National 

Chengchi University Department of Finance, 

full-time professor in the NTU Department of 

Economics, and adjunct professor at the NTU 

Institute of Architecture and Urban-Rural 

Studies. He is currently an adjunct professor in 

the NTU Department of Economics. He does not 

meet any of the criteria of Article 30 of the 

Company Act. 

Since 2011, he has served as director of TTY 

and has been its Chairman since January 2018, 

possessing the minimum five years of work 

experience with the Company that the position 

requires.  

Mr. Chuan Lin is not an employee of the 

Company or its affiliated companies, and is 

not a natural person shareholder who either 

holds more than 1% of the Company's total 

issued shares or is among its top ten 

shareholders. He does not have a spouse or 

blood relation within the second degree of 

kinship to any of the Company's managers or 

other directors.

0 

TTY Biopharm 

Representative:  

Carl Hsiao

He has worked in CVS Health Pharmacy, a large 

international chain retail pharmacy for a long 

time, with more than five years of work 

experience at the Company required for the 

position, and met any of the criteria of Article 30 

of the Company Act.

He is the current director of: Taiwan Toyo 

Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd.; Dawan 

Technology Co., Ltd.; and American Taiwan 

Biopharm Co., Ltd.

Mr. Carl Hsiao is not an employee of the 

Company or its affiliated companies, and is 

not a natural person shareholder who either 

holds more than 1% of the Company's total 

issued shares or is among its top ten 

shareholders. He does not have a spouse or 

blood relation within the second degree of 

kinship to any of the Company's managers or 

other directors.

0 

TTY Biopharm 

Representative: 

Kang-Chi Chou

Served as Deputy General Manager of the Taipei 

Exchange, Chairman of Concord Securities 

Financial Group, General Manager of Capital 

Securities Corp, Deputy Manager of the Listing 

and Trading Department of the Taiwan Stock 

Exchange, Executive Director of the Taiwan 

Securities Association. He has the five years 

works experience at the Company required for 

the position, and does not fall under any of the 

conditions specified in Article 30 of the 

Company Law.

He is currently the Chairman and general 

manager of IROC Corporation, and the director 

of: Taichung Commercial Bank; Changhua 

Electric Appliances; Changhua Technology 

Company; Jialong Technology Engineering, 

Company; Weirun Technology Company; 

Yihua Electronics Company. He is independent 

director of China Probe; Risheng Life 

Technology; and Youlin Biotech 

Pharmaceutical Company.

Mr. Kang-Chi Chou is not an employee of the 

Company or its affiliated companies, and is 

not a natural person shareholder who either 

holds more than 1% of the Company's total 

issued shares or is among its top ten 

shareholders. He does not have a spouse or 

blood relation within the second degree of 

kinship to any of the Company's managers or 

other directors.

3 
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TTY Biopharm 

Representative: 

Chao-I Chiang

He graduated from the Economics Institute of 

Memphis State University and the Department 

of Economics of Tunghai University and is 

qualified as an American accountant. He has 

served as the head of Chao-I Jiang Accounting 

Firm, the president of the Taiwanese American 

CPA Association, a member of the Legislature 

and National Assembly. He has more than five 

years of experience in finance, accounting, and 

business required for the position and meets 

none of the conditions specified in Article 30 of 

the Company Act.

He is currently on the remuneration committee 

of PharmaEngine, Inc.

Mr. Chou-I Chiang is not an employee of the 

Company or its affiliated companies, and is 

not a natural person shareholder who either 

holds more than 1% of the Company's total 

issued shares or is among its top ten 

shareholders. He does not have a spouse or 

blood relation within the second degree of 

kinship to any of the Company's managers or 

other directors.

0 

Chih-Li Wang 

He is a certified public accountant in the 

Republic of China, with more than five years of 

work experience in accounting, and does not 

meet any of the conditions in Article 30 of the 

Company Act.

He is currently a partner accountant of Moores 

Rowland CPAs and an independent director of 

PharmaEngine, Inc.

The Company has obtained a written statement 

from each independent director confirming the 

independence from our company of the 

director and their spouse and all second-degree 

kinship relations, and that they have not been 

in our company’s employ. Owning only 30 

shares, Mr. Wang has a very low stake in the 

Company, which does not affect his 

independent status.  

1 

Rwei-Syun Chen 

She has served as general manager of TAHO 

Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., the vice president of 

corporate development of NAL 

Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., and the director of Faith 

Leaper Co., Ltd. She has more than five years of 

the required commercial and corporate work 

experience, and does not meet any of the 

conditions of Article 30 of the Company Act. 

She is currently an independent director of 

Welgene Biotech, Ltd. 

The Company has obtained a written statement 

from each independent director confirming the 

independence from our company of the 

director and their spouse and all second-degree 

kinship relations, and that they have not been 

in our company’s employ. She does not hold 

any company shares.  

1 

Yi-Min Wang 

A graduate of Changhua Normal University’s 

Institute of Accounting, he served as the 

Executive Deputy General Manager of Yuanta 

Securities. He has more than five years of the 

required commercial and corporate work 

experience, and does not meet any of the 

conditions of Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Currently director of: Yuanta Securities (Hong 

Kong)  Co., Ltd., Yuanta Hong Kong Holdings 

(Cayman)  Co., Ltd., Yuanta Investment 

Management (Cayman)  Co., Ltd., Yuanta Asia 

Investment (Hong Kong)  Co., Ltd.; and 

Authorized Representative of Yuanta Securities 

Vietnam Co., Ltd. 

The Company has obtained a written statement 

from each independent director confirming the 

independence from our company of the 

director and their spouse and all second-degree 

kinship relations, and that they have not been 

in our company’s employ. She does not hold 

any company shares.  
0 

Note 1: Professional qualifications and experience: This lists the professional qualifications and experience of individual 
directors and supervisors, such as their membership to audit committees and accounting or financial expertise. It ought to 
include their accounting or financial background and work experience, and whether or not they meet the conditions of 
Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Note 2: Independent directors should state the status of their independence, including but not limited to: whether they, their spouse, or relatives 
within the second degree of kinship are among the directors, supervisors or employees of the Company or its affiliated companies; the
number and proportion of company shares held in their own name or that of a spouse or family member; whether they have served as a 
director, supervisor, or employee of a company that has a special relationship with the Company (refer to the provisions of Article 3, 
Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 5 to 8 of the Regulations on the Establishment of Independent Directors and Matters to be Obeyed by 
Public Offering Companies); and the amount of compensation received for providing business, legal, financial, accounting and other 
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services to the Company or its affiliates in the last two years. 
Note 3: For disclosure methods, please refer to the Best Practice Reference Examples on the website of the Corporate 

Governance Center of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

(4) Diversity and Independence of the Board of Directors

1. Diversity of the Board of Directors: 

The nomination and selection of members of the Board of Directors of the Company follows the 
provisions of the Company's articles of association. The selection process, in addition to evaluating the 
educational experience and qualifications of each candidate, also takes into consideration the opinions of 
stakeholders, and abides by the "Director Election Law" and "Corporate Governance Code of Practice” to 
ensure the diversity of the board members.  

The Company's diversity policy is as follows: 
� Board structure: According to the scale of the Company's business development and the 

shareholding situation among major shareholders, and given company practical operating needs, it 
was decided that a board of more than 5 members is appropriate.  

� No more than 1/3 of the directors should service concurrently as company managers.  
� Basic conditions and values: gender (female directors may be one-fourth of the total number of 

directors), age, nationality and culture.  
� Professional knowledge and skills: professional background (law, accounting, industry, finance, 

sales, technology), professional skills and industry experience.  
� Competencies required: operational judgement, accounting and financial analysis, business 

management, crisis management, industry knowledge, an understanding of the international market, 
leadership, and decision-making skills.

The current board consists of seven directors, with an average age of 64.28 years. The age distribution is 
as follows: one director aged 36-40, one director aged 56-60, two directors 61-65 years old, one director 
aged 71-75, two directors aged 76-80. 

No member of the current board is an employee of the Company. There is one female director, currently 
accounting for 14.2% of the board, the target ratio being 28%. There are three independent directors, 
currently accounting for 42.9% of the board. Three of the independent directors are serving for their 
second term; they are allowed to serve a maximum of three terms consecutively.  

In accordance with the Company's business model and business strategy, directors have been selected 
whose qualifications suit the needs of the Company's staged development. This includes: Chairman 
Chuan Lin, with his rich industry, government, academic and international experience; independent 
director Chih-Li Wang, a Taiwan CPA; director Chao-I Chiang, with American accounting qualifications; 
director Kang-Chi Chou, with a business management background; independent director Rwei-Syun Chen, 
with a background in international finance and biotechnology industry management and development; 
director Carl Hsiao, with a background in American pharmacology and sales channel experience in the 
US market, and independent director Yi-Min Wang, with a background in financial analysis and the 
securities market. 
Our company values diversity in its board members. Our target proportion of the Board of Directors 
possessing a background in the biotech medical industry and in accounting is 29% and 14%, respectively; 
our actual proportion is 42.9% and 28.6%, respectively. 

2.  Independence of the Board of Directors  

There are three independent directors in the Company, making up for 42.9% of the board. The number of 
independent directors is more than one-third of the total number of directors, and none of the three 
independent directors of the Company has served for more than three consecutive terms. No director of 
the Company is the spouse or second-degree kinship relation of any independent director, or vice versa. 
In conclusion, the Board of Directors is independent.
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 b
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h
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 m
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, c
ar

s 
an

d
 o

th
er

 m
ea

n
s 

o
f 

tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 o
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 c
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 m
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 b
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 d
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 f
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h
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(5)   The remuneration of the top five executives with the highest remuneration of the listed and 
OTC company: N/A 

(6)  The name of the manager who distributes employee compensation and the distribution situation 

March 31, 2022 

Note 1: The employee cash dividend is a provisional estimate, and the operation will be carried out after the report of the general meeting of shareholders 

on May 25, 2022. 

Note 2: For filling in the amount of employee bonuses (including stock dividends and cash dividends) proposed to be allotted to the manager previously 

approved by the Board of Directors on earnings distribution for the most recent year. If it is not possible to estimate, the proposed amount for 

this year will be calculated based on the actual distribution amount last year. Net profit after tax refers to the net profit after tax in the most 

recent year; if IFRS has been adopted, net profit after tax refers to the net profit after tax of the individual or individual financial report in the 

most recent year. 

Note 3: In accordance with letter TCZSZ No. 0920001301 issued by this meeting on March 27, 2003, the cope of application of managers is as follows: 

(1) General manager and equivalent 

(2) Vice general manager and equivalent 

(3) Assistant vice general manager and equivalent 

(4) Head of Finance Department 

(5) Head of Accounting Department 

(6) Other persons who have the right to manage affairs and sign for the Company 

Note 4: If the director, general manager and vice general manager receive employee remuneration (including stocks and cash), in addition to filling in 

the attached table (1-2), it is necessary to fill in this table also. 

(7)  A comparative analysis of the total remuneration paid to the directors, general manager and vice 
general managers of the Company in the most recent two years by the Company and all companies 
in the consolidated financial statements as a percentage of the net profit after tax of individual or 
individual financial reports, and explain the remuneration policy, standards and combinations, 
procedures for setting remuneration, and their correlation with operating performance and future 
risks. 

1. The total remuneration paid to the directors, general manager and vice general managers of the 
Company in the last two years accounts for the proportion of the net profit after tax of the individual or 
individual financial report: (Information provided by Zhenru Association) 

A. 2020: The total remuneration paid by the Company in 2020 to Directors, General manager 
andVice General Managers accounts for 22.02% of the net profit after tax of individual or 
individual financial reports. 

B. 2021: The total remuneration paid by the Company in 2021 to Directors, General manager and 
Vice General Managers accounts for 26.60% of the net profit after tax of individual or 
individual financial reports. 

2. Remuneration policies, standards and combinations, procedures for determining remuneration,
and their correlation with operating performance and future risks:

A. Director: 

The Company’s policy for remuneration to directors is in accordance with Article 26 of the 

Company’s articles of association. When directors perform their business, regardless of the 

Company’s operating profit or loss, the Company should pay remuneration. The Board of Directors

is authorized to allocate remuneration in accordance with their degree of participation in the 

Title Name 
Stock 

amount 
Cash 

amount 
Total 

Percentage of total 
amount to net profit 
after tax (%)  

M
an

ag
ers 

General Manager Sze-Yuan Yang  

0 870 870 1.84 

Business Development Division Director Chao-Ren Liao  

Sales Division Director Jian-Rong Huang 

AVP of General Administration Xin-Yang Liu 

Senior Finance & Accounting Department 
manager of General Administration 

Chen-Ju Kan 
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Company’s operations and the value of their contribution to the Company’s operations, and should 

set the usual standards by referencing the industry standard. If the Company is profitable, in 

accordance with Article 29 of the Articles of Association, considering the Company’s operating 

results and its contribution to the Company’s performance, no more than 2% of the current year’s 

profit shall be allocated as the director’s remuneration. 

The Company sets the procedures for directors’ remuneration. According to the Company’s "Board 

Performance Evaluation Method" and "Functional Committee Performance Evaluation Method", 

the individual and the overall performance of the Board of Directors are evaluated, and the aspects 

to be considered include the control of the Company's goals and missions, the Director's awareness 

of responsibilities, the degree of participation in the Company's operations, the management and 

communication of internal relations, the Director's professional and continuing education, and 

internal control, and the value of their participation in and contribution to the Company's operations 

is evaluated, and taken into consideration. A general standard should be set by referencing the 

industry standard, and it is proposed by the remuneration committee and reviewed by the Board of 

Directors.  Unlike General Directors, Independent Directors of the Company receive fixed 

remuneration and travel expenses for attending the meeting. 

B. General manager and vice general manager: 

The Company's policy for remuneration to the general manager and vice general manager is based 

on the Company's "Manager Salary Statement" and "Performance Management Measures and 

Performance Bonus Issuance Guidelines". The remuneration of the general manager and vice 

general managers includes the basic salary, allowances and bonuses, which are achieved in 

accordance with the Company's overall operating objectives (KPI, company key performance 

indicators)  and individual performance indicators (PDP, personal performance management 

system)  approved by the Board of Directors for the year, and taking into account the performance 

of personal functions as the basis for evaluation, and the amount of payment is calculated, and these 

indicators include financial indicators (marketing-oriented such as company revenue, operating net 

profit, pre-tax net profit achievement rate, etc.) and non-financial indicators 

(manufacturing-oriented such as inventory and cost management, R&D-oriented such as 

development project process, etc., organizational development-oriented such as talent development 

programs, etc.), which are approved by the Chairman, submitted to the remuneration committee for 

individual review of operating performance, future risks and industry standards, and then sent to 

the Board of Directors for a resolution to adjust the payment. 

C. The Company's salary policy is based on the Company's overall salary market positioning, industry 

salary survey results, the Company’s position in the growth cycle of the industry, and the salary level  

of internal fairness, consistency and external competitiveness, as well as the organizational structure 

salary level of reward system
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4. Corporate Governance Operation:
(1) Information of Board of Directors 

1. The Board of Directors held 5 meetings in 2021 (A). The attendance of directors is as 
follows: 

Title Name (Note 1) 
Actual 

attendance (B) 

Entrusted 

attendance

Actual attendance rate (%)  

[B/A] (Note 2) Remark

Chairman TTY Biopharm Representative: Chuan Lin 5 0 100 

Director
TTY Biopharm Representative:  

Chao-I Chiang
5 0 100 

Director TTY Biopharm Representative: Carl Hsiao 5 0 100 

Director 
TTY Biopharm Representative:  

Kang-Chi Chou
4 1 80 

Independent Director Chih-Li Wang 5 0 100 

Independent Director Rwei-Syun Chen 5 0 100 

Independent Director Yi-Min Wang 5 0 100 

Other matters to be recorded: 

1. If the operation of the board of directors falls under any of the following circumstances, the date of the board of directors, the 
period, the content of the proposal, the opinions of all Independent Directors and the Company's handling of the opinions of the 
Independent Directors shall be stated:  
(1) Matters listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act  
(2) Except for the previously mentioned matters, other matters resolved by the Board of Directors with objections or reserved 

opinions of Independent Directors and with records or written statements.  

Board of 
Directors 
Meeting

Proposal Content and Follow-up Processing

Matters listed in 
Article 14-3 of 
Securities and 
Exchange Act

Independent 
Directors have 
objections or 
reserved 
opinions. 

The Fifth 
session 

The Fifth 
term

2021.3.10 

1. 2020 Employees’ and Directors’ Remuneration Allocation 
of the Company.  

2. 2020 Statement of Internal Control System of the Company. 

3. Removal of Directors’ Non-Competition Restriction.

V - 

Independent Director’s Opinions: Nil.  

The Company’s Handling of Independent Directors’ Opinions: Nil.  

Resolution Result: Unanimously passed by all directors present.

The Sixth 
session 

The Fifth 
term

2021.5.4

1. Proposal of signing an “Entrusted Service Contract” for 
2021 to 2023 with TTY Biopharm  

2. Remuneration Committee’s proposal  

  (1) 2010 Director’s Remuneration List

V - 

Independent Director’s Opinions: Nil.  

The Company’s Handling of Independent Directors’ Opinions: Nil. 

Resolution Result: Unanimously passed by all directors present.

The Eighth 
session 

The Fifth

1. Proposal of amending the Company’s “accounting system”. 

2. Proposal of amending the Company’s “internal control 
system” and “internal audit system”

V - 
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term 

2021.11.3

Independent Director’s Opinions: Nil.  

The Company’s Handling of Independent Directors’ Opinions: Nil.  

Resolution Result: Unanimously passed by all directors present.

The Ninth 
Session  

The Fifth 
Term

2021.12.17 

1. 2022 Audit Plan of the Company.  

2. In 2022, it is proposed to appoint KPMG Taiwan as the 
Company's certified public accounting firm and the 
expenses for various certified public services.  

3. It is proposed to add an addendum to the house rental 
agreement signed with TTY Biopharm.

V - 

Independent Director’s Opinions: Nil.  

The Company’s Handling of Independent Directors’ Opinions: Nil.  

Resolution Result: Unanimously passed by all directors present.

The Tenth 
Session  

The Fifth 
Term

2022.3.4

1. 2021 Employees’ and Directors’ Remuneration Allocation 
of the Company.  

2. 2021 Statement of Internal Control System of the Company.  

3. Amendment to the “Processing Procedures for Acquisition 
or Disposal of Assets” of the Company.

V - 

Independent Directors’ Opinions: Nil.  

The Company’s Handling of Independent Directors’ Opinions: Nil.  

Resolution Result: Unanimously passed by all directors present.

2. Execution Status of Directors Avoiding Conflict of Interest: The Director’s name,  the content of motion, the reasons for 
avoidance of conflict of interest, and the situation of participating in voting shall be given:

Date Name Content of Motion
Reasons for Avoidance 
of Conflict of Interest

Situation of Participating in Voting

2021.3.10

Chuan Lin, 

CARL HSIAO, 
Chao-I Chiang, 
Kang-Chi Chou

Removal of Directors’ 
Non-Competition Restriction.

The Company’s Director 
is a legal representative of 
an affiliated company.

The Directors of the Company did 
not participate in voting due to 
conflict of interest.

2021.5.4

Chuan Lin, 

CARL HSIAO, 
Chao-I Chiang, 
Kang-Chi Chou

The Company intends to enter into 
“Entrusted Service Contract” for 
2021 to 2023 with TTY Biopharm.

The Company’s Director 
is a legal representative of 
an affiliated company.

The Directors of the Company did 
not participate in voting due to 
conflict of interest.

2021.5.4

Chuan Lin, 

CARL HSIAO, 
Chao-I Chiang, 
Kang-Chi Chou

List of 2020 Directors’ 
Remuneration

The Company’s Director 
is a related party.

The Directors of the Company did 
not participate in voting due to their 
self-interest, since it involves the 
Directors’ self-interest.

2021.12.17

Chuan Lin, 

CARL HSIAO, 
Chao-I Chiang, 
Kang-Chi Chou

The Company intends to amend 
the housing “lease contract signed 
with TTY Biopharm.

The Company’s Director 
is a legal representative of 
an affiliated company.

The Directors of the Company did 
not participate in voting due to 
conflict of interest.

Note 1: If the directors and supervisors are legal persons, the names of the legal person shareholders and their representatives shall be disclosed. 

Note 2: (1) If a director or supervisor has resigned before the end of the year, the date of resignation should be indicated in the Remarks column. The actual attendance rate (%)  

is calculated based on the number of meetings of the Board of Directors during the term of office and their actual attendance. 

(2) Before the end of the year, if any director or supervisor is re-elected, both the new and old directors and supervisors shall be listed, and the remarks column shall 

indicate whether the director or supervisor is the old, new or re-elected and the date of re-election. The actual attendance rate (%)  is calculated based on the number 

of meetings of the Board of Directors and the actual number of attendances during the term of office.
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3. Listed and OTC companies shall disclose the evaluation cycle and period, evaluation scope, method and evaluation content of the Board of 
Directors' self (or peer)  evaluation. For details, please refer to the implementation of the Board of Directors evaluation:

The Board of Directors Appraisal and Implementation 

Appraisal period 
(Note 1) 

Appraisal period (Note 2) 
Appraisal scope 

(Note 3) 

Appraisal method 
(Note 4) Appraisal content (Note 5)

1. Perform internal 
self-assessment 
once a year. 

1. Self-assessment period: 
2021/1/1 2021/12/31 

1. The scope of 
self-assessment of 
the Board of 
Directors, 
individual 
directors, and 
functional 
committees. 

1-1. Internal 
self-assessment by 
the Board of 
Directors. 

1-2. Self-assessment 
by directors. 

1. Board performance evaluation:
including the degree of 
participation in the Company's 
operations, the quality of board
decisions, the composition and
structure of the board, the 
selection and continuous 
education of directors, internal 
control, etc. The evaluation 
results are detailed on page 34.

2. Performance evaluation of 
individual directors: including 
mastery of company goals and 
tasks, awareness of directors' 
responsibilities, participation in
company operations, internal 
relationship management and 
communication, directors' 
professional and continuous 
education, internal control, etc.
The evaluation results are 
detailed on page 35. 
3. Functional committee 
performance evaluation: 
including the degree of 
participation in the Company's 
operations, the recognition of 
the responsibilities of the 
functional committee, the 
decision-making quality of the 
functional committee, the 
composition of the functional 
committee and the selection of 
members, internal control, etc. 
Evaluation result: A score of 
100 (out of 100) was evaluated
by the Meeting Affairs Unit. 

4. The content and results of the 
effectiveness evaluation of the 
Board of Directors are detailed
on page36. 

2. Perform an 
external 
self-assessment 
every three years. 

2. Entrusted with an external 
professional organization 
(Chunghwa Corporate 
Governance Association)  
during the evaluation 
period:2018/9/1 2019/8/31 

2. Entrust the 
Chunghwa 
Corporate 
Governance 
Association to 
evaluate the scope: 
board 
effectiveness. 

2. Appoint an external 
professional 
organization. 

Note 1: For filling in the execution cycle of the Board of Directors appraisal, for example: once a year. 
Note 2: For filling in the period covered by the Board of Directors appraisal, for example: to evaluate the performance of the Board of Directors from January 1, 2020 to 

December 31, 2020. 

Note 3: The scope of evaluation includes the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, individual directors and functional committees.

Note 4: Evaluation methods include internal self-evaluation by the Board of Directors, self-evaluation by directors, peer evaluation, appointment of external 

professional institutions, experts or other appropriate methods for performance evaluation. 

Note 5: The assessment content shall include at least the following items according to the assessment scope:

(1) Board performance evaluation: including at least the degree of participation in the Company's operations, the quality of board decisions, the composition 

and structure of the board, the selection and continuous education of directors, and internal control. 

(2) Performance evaluation of individual director members: at least including the mastery of the Company's goals and tasks, the awareness of directors' 

responsibilities, the degree of participation in company operations, internal relationship management and communication, directors' professional and 

continuous education, internal control, etc. 

(3) Performance evaluation of functional committees: the degree of participation in the Company's operations, awareness of the responsibilities of the 

functional committees, the decision-making quality of the functional committees, the composition of the functional committees and the selection of 

members, internal control, etc. 
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4. The objective of strengthening the functions of the Board of Directors in the current year and the most recent year (such as establishing an audit committee, enhancing 

information transparency, etc.)  and evaluation of the implementation: 

1. The Company’s 2021 risk management operation was reported by the Head of Corporate Governance at the Board of Directors on December 17, 2021.  
2. The Company’s 2021 integrity management performance was reported by the Head of Corporate Governance at the Board of Directors on March 4, 2022.  
3. The Company has established an Integrity Management Promotion Team, and the Board of Directors has adopted the plan and policy to prevent dishonest 

conducts. The Head of Auditing conducted an audit in December 2021 and reported the audit results to the Board of Directors on March 4, 2022.   
4. The situation of stakeholder communications was reported to the Board of Directors half-yearly (on 2021/8/3 and 2021/12/17) .  
5. In 2021, the Company’s “Board of Directors Performance Evaluation Method”, “Functional Committee  Performance Evaluation Method”, “Audit 

Committee Organization Regulations”,  “Remuneration Committee Organization Regulations” and “Independent Directors’ Scope of Responsibilities and 
Rules” were reviewed and amended continuously.  

6. Starting from 2021, major news will be released in Chinese and English synchronously.  
7. Arrangements are made for t lease two times a year for the Directors and certified public accountants to meet for communications.    
8. Three Independent Directors attended each of the Company’s 2021 Board of Directors meetings in person, and the attendance status of the Independent 

Directors attending each Board of Directors Meeting in 2021 is listed below:  

: Attend in person   ☆: Attend by proxy  : Absent  

Independent 
Director 

Mar. 10, 
2021

May 4, 
2021

Aug. 3, 
2021

Nov. 3, 
2021

Dec.17, 2021 

Chih-Li Wang 

Rwei-Syun Chen 

Yi-Min Wang 

9. Regular assessments of the independence of accountants are implemented continuously. On December 17, 2021, The Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors  approved the independence and appropriate qualification of the accountants in accordance with the Company's "Certified Public Accountant 
Selection Review Method" and the statement of independence issued by  KPMG.  The qualification review results are detailed in "(4)  Operation of 
Corporate Governance and its Differences and Reasons from the Code of Practice for Corporate Governance of Listed Companies" of "4. Operation of 
Corporate Governance" and in the fourth point of "3, Composition and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors", see Page 34. 

10.  Since the Company participated in the first corporate governance evaluation, short, medium and long-term improvement goals were set based on the 
evaluation results of each year for projects that do not meet corporate governance standards, and the improvement results were reported year by year. For 
those not improved yet, priorities and measures for strengthening were proposed.  Please refer to the ninth point of "(4)  The operation of corporate 
governance and its differences with the Code of Practice on Corporate Governance for Listed OTC Companies and the reasons" in "4. Operation of 
Corporate Governance", see Page 50.
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(2) Information on the operation of the audit committee: 
 1.The composition and responsibilities of the audit committee: 

(1) The term of office of the current (second) audit committee of the Company is from 

May 29, 2020 to May 28, 2023. 

(2) The audit committee of the Company consists of 3 independent directors. 

(3) The responsibility of the audit committee is to supervise the appropriate expression of 

the Company's financial reports, the selection (dismissal) of the certified accountant 

and the assessment of independence, the Company's internal compliance with laws 

and regulations and the suitability of audit plans, transactions with related parties, and 

possible conflicts of interest, etc. 

2. Annual work focus of the audit committee:

The matters considered mainly include: 

(1) Financial statement audit and accounting policies and procedures. 

(2)  The formulation and implementation of internal control systems and related policies   

and procedures. 

(3) Investment situation. 

(4) Compliance with laws and regulations. 

(5) Related party transactions and possible conflicts of interest.

(6)   Review the independence, professionalism, appointment, dismissal or remuneration 

   of certified public accountants. 

[Reviewed financial report] 

The Board of Directors prepared the Company's 2021 business report, financial 

statements, and earnings distribution proposals, among which the financial statements 

have been checked by KPMG and an audit report has been issued. The above-mentioned 

business report, financial statement and surplus distribution proposal have been checked 

by the Audit Committee and found that there is no discrepancy. 

[Appointed Certified Accountant] 

The audit committee is given the responsibility of supervising the independence of the 

certified public accountant firm to ensure the fairness of the financial statements. All 

services provided by a certified accounting firm must be approved by the audit committee. 

In order to ensure the independence of the certified public accountant firm, the Audit 

Committee has formulated an independent evaluation form with reference to Article 47 of 

the Accountants Act and the "Integrity, Fairness, Objectivity, and Independence" of the 

Accountants' Professional Ethics Bulletin No. 10, to assess the independence of 

accountants, and professional and competence assessment. After review and approval by 

the Audit Committee and the resolution by the Board of Directors on December 17, 2021, 

KPMG’s Certified Public Accountants and Huang Hsin-Ting and Han Yi-Lien deemed 

both meet the independence assessment standards and are sufficient to serve as the 

Company's financial and tax accountants (Due to the accountant rotation system, from 

2022, accountants Chih Shin-chin and Tseng Kuo-Yang are changed to accountants 

Huang Hsin-ting and Han Yi-lien). 

[Assessed the effectiveness of the internal control system]  

The audit committee evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal control system 

policies and procedures (including financial, operational, risk management, information 
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security, outsourcing, legal compliance and other control measures), and reviewed the 

Company's audit unit, certified accountants, and management's regular reports, including 

risk management and compliance with laws and regulations. The audit committee believes 

that the Company's risk management and internal control systems are effective, and the 

Company has adopted necessary control mechanisms to monitor and correct violations. 

3. Annual work focus and operation status of the audit committee: 
The 2021 Audit Committee of the Company met 5 times (A). The attendance 
status of the Independent Directors attending is listed below: 

Title Name Actual attendance (B)  
Entrusted 
attendance 

Actual attendance rate (%)  
(B/A) (Note 1, Note 2)  

Remark 

Independent director Chih-Li Wang 5 0 100 

Independent director Rwei-Syun Chen 5 0 100 

Independent director Yi-Min Wang 5 0 100 
Other matters to be recorded: 

1. If the operation of the audit committee is under any of the following circumstances, the date and period of the Board of Directors, the content of the proposals, the 

Independent Director’s oppositions, reserved opinions or  major proposals, the results of the audit committee’s resolutions, and the Company’s handling of the audit 

committee’s opinions should be stated. 

(1)  Matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities Exchange Act.

Audit 

Committee
Proposal content and follow-up processing 

Items listed in Article 
14-5 of the Securities 

Exchange Act

Resolutions that have not 
been approved by the 
Audit Committee but 
approved by more than 2/3 
of all directors

2nd  

4th session  

2021.3.10

1. THE COMPANY'S 2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

BUSINESS REPORTS. 

2. FORMULATION OF THE 2020 INTERNAL CONTORL 

STATEMENT 

3. Intended to amend the Company’s “Audit Committee Organization 

Regulations”. 

V - 

Audit committee opinion: Nil. 

The Company's handling of the audit committee's opinions: Nil.

Resolution result: All the present audit committee members agreed to pass.

2nd Term 

5th session

2021.5.4

1. The Company’s 2021 First Quarter Financial Statement. 

2. Proposal of signing the Company’s “Entrusted Service Contract” with 
TTY Biopharm Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “TTY Biopharm”)  
for 2021 to 2023. 

V - 

Audit committee opinion: Nil. 

The Company's handling of the audit committee's opinions: Nil.

Resolution result: All the present audit committee members agreed to pass. 

2nd Term  

6th session 

 2021.8.3

The Company's second QUARTER 2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. V - 

Audit committee opinion: Nil. 

The Company's handling of the audit committee's opinions: Nil.

Resolution result: All the present audit committee members agreed to pass. 

2nd Term 

7st session

2021.11.3

1. The Company's financial statements for the third quarter of 2021. 

2. Proposal of amending the Company’s “Measures for Preparation 

and Management of Financial Reports”. 

3. Proposal of amending the Company’s “Accounting System”.  

4. Proposal of amending the Company’s “Internal Control System 

“ and “Internal Audit System”. 

V - 

Audit committee opinion: Nil 

The Company's handling of the audit committee's opinions: Nil  

Resolution result: All the present audit committee members agreed to pass.

2nd Term 

8th session

2021.12.17 

1.  The Company’s 2022 Audit Plan. 

2.  Proposal of appointing “KPMG” as the Company’s certified public 
accountant firm and setting various certification service fees for 2022.  

3.   Proposal of amending the Company’s housing “least contract” signed 
with TTY Biopharm Co, Ltd.  (hereinafter referred to as “TTY 
Biopharm” )   

V - 
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Audit Committee Opinions: Nil.  

The Company’s handling of Audit Committee opinions: Nil.  

Resolution result: All the present audit committee members agreed to pass.

(2)  Except for the previous matters, other matters that have not been approved by the Audit Committee and approved by more than two-thirds of all directors: Nil 

2.The implementation situation of independent directors' proposal for avoidance of interest should state the name of the independent director, the content of the 

proposal, the reason for the avoidance of interests, and the voting situation: Nil 

3.The communication status between independent directors and internal audit supervisors and accountants (should include major matters, methods and results of 

communication on the Company's financial and business conditions, etc.): 

(1)Communication between independent directors and internal audit supervisor: 

In addition to regularly sending various internal audit reports to independent directors, the Company’s auditing unit has irregular discussions with 

independent directors; since the establishment of the audit committee of the Company at least once a quarterly regular meeting on the audit business execution 

and internal control operation status and audit committee members for discussion. For detailed communication, please refer to the Company's website. 

Usually the audit supervisor and independent directors communicate directly by email, phone or meeting as needed 

(2)Communication between independent directors and accountants: 

1.The Company arranges at least once a year for the Independent Directors to communicate face-to-face with the accountants without the presence of the 

Company's management team.  

2.The Company arranges at least one conference every year for Independent Directors, management team and accountant to meet.  

The certified public accountants attend the Audit Committee quarterly and report the review (audit)  results of the financial reports of that quarter. At the same time, 
the accountants will also address important accounting standards or interpretation letters, securities regulations, the impact of the newly applied IFRS Bulletin on the 
Company and the key audit matters are explained to the Audit Committee.  Please refer to the Company's website for details. 

Note 1:  If an Independent Director leaves the Company before the end of the year, the date of leaving should be indicated in the 

remarks and the actual attendance rate (%)  is calculated based on the number of Audit Committee meetings and the actual 

number of attendance during the Independent Director’s tenure.  

Note 2:  If there is an Independent Director re-elected before the end of the year, the new and old Independent Directors should be 

listed and indicated in the remarks as the old, new or re-elected Independent Director and the date of re-election. The actual 

attendance rate (%)  is in the number of Audit Committee meetings and the number of actual attendance during their term of 

office.

-28-



(3
)

R
ea

so
ns

 fo
r 

di
ff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

co
de

s o
f p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f l

ist
ed

 a
nd

 O
T

C
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

it
em

s 

O
p

er
at

io
n
 s

ta
tu

s 
(N

o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

fo
r 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v

er
n

an
ce

 o
f 

li
st

ed
 a

n
d

 O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 

1
. 
D

o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 a

n
d
 d

is
cl

o
se

 t
h
e 

co
d
e 

o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

co
d
e 

o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 
co

m
p
an

ie
s?

V

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 p

as
se

d
 t

h
e 

re
so

lu
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
n
 

A
p

ri
l 

1
4
, 

2
0
2
2
 t

o
 a

m
en

d
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 c

o
d
e 

o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 

an
d
 

d
is

cl
o
se

d
 

th
e 

co
d
e 

o
n

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
w

eb
si

te
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

sh
b

io
p

h
ar

m
.c

o
m

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

2
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 s
h
ar

eh
o
ld

in
g
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 a
n
d
 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
s’

 e
q
u
it

y
(1

) 
 D

o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 i
n
te

rn
al

 o
p
er

at
in

g
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
to

 h
an

d
le

 s
h
ar

eh
o
ld

er
 s

u
g
g
es

ti
o
n
s,

 
d
o
u
b
ts

, 
d
is

p
u
te

s 
an

d
 l

it
ig

at
io

n
 m

at
te

rs
, 
an

d
 

im
p
le

m
en

t 
th

em
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s?
 

V

(1
) 

 T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 s

et
 u

p
 s

p
o
k
es

p
er

so
n

, 
p
ro

x
y
 s

p
o
k
es

p
er

so
n
,

in
v
es

to
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 s

to
ck

 a
ff

ai
rs

 u
n
it

s,
 a

n
d
 a

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 u

n
it

 w
il

l 
h
an

d
le

 r
el

at
ed

 m
at

te
rs

, 
an

d
 u

n
it

 c
o
n
ta

ct
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 w

il
l 

b
e 

b
u
il

t 
o
n
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
's

w
eb

si
te

. 
T

h
e 

u
n
it

 r
es

p
o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

in
v
es

to
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s 

ac
ti

v
el

y
 
re

sp
o
n
d
s 

to
 
sh

ar
eh

o
ld

er
s5

su
g
g
es

ti
o
n
s 

o
r 

d
o
u
b
ts

, 
re

co
rd

s 
th

em
 i

n
 t

h
e 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
 p

ro
b
le

m
 r

ec
o
rd

 b
o
o
k

, 
an

d
 f

o
rw

ar
d
s 

th
em

 t
o
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 
an

d
 t
h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

. O
n
 t
h
e 

o
th

er
 

h
an

d
, 

w
h
en

 
a 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
 

m
ee

ti
n
g
 

is
 

h
el

d
, 

th
e 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
s 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

in
g
 
in

 
th

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g
 
h
av

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ti
m

e 
to

 
sp

ea
k
. 

F
o
r 

n
o
n
-c

o
n
tr

o
v
er

si
al

 a
n
d
 f

ea
si

b
le

 p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

cc
ep

ts
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
es

, 
b
u
t 

co
n
tr

o
v
er

si
al

 
p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 

ar
e 

re
so

lv
ed

 
b
y
 

v
o
ti

n
g
 

ac
co

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ru
le

s 
o
f 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

.

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 h

av
e 

a 
li

st
 o

f 
m

aj
o

r 
sh

ar
eh

o
ld

er
s 

an
d
 t
h
e 

fi
n
al

 c
o
n
tr

o
ll

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

m
aj

o
r 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
s 

w
h
o
 a

ct
u
al

ly
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
? 

D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 a
n
d
 i

m
p
le

m
en

t 
a 

ri
sk

 
co

n
tr

o
l 

m
ec

h
an

is
m

 a
n
d
 f

ir
ew

al
l 

m
ec

h
an

is
m

 
b
et

w
ee

n
 i

ts
af

fi
li

at
ed

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s?

 

(4
) 

H
as

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 i

n
te

rn
al

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o
n
s 

to
 p

ro
h
ib

it
 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 i
n
si

d
er

s 
fr

o
m

 u
si

n
g
 t
h
e 

n
o
n
-d

is
cl

o
se

d
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

m
ar

k
et

 t
o
 b

u
y
 

an
d
 s

el
l 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
? 

V
 

V
 

V
 

(2
) 

 T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 i

n
v
es

to
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 s

to
ck

 a
ff

ai
rs

 u
n
it

s,
 a

n
d

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 s
to

ck
 a

ff
ai

rs
 a

g
en

ci
es

 h
an

d
le

 s
to

ck
 a

ff
ai

rs
 o

n
 t

h
ei

r 
b
eh

al
f,

an
d
 k

ee
p
 a

b
re

as
t 

o
f 

th
e 

li
st

 o
f 

m
aj

o
r 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
s 

w
h
o
 

ac
tu

al
ly

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
ei

r 
u
lt

im
at

e 
co

n
tr

o
ll

er
s 

at
 

an
y
 t

im
e.

 

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

p
ar

en
t 

co
m

p
an

y
 a

re
h
an

d
le

d
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

" 
G

ro
u
p
 C

o
m

p
an

ie
s,

 S
p
ec

if
ic

C
o
m

p
an

ie
s,

 a
n
d
 R

el
at

ed
 P

ar
ty

’s
 T

ra
n
sa

ct
io

n
 P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s"
 a

n
d
 

"I
n
te

rn
al

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

S
y
st

em
",

 "
In

te
rn

al
 A

u
d
it

 S
y
st

em
” 

an
d
 r

el
at

ed
 

la
w

s 
an

d
 r

eg
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

af
fi

li
at

ed
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
. 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
re

la
te

d
 p

ar
ty

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

ar
e 

su
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

th
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o
m

m
it

te
e 

fo
r 

d
el

ib
er

at
io

n
. 

(4
) 

 O
n
 A

p
ri

l 
1
6
, 

2
0
2
0
, 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

ap
p
ro

v
ed

th
e 

am
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

'' 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
 o

f
In

te
rn

al
 M

aj
o
r 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 P

re
v
en

ti
o
n
 o

f 
In

si
d
er

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s"

, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

x
p
li

ci
tl

y
 p

ro
h
ib

it
s 

in
si

d
er

s 
fr

o
m

 
u
si

n
g
 u

n
d
is

cl
o
se

d
 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 t
h
at

 h
as

 a
 s

ig
n
if

ic
an

t 
im

p
ac

t 
o
n

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
's

 s
to

ck
 p

ri
ce

 o
r 

th
e 

ab
il

it
y
 t

o
 p

ay
 p

ri
n
ci

p
al

 a
n
d
 i

n
te

re
st

 
fo

r 
tr

ad
in

g
. 

T
h
e 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
re

g
u
la

r^
 

p
u
b
li

ci
ze

 
th

e 
p
re

ca
u
ti

o
n
s 

to
 

p
re

v
en

t 
in

si
d
er

 
tr

ad
in

g
 

to
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
co

ll
ea

g
u
es

 e
v
er

y
 y

ea
r,

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
li

ci
ze

 n
ew

 d
ir

ec
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

an
ag

er
s 

af
te

r 
ta

k
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e.

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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3
. 

T
h

e 
co

m
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
es

p
o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o

ar
d

 o
f 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
(1

) 
 D

o
es

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 f
o

rm
u

la
te

 
an

d
im

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
d

iv
er

si
fi

ed
 p

o
li

cy
, 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 a

n
d

 p
o

li
ci

es
, 

an
d

 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
an

d
 e

x
ec

u
te

  
o

n
 t

h
e 

co
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

m
em

b
er

s?

V
 

(1
)

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

h
as

 
re

v
is

ed
 

"C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
o

n
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
G

o
v

er
n

an
ce

" 
an

d
 

p
o

li
cy

 
fo

r 
d

iv
er

si
ty

 
o

f 
b

o
ar

d
 

m
em

b
er

s.
 

T
h

e 
n

o
m

in
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 s

el
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

B
o

ar
d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

’s
 a

rt
ic

le
s 

o
f 

as
so

ci
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
o
p

t 
a 

ca
n

d
id

at
e 

n
o
m

in
at

io
n
 s

y
st

em
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 

as
se

ss
in

g
 t

h
e 

q
u

al
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
o
f 

ea
ch

 c
an

d
id

at
e,

 a
n

d
 r

ef
er

ri
n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e 
o

p
in

io
n

s 
o

f 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s,

 
co

m
p

ly
in

g
 

w
it

h
 

th
e 

"D
ir

ec
to

r 
E

le
ct

io
n
 

M
et

h
o

d
" 

an
d
 t

h
e 

"C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
o

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v

er
n
an

ce
" 

to
 

en
su

re
 t

h
e 

d
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f 
d

ir
ec

to
rs

. 
  

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 p

o
li

cy
 i

s 
as

 f
o

ll
o

w
s:

 
�

S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 
o

f 
B

o
ar

d
 
o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

: 
 

A
cc

o
rd

in
g

 
to

 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

o
f 

th
e 

co
m

p
an

y
's

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

sh
ar

eh
o

ld
in

g
 s

it
u

at
io

n
 

o
f 

m
aj

o
r 

sh
ar

eh
o

ld
er

s,
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

 p
eo

p
le

 d
ep

en
d

in
g
 o

n
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 n
ee

d
s.

  
�

T
h

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 w

h
o

 a
ls

o
 s

er
v

e 
as

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
's

 m
an

ag
e
r 

sh
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 1

/3
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

. 
�

B
as

ic
 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 

v
al

u
es

: 
G

en
d

er
 

(f
em

al
e 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 

m
ay

 
b

e 
o

n
e-

fo
u

rt
h

 o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
),

 a
g

e,
 n

at
io

n
al

it
y

 a
n

d
 

cu
lt

u
re

. 
�

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e 
an

d
 s

k
il

ls
: 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 b

ac
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 (

su
ch

 a
s 

la
w

, 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g
, 

in
d

u
st

ry
, 

fi
n

an
ce

, 
m

ar
k

et
in

g
 

o
r 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
),

 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 s
k

il
ls

 a
n

d
 i

n
d
u

st
ry

 e
x

p
er

ie
n

ce
. 

�
A

b
il

it
ie

s:
 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 
o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 
ju

d
g

m
en

t 
ab

il
it

y
, 

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g

 
an

d
 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

an
al

y
si

s 
ab

il
it

y
, 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ab
il

it
y

, 
cr

is
is

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ab

il
it

y
, 

in
d
u

st
ry

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e,

 i
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 m
ar

k
et

 v
ie

w
, 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

b
il

it
y

, 
an

d
 d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

in
g

 a
b

il
it

y
. 

�
T

h
e 

d
iv

er
si

ty
 p

o
li

cy
 h

as
 b

ee
n
 d

is
cl

o
se

d
 i

n
 d

et
ai

l 
o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

’s
 

w
eb

si
te

 a
n

d
 M

ar
k

et
 O

b
se

rv
at

io
n

 P
o

st
 S

y
st

em
. 

(l
) 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce
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A
ss

es
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en
t 

it
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O
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n
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ta
tu
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(N

o
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) 

 

R
ea
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n
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d
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fe
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n
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s 
b
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w

ee
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 t
h
e 
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d
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o
f 

p
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e 
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o

ra
te
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o

v
er

n
an
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 o

f 
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n
d

 O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
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s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
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y
 

S
p

ec
if
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 I

m
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 p

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
G

o
al

s:
  

M
u
lt

ip
le

 c
o
re

 

p
ro

je
ct

s
N

at
io

n
al

it
y

G
en

d
er

L
en

g
th

 o
f 

se
rv
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e 

o
f 

an
 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

t 

d
ir

ec
to

r

P
ar

t-
 t

im
e 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 

o
f 

th
e 

co
m

p
an

y

M
an

ag
e

m
en

t

L
ea

d
er

’s
 

d
ec

is
io

n

In
d
u
st

ry

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

F
in

an
ce

 &
 

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g

F
in

an
ci

al
 

la
w

C
h

ai
rm

an
 C

h
u
an

 

L
in

R
O

C
M

-
N

A
V

V
V

V
V

D
ir

ec
to

r 
C

ar
l 

H
si

ao
U

S
A

M
-

N
A

V
V

D
ir

ec
to

r 
C

h
ao

-I
 

C
h
ia

n
g

R
O

C
M

-
N

A
V

V

D
ir

ec
to

r 
K

an
g
-C

h
i 

C
h
o
u

R
O

C
M

-
N

A
V

V

In
d
ep

en
d
en

t 

d
ir

ec
to

r 
C

h
ih

-L
i 

W
an

g

R
O

C
M

5

y
ea

rs
N

A
V

V

In
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
 

d
ir

ec
to

r

R
w

ei
-S

y
u
n
 C

h
en

R
O

C
F

4

y
ea

rs
N

A
V

V
V

 
V

In
d
ep

en
d
en

t 

d
ir

ec
to

r 
Y

i-
M

in
 

W
an

g

R
O

C
M

5

y
ea

rs
N

A
V

V
V

N
o

te
 1

: 
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
se

v
en

 c
u

rr
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

, a
n

d
 n

o
n

e 
o

f 
th

em
 i
s 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 e
m

p
lo

y
ee

. 
F

em
al

e 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 c
u

rr
en

tl
y

 
ac

co
u

n
t 

fo
r 

1
4

.2
%

, 
an

d
 I

n
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 c
u

rr
en

tl
y
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
4

2
.9

%
; 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

h
as

 a
 

te
n

u
re

 o
f 

4
~

5
 y

ea
rs

. 
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 p
ay

s 
at

te
n
ti

o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 m
em

b
er

s,
 a

n
d

 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 r
at

io
s 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 h

av
in

g
 b

io
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

 a
n

d
 m

ed
ic

al
 b

ac
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 b
ac

k
g

ro
u

n
d

 
ar

e 
ab

o
v

e 
2

9
%

 a
n

d
 1

4
%

 r
es

p
ec

ti
v

el
y

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ra
ti

o
s 

ar
e 

4
3

%
 a

n
d
 2

9
%

 r
es

p
ec

ti
v
el

y
.

N
o

te
 2

: 
A

cc
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

's
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
m

o
d

el
 a

n
d

 s
tr

at
eg

y
, 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 s

u
it

ab
le

 f
o
r 

th
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
's

 s
ta

g
ed

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
ar

e 
se

le
ct

ed
, 

T
h
ey

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

C
h
ai

rm
an

 C
h

u
an

 L
in

 w
it

h
 r

ic
h

 i
n

d
u

st
ry

, 
g

o
v

er
n

m
en

t,
 a

ca
d

em
ia

 
an

d
 i
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 e
x

p
er

ie
n
ce

, I
n

d
ep

en
d

en
t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

W
an

g
 C

h
ih

-l
i 

(T
ai

w
an

es
e 

ac
co

u
n

ta
n

t)
, D

ir
ec

to
r 

C
h

ao
-I

 

C
h

ia
n

g
 (

A
m

er
ic

an
 C

P
A

) 
 D

ir
ec

to
r,

 K
an

g
-C

h
i 

C
h

o
u

 w
it

h
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
b

ac
k

g
ro

u
n

d
, 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

R
w

ei
-S

y
u

n
 C

h
en

 w
it

h
 i

n
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 i
n

st
it

u
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 b

io
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

 i
n

d
u

st
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
b

ac
k

g
ro

u
n

d
, 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
X

ia
o

 
Ji

ab
in

 
w

it
h

 
A

m
er

ic
an

 
p

h
ar

m
ac

y
 
b

ac
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 
an

d
 
sa

le
s 

ch
an

n
el

 e
x

p
er

ie
n

ce
 i
n

 t
h

e 
U

S
 m

ar
k

et
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
ep

en
d

en
t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

Y
i-

M
in

 W
an

g
 w

it
h

 b
ac

k
g

ro
u

n
d

 i
n

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

an
al

y
si

s 
an

d
 s

ec
u

ri
ti

es
 m

ar
k

et
. 

(R
ef

er
 t

o
 P

ag
e 

8
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
’ 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

er
ie

n
ce

) 
 

N
o
te

 3
: 

P
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 p
ag

e 
1

2
 f

o
r 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

' s
p
ec

if
ic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

g
o
al

s 
an

d
 g

u
id

el
in

es
 f

o
r 

d
iv

er
si

ty
 

an
d
 i

ts
 i

m
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
.
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A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

it
em

s 

O
p

er
at

io
n
 (

N
o

te
 1

) 

R
ea

so
n

s 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
co

rp
o

ra
te

 

g
o

v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 a
n

d
 O

T
C

 c
o

m
p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 

(2
) 

 I
n
 a

d
d
it

io
n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

re
m

u
n
er

at
io

n
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e 

an
d
 

th
e 

au
d
it

 c
o
m

m
it

te
e 

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 
w

it
h
 t

h
e 

la
w

, 
d
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ri
ly

 s
et

 
u
p
 o

th
er

 v
ar

io
u
s 

fu
n
ct

io
n
al

 c
o

m
m

it
te

es
?

V
(2

) 
 T

h
e 

fu
n
ct

io
n
al

 c
o
m

m
it

te
es

 c
u
rr

en
tl

y
 s

et
 u

p
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

re
 t

h
e 

R
em

u
n
er

at
io

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

an
d
 t

h
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o
m

m
it

te
e.

 O
th

er
 f

u
n
ct

io
n
al

 c
o
m

m
it

te
es

 w
il

l 
b
e 

ev
al

u
at

ed
 a

n
d
 s

et
 u

p
 a

s 
n
ee

d
ed

 i
n

 t
h
e 

fu
tu

re
.

(2
) 

 T
h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

sc
al

e 
o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 
an

 
au

d
it

 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
an

d
 

a 
re

m
u
n
er

at
io

n
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e.

 I
n
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
, 

it
 

w
il

l 
b
e 

d
is

cu
ss

ed
 

w
h
et

h
er

 
to

 
ad

d
 

o
th

er
 

fu
n
ct

io
n
al

 
co

m
m

it
te

es
 

d
ep

en
d
in

g
 

o
n
 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s.

(3
) 

 
D

o
es

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
 

b
o
ar

d
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
v
al

u
at

io
n
 m

et
h
o
d
s 

an
d
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n
 

m
et

h
o
d
s,

 
co

n
d
u
ct

 
an

n
u
al

 
an

d
 

re
g
u
la

r 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
v
al

u
at

io
n
s,

 a
n
d
 r

ep
o
rt

 t
h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ev

al
u
at

io
n
s 

to
 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
, 

an
d
 u

se
 t

h
em

 a
s 

a 
re

fe
re

n
ce

 f
o
r 

th
e 

re
m

u
n
er

at
io

n
 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
al

 
d
ir

ec
to

rs
 

an
d
 

th
e 

n
o
m

in
at

io
n
 f

o
r 

re
n
ew

al
?

V
(2

)
In

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

am
en

d
ed

 "
B

o
ar

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

E
v
al

u
at

io
n
 

M
ea

su
re

s"
 

ap
p
ro

v
ed

 
b
y
 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 o

n
 M

ar
ch

 1
0
, 
2
0

2
1

w
it

h
in

 3
 

m
o
n
th

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

en
d
 

o
f 

ea
ch

 
y
ea

r,
 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
se

lf
-e

v
al

u
at

io
n
 

m
et

h
o
d
 

is
 

ad
o
p
te

d
 

to
 

ev
al

u
at

e 
th

e 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
,
 

an
d
 

th
e 

d
el

ib
er

at
in

g
 u

n
it

 i
s 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
, 

b
as

ed
 

o
n
 

sp
ec

if
ic

 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

, 
ev

al
u
at

io
n
 

st
an

d
ar

d
 

sc
o
ri

n
g
 

m
et

h
o
d
, 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 
fo

r 
as

si
st

in
g
 

in
 

th
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
v
al

u
at

io
n
 o

f 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
n
d
 

se
lf

-e
v
al

u
at

io
n
 
b
y
 
b
o
ar

d
 
m

em
b
er

s,
 
an

d
 
su

b
m

it
ti

n
g
 

th
e 

re
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
s 

a 
re

fe
re

n
ce

 f
o
r 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
5

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
an

d
 

re
m

u
n
er

at
io

n
. 

In
 

ad
d
it

io
n
, 

in
 

o
rd

er
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e 

th
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
it

 i
s 

cl
ea

rl
y
 

st
ip

u
la

te
d
 

th
at

 
at

 
le

as
t 

o
n
ce

 
ev

er
y
 

th
re

e 
y
ea

rs
an

 
ex

te
rn

al
 u

n
it

 s
h
o
u
ld

 e
v
al

u
at

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

. 

(3
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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[P
er

io
d
ic

 i
n

te
rn

al
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n
 e

v
er

y
 y

ea
r]

:
• 

T
h
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
v
al

u
at

io
n
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
2
0
2
1
 B

o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 o

f 
(e

v
al

u
at

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

d
el

ib
er

at
iv

e 
u
n
it

 a
n
d
 

th
e 

b
o
ar

d
 m

em
b
er

s)
  

an
d
 t

h
e 

ev
al

u
at

io
n
 r

es
u
lt

s 
ar

e 
as

 
fo

ll
o
w

s:
 

•E
v
al

u
at

io
n
 b

y
 d

el
ib

er
at

iv
e 

u
n
it

:

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
v
al

u
at

io
n
 

ap
p
ra

is
al

 a
sp

ec
t

It
em

P
er

ce
n
t

ag
e

A
. 
L

ev
el

 o
f 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n
 i

n
 

th
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
v
ar

io
u
s 

co
m

p
o
n
en

ts

1
2

3
0
%

B
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e 

th
e 

q
u
al

it
y
 o

f 
b
o
ar

d
 d

ec
is

io
n
s

1
2

2
5
%

C
. 
B

o
ar

d
 c

o
m

p
o
si

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

st
ru

ct
u
re

7
1
0
%

D
. 
S

el
ec

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
co

n
ti

n
u
in

g
 

ed
u
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
ir

ec
to

rs
7

2
0
%

E
. 
In

te
rn

al
 c

o
n
tr

o
l

7
1
5
%

T
o
ta

l
4
5

1
0
0
%
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A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

it
em

s 

O
p

er
at

io
n
 (

N
o

te
 1

) 
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

fo
r 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v

er
n

an
ce

 o
f 

li
st

ed
 a

n
d

 O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 

�
E

v
al

u
at

io
n

 r
es

u
lt

: 
 

A
 s

co
re

 o
f 

9
6
.0

2
 (

o
u

t 
o
f 

1
0
0

) 
w

as
 o

b
ta

in
ed

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ab

o
v

e 
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 
re

su
lt

 
b
y

 
th

e 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 
A

ff
ai

rs
 
U

n
it

 
in

 
2

0
2

1
, 

an
d

 
th

e 
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 r

es
u

lt
 w

as
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 i
n

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
n

 M
ar

ch
 4

, 
2

0
2

2
. 

B
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

2
0
2

1
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n
 r

es
u

lt
, 

an
 i

m
p
ro

v
em

en
t 

p
la

n
 w

as
 t

o
 

m
ai

n
ta

in
 o

r 
in

cr
ea

se
 t
h

e 
at

te
n

d
an

ce
 r

at
e 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 t
o

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
in

 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
n

d
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

fr
eq

u
en

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

. 
 

•D
ir

ec
to

r 
ev

al
u
at

io
n
:

  

S
el

f-
ev

al
u
at

io
n
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
b
o
ar

d
 m

em
b
er

s
It

em
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

A
. 
M

as
te

ry
 o

f 
co

m
p
an

y
 g

o
al

s 
an

d
 t

as
k
s

3
2
0
%

B
. 
A

w
ar

en
es

s 
o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
' 

D
u
ti

es
3

1
5
%

C
. 
P

ar
ti

ci
p
at

io
n
 i

n
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 o
p
er

at
io

n
s

8
2
0
%

D
. 
In

te
rn

al
 r

el
at

io
n
sh

ip
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n

3
2
0
%

E
. 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 a
n
d
co

n
ti

n
u
in

g
 

ed
u
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
ir

ec
to

rs
3

1
0
%

F
. 
In

te
rn

al
 c

o
n
tr

o
l

3
1
5
%

T
o
ta

l
2
3

1
0
0
%
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d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
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b
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 m
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ro
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 c
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 c
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e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
:

In
d
ep

en
d
en

ce

1
.W

h
et

h
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p
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 t
h
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p
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b
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b
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C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
w

eb
si

te
 t

o
 d

is
cl

o
se

 t
h
ei

r 
im

p
o
rt

an
t 

is
su

es
 o

f 
co

n
ce

rn
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

co
n
ta

ct
 

w
in

d
o
w

s 
an

d
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 m

et
h

o
d
s 

o
f 

re
le

v
an

t 
co

u
n
te

rp
ar

ts
, 
to

 r
es

p
o
n
d
 t

o
 

an
d
 a

d
d
re

ss
 r

el
ev

an
t 

is
su

es
, 

p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
u
r 

w
eb

si
te

 a
n
d
 r

ep
o
rt

 t
o
 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
an

d
 o

n
 A

u
g
u
st

 3
, 

2
0
2
1
 a

n
d
 D

ec
em

b
er

 1
7

,
2

0
2

1
 o

n
 i

m
p
o
rt

an
t 

is
su

es
 a

n
d
 r

es
p
o
n
se

s 
to

 s
ta

k
eh

o
ld

er
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s.

 I
n
 

ad
d
it

io
n
 t

o
 p

u
b
li

sh
in

g
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 B
u
si

n
es

s 
S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

n
ew

s 
o
n
 t

h
e 

p
u
b
li

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 w

eb
si

te
 a

s 
re

q
u
ir

ed
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

al
so

 d
is

cl
o
se

s 
re

le
v
an

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 w
eb

si
te

 t
o
 h

el
p
 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
s 

u
n
d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
.

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

6
.H

as
 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 s
to

ck
 a

g
en

t 
to

 h
an

d
le

 t
h
e 

af
fa

ir
s 

o
f 

th
e 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
s 

m
ee

ti
n
g
?

V
T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
st

o
ck

 
o
p
er

at
io

n
s 

(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 

sh
ar

eh
o
ld

er
 

af
fa

ir
s)

 
ap

p
o
in

te
d
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 s
to

ck
 a

g
en

cy
-C

ap
it

al
 S

ec
u
ri

ti
es

 C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

ex
ec

u
ti

o
n
.

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

7
. 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
(1

) 
 D

o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 s

et
 u

p
 a

 w
eb

si
te

 t
o

 d
is

cl
o
se

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 b
u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
?

V
(1

) 
 T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 s

et
 u

p
 a

 s
p
ec

ia
l 

ar
ea

 o
n
 i

ts
 w

eb
si

te
 t

o
 d

is
cl

o
se

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 
re

la
te

d
 
to

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
b
u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g
 b

o
ar

d
 r

es
o
lu

ti
o
n
s,

 e
tc

.)
. 
(P

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 w
eb

si
te

 h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

sh
b

io
p
h

ar
m

.c
o

m
.

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(2
) 

 W
h
et

h
er

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 o

th
er

 m
ea

n
s 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
 (

su
ch

 a
s 

se
tt

in
g
 u

p
 a

n
 

E
n
g
li

sh
 w

eb
si

te
, 
d
es

ig
n
at

in
g
 a

 p
er

so
n
 t

o
 b

e 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e 

co
ll

ec
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
 o

f 
co

m
p
an

y
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
, 
im

p
le

m
en

ti
n
g
 t

h
e 

sp
o
k
es

p
er

so
n
 s

y
st

em
, 

an
d
 p

u
tt

in
g
 u

p
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 w
eb

si
te

 d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
re

se
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

es
si

o
n
, 
et

c.
) 

 ?

V
(2

)T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 s

et
 u

p
 a

n
 E

n
g
li

sh
 w

eb
si

te
 a

n
d
 d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 a

 
d
ed

ic
at

ed
 

u
n
it

 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

ll
ec

ti
o
n
 

an
d
 

d
is

cl
o
su

re
 

o
f 

co
m

p
an

y
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
. 

In
 

ad
d
it

io
n
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

h
as

 
es

ta
b
li

sh
ed

 
a 

sp
o
k
es

p
er

so
n
 s

y
st

em
 w

it
h
 s

p
o
k
es

p
er

so
n
 a

n
d
 a

ct
in

g
 s

p
o
k
es

p
er

so
n
 

to
 

h
an

d
le

 
re

le
v
an

t 
m

at
te

rs
, 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

o
n
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
co

rp
o
ra

te
 b

ri
ef

in
g
s 

an
d
 p

re
ss

 c
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

s 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

v
ai

la
b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
w

eb
si

te
 

(s
h
ar

eh
o
ld

er
 

se
rv

ic
e/

la
te

st
 

n
ew

s)
 

 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

v
es

ti
n
g
 p

u
b
li

c 
to

 r
ea

d
.

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

it
em

s 

O
p

er
at

io
n
 (

N
o

te
 1

) 
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

fo
r 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v

er
n

an
ce

 o
f 

li
st

ed
 a

n
d

 O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 

(3
)

D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

n
n
o
u
n
ce

 a
n
d
 r

ep
o
rt

 a
n
n
u
al

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
w

it
h
in

 t
w

o
 m

o
n
th

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

en
d
 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r,

 a
n
d
 a

n
n
o
u
n
ce

 a
n
d
 r

ep
o
rt

 t
h
e 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
fi

rs
t,

 s
ec

o
n
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
ir

d
 

q
u
ar

te
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s 

o
f 

ea
ch

 
m

o
n
th

 b
ef

o
re

 t
h
e 

p
re

sc
ri

b
ed

 d
ea

d
li

n
e?

 

8
. 

D
o
es

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

h
av

e 
o
th

er
 

im
p
o
rt

an
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 t

h
at

 i
s 

h
el

p
fu

l 
to

 u
n
d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
e 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

g
o
v
er

n
an

ce
 

o
p
er

at
io

n
 

(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

li
m

it
ed

 
to

 
em

p
lo

y
ee

 
ri

g
h
ts

, 
em

p
lo

y
ee

 
ca

re
, 

in
v
es

to
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s,

 

su
p
p
li

er
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s,

 
th

e 
ri

g
h
ts

 
o
f 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
s,

 
th

e 
si

tu
at

io
n
 

o
f 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 

an
d
 

su
p
er

v
is

o
rs

 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h
er

 
tr

ai
n
in

g
, 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 
st

at
u
s 

o
f 

ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
o
li

ci
es

 
an

d
 

ri
sk

 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

st
an

d
ar

d
s,

 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 s

ta
tu

s 
o
f 

cu
st

o
m

er
 p

o
li

ci
es

, 
st

at
u
s 

o
f 

co
m

p
an

ie
s 

p
u
rc

h
as

in
g
 l

ia
b
il

it
y
 i

n
su

ra
n
ce

 f
o
r 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 

an
d
 s

u
p
er

v
is

o
rs

, 
et

c.
) 

?

V
(3

)
T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

n
n
o
u
n
ce

s 
an

d
 d

ec
la

re
s 

th
e 

an
n
u
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o
rt

 
an

d
 t

h
e 

fi
rs

t,
 s

ec
o
n
d
, 

an
d
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
ar

te
r 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
w

it
h
in

 3
 

m
o
n
th

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

en
d
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
 T

h
e 

an
n
o
u
n
ce

m
en

t 
is

 
m

ad
e 

o
n
 t

h
e 

d
ay

 a
ft

er
 t

h
e 

ap
p
ro

v
al

 o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
. 
T

h
e 

O
p
er

at
io

n
 D

ec
la

ra
ti

o
n
 i

n
 e

ac
h
 m

o
n
th

 s
h
al

l 
b
e 

an
n
o
u
n
ce

d
 3

-4
 d

ay
s 

in
 a

d
v
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
p
re

sc
ri

b
ed

 t
im

e 
li

m
it

. 

8
.(

1
) 

 E
m

p
lo

y
ee

 r
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
ee

 c
ar

e 
1
.

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 a

 r
em

u
n
er

at
io

n
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e,

 a
n
 

au
d
it

 
co

m
m

it
te

e,
 

an
 

em
p
lo

y
ee

 
w

el
fa

re
 

co
m

m
it

te
e,

 
em

p
lo

y
er

-e
m

p
lo

y
ee

 
m

ee
ti

n
g
s,

 
 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 

o
f 

a 
p
en

si
o
n
 

sy
st

em
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

eq
u
al

 
em

p
lo

y
m

en
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s,

 
h
an

d
li

n
g
 

v
ar

io
u
s 

em
p
lo

y
ee

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

es
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
ee

 g
ro

u
p
 i
n
su

ra
n
ce

, 
an

d
 a

rr
an

g
in

g
 r

eg
u
la

r 
h
ea

lt
h
 c

h
ec

k
s,

 
et

c.
, 
an

d
 a

tt
ac

h
es

 i
m

p
o
rt

an
ce

 
to

 h
ar

m
o
n
ic

 l
ab

o
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s.

  F
o
r 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s,

 p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 
P

ag
e 

1
1
0
 

o
f 

th
is

 
an

n
u
al

 
re

p
o
rt

 
“5

. 
E

m
p
lo

y
er

~
E

m
p
lo

y
ee

 
R

el
at

io
n

s”
 i

n
 "

V
. 
O

p
er

at
io

n
 O

v
er

v
ie

w
".

2
.

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 e

n
h
an

ce
 t

h
e 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 s
k
il

ls
 o

f 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s,
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 a
rr

an
g
es

 d
iv

er
si

fi
ed

 e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

es
 f

o
r 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s
in

cl
u
d

in
g
 

n
ew

 
p
er

so
n
n
el

 
tr

ai
n
in

g
, 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fu
n
ct

io
n
 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 

co
u
rs

es
, 

o
n
-t

h
e-

jo
b
 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 

co
u
rs

es
, 

an
d
 

jo
b

-r
el

at
ed

 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 
fu

n
ct

io
n
 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 

co
u
rs

es
 

to
 

cu
lt

iv
at

e 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

al
en

ts
, 

fo
r 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s,

 p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 
"5

. 
E

m
p
lo

y
er

-E
m

p
lo

y
ee

 
R

el
at

io
n
s”  

in
 

"V
. 

O
p
er

at
io

n
 

O
v
er

v
ie

w
" 

o
n
 P

ag
e 

1
1
0
 o

f 
th

is
 a

n
n
u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

.
3
.

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

tt
ac

h
es

 g
re

at
 i
m

p
o
rt

an
ce

 t
o
 t
h
e 

h
ea

lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

af
et

y
 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 
o
f 

it
s 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s.
  I

t 
h
as

 i
m

p
le

m
en

te
d
 

a 
n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

en
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
d

 
th

e 
"o

ff
ic

e 
sa

fe
ty

 a
n
d
 m

ai
n
te

n
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s"

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

"s
af

et
y
 a

n
d
 

h
y
g
ie

n
e 

w
o
rk

 
co

d
e"

 
to

 
co

n
ti

n
u
o
u
sl

y
 

st
re

n
g
th

en
 

th
e 

w
o
rk

 
en

v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

an
d
 p

er
so

n
al

 s
af

et
y
, 

fo
r 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s,

 p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 
"5

. 
E

m
p
lo

y
er

-E
m

p
lo

y
ee

 
R

el
at

io
n
s”  

in
 

“V
. 

O
p
er

at
io

n
 

O
v
er

v
ie

w
" 

o
n
 p

ag
e1

1
4
o
f 

th
is

 a
n
n
u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

.

(3
) 

 P
re

se
n
tl

y
, 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 

n
o
t 

an
n
o
u
n
ce

d
 a

n
d
 f

il
ed

 i
ts

 
an

n
u
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o
rt

 
w

it
h
in

 2
 m

o
n
th

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

en
d
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

it
em

s 

O
p

er
at

io
n
 (

N
o

te
 1

) 
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

fo
r 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v

er
n

an
ce

 o
f 

li
st

ed
 a

n
d

 O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 

(2
) 

 I
n
v
es

to
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s

1
.T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 i

s 
re

q
u
ir

ed
 b

y
 l

aw
 t

o
 d

is
cl

o
se

 i
ts

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 i

n
 

g
o
o
d
 f

ai
th

 t
o
 p

ro
te

ct
 t

h
e 

ri
g
h
ts

 a
n
d
 i

n
te

re
st

s 
o
f 

in
v
es

to
rs

 a
n
d
 

st
ak
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b
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ro
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h
e 

ri
g
h
ts

 a
n
d
 i

n
te

re
st

s 
o
f 

in
v
es

to
rs

 a
n
d
 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
s,

 i
n
 a

d
d
it

io
n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
u
b
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b
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p
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p
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b
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h
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h
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 d
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h
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at
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 p
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h
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p
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 d
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 c
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 c
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(4) Composition, responsibilities and operation of the remuneration committee 
1. Composition: 

(1) The 4th Term (current) Remuneration Committee appoints independent 
directors Yi-Min Wang, Chih-Li Wang and Rwei-Syun Chen as 
independent directors; the term of office is from May 29, 2020 to May 28, 
2023 (the same term as the Board of Directors expires). 

(2) The basic information of the members of the 4th Term Remuneration 
Committee is as follows: 

 Note 1: Please specify the number of years of relevant working experience, professional qualifications and independence of each 

Remuneration Committee member in the table. Please refer to page 11 of Appendix 3 for the professional qualifications of 

the (1) Directors and the information on the independence of the Independent Directors.  Please fill in the Independent 

Directors or others (and note that if he/she is the convener).  

Note 2: Professional Qualifications and Experience: Describe the professional qualifications and experience of individual 

Remuneration Committee members.  

Note 3:  Condition of Independence: Clarify that the Remuneration Committee members meet the conditions of independence, 

including but not limited to whether the member, his/her spouse, and relatives within the second degree is a Director, 

2. Information about the members of the Remuneration Committee:
March 31 ,  2022

Identity  

(Note 1)  

Name 

Name 
Have more than five years of work experience and the 

following professional qualifications 

Comply with independence (Note 2)  

Number of concurrently 

serving as members of the 

remuneration 

committee of other 

publicly issued companies 

Convener  

Independent 

director 

Yi-Min 

Wang 

Graduated from the Graduate School of Accounting of 

Changhua Normal University, served as the Executive 

Deputy General Manager of Yuanta Securities, and 

having more than five years of work experience in 

finance and corporate business, and does not have any 

condition as described forth in Article 30 of the 

Company Law.     
Currently serving as the Chairman of Yuanta 
Securities (Hong Kong)  Limited, Director of Yuanta 
Hong Kong Holdings (Cayman)  Limited, Director of 
Yuanta Investment Management (Cayman)  Limited, 
Director of Yuanta Asia Investments (Hong Kong)  
Limited, Director of Yuanta Securities Vietnam Ltd. 
(Authorized Representative). 

The Company has obtained a written statement from each 
Independent Director confirming that he/she and his/her 
spouse, relatives within the second degree are independent 
of the Company, and that he/she is not an employee of the 
Company and does not hold shares in the Company. 

0 

Independent 

director 

Rwei-Syun 
Chen 

Served as General Manager of Taho Pharma, VP 
Corporate Development of   NAL Pharmaceuticals 
Ltd, and Director of Faith Leaper, Co., Ltd. and having   
more than five years of work experience required for 
business and corporate business, and does not have 
any condition as described forth in Article 30 of the 
Company Law.  
Currently serving as Independent Director of Welgene 

Biotech Co., Ltd.  

The Company has obtained a written statement from each 

Independent Director confirming that he/she and his/her 

spouse, relatives within the second degree are independent 

of the Company, and that he/she is not an employee of the 

Company and does not hold shares in the Company.  
1 

Independent 

director 
Chih-Li 
Wang 

Taiwan’s practicing accountant with more than five 

years of work experience, and having none of the 

conditions as described in Article 30 of the Company 

Law. He is currently the partner accountant of  Moores 

Rowland International Accountant Firm and the 

Independent Director of PharmaEngine Inc.  

The Company has obtained a written statement from each 

Independent Director confirming of himself/herself and 

his/her spouse, relatives within the second degree relative to 

the Company, and has not acted as an employee of the 

Company. Independent Director, Chi-li   Wang, only holds 

30 shares of the Company, which is an extremely low 

shareholding ratio and does not affect his independence.  

1 

Name Resume

Yi-Min

Wang

Chairman of Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong)  Co., Ltd., and director of Yuanta Hong Kong Holdings (Cayman)  Co., Ltd., Yuanta 

Investment Management (Cayman)  Co., Ltd., and Yuanta Asia Investment (Hong Kong)  Co., Ltd., and Authorized Representative 

of Yuanta Securities Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Education: Graduate School of Accounting, Changhua Normal University

Rwei-Syun 

Chen
1. Independent Director of Welgene Biotech Co., Ltd. 

2. Education:  MBA of Columbia University (USA) and Department of Biology, National Taiwan Normal University. 

Chih-Li

Wang

Moores Rowland CPAs partner accountant, independent director of PharmaEngine, Inc.

Education: Accounting Department of Soochow University
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Supervisor or employee of the Company or its affiliated companies; whether the member, his/her spouse, and relatives 

within the second degree of kinship (or in the name of others)  holds a number and proportion of the Company’s shares or 

serves as a director, supervisor or employee of a company that has a specific relationship with the Company (refer to Clauses 

5~8, Paragraph 1 of Article 6 of the Measures for the Establishment and Exercise of Powers of the Remuneration Committee 

of Companies Listed on Stocks or Trading at the Business Office of a Securities Firm)  specified in Paragraph 1, 

Subparagraphs 5 to 8); and the amount of remuneration received for providing the Company or its affiliates with business, 

legal, financial, accounting and other services in the last two years.  

Note 4:   For disclosure, please refer to the Best Practice Reference Examples on the website of the Corporate Governance Center of 

the Taiwan Stock Exchange.  

3. Remuneration Committee's powers: 

(1) Regularly review the Company's remuneration policy and propose 

amendments. 

(2) Establish and regularly review the policies, systems, standards and structures of 

directors and managers' performance evaluation and remuneration. 

(3) Regularly evaluate and determine the remuneration of directors and managers. 

4. When the remuneration committee performs its functions and powers, it shall be based on    

the following principles: 

(1) Ensure that the Company's remuneration arrangements comply with relevant laws 

and regulations and are sufficient to attract outstanding talents. 

(2) The performance evaluation and remuneration of directors and managers should 

refer to the usual level of payment in the industry, and consider the reasonableness 

of the connection with individual performance, company operating performance 

and future risks. 

(3) Directors and managers should not be guided to engage in behaviors that exceed 

the Company's risk tolerance in pursuit of remuneration. 

(4) The ratio of dividends to directors and managers' short-term performance and the 

payment time of part of the variable salary shall be determined in consideration of 

the characteristics of the industry and the nature of the Company's business. 

(5) When determining the content and amount of directors and managers' 

remuneration, the reasonableness should be considered. The decision of directors 

and managers' remuneration should not be materially deviated from financial 

performance. If there is a major decline in profits or long-term losses, the 

remuneration to be paid shall not be higher than the previous year. If it is still higher 

than the previous year, the rationality statement should be disclosed in the annual 

report and reported to the shareholders meeting. 

(6) The members of this committee shall not participate in discussion and voting on 

their personal remuneration decisions. 
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5. The review and evaluation of the Company's salary and remuneration information in 2021 is as 
follows:

Date Term/session Content of discussions 

2021.03.10 
Second Session of 

Fourth Term

1. The Company’s 2020 Employees’ and Directors’ Remuneration 
Distribution.  

2. The Company’s 2020 Employees’ Bonus Distribution.  

3. The Company’s 2021  Sales Division Head’s Bonus Distribution 

4.  The Company’s 2021 Business Development  Division Head’s Bonus 
Distribution  

5. Proposal of the Company’s Manager Remuneration adjustment of this year. 

2021.05.04 
Third Session of 

Fourth Term 
The Company’s 2020 Director Remuneration List.  
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Title Name 

Actual 

attendance 

(B) 

Entrusted 

attendance 

Actual 

attendance rate (%) 
(B/A)  (Note) 

Remarks 

Convener Yi-min 
Wang  

2 0 100 

Member Chih-li 
Wang 

2 0 100 

Member Rwei-Syun 
Chen 

2 0 100 

Other matters to be recorded: 

1. If the Board of Directors does not adopt or revise the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee, 

it shall state the date of the Board of Directors, the date, the content of the proposal, the results of the 

resolutions of the Board of Directors, and the Company's handling of the opinions of the Remuneration 

Committee (if the compensation approved by the Board of Directors is better than the proposal should state 

the difference and the reason): no difference.

2. The resolutions of the Remuneration Committee. If members have objections or reservations and have 

records or written declarations, the Remuneration Committee should state the date, period, proposal content, 

all members' opinions and the handling of members' opinions: 

Remuneration 
Committee

Proposal content and follow-up processing Resolution result
The Company's handling of the 

opinions of the Remuneration 

Committee

Second Session of 
Fourth Term
2021.03.10 

1. The Company’s 2020 Employees’ and Directors’ 
Remuneration Distribution. 

2. The Company’s 2020 Employees’ Bonus 
Distribution.  

3. The Company’s 2021 Sales Division Head’s 
Bonus Distribution. 

4. The Company’s 2021 Business Development 
Division Head’s Bonus Distribution. 

5.  Proposal of the Company’s Manager 
Remuneration adjustment of this year. 

6. Amend the Company’s “Director Performance 
Evaluation Method”. 

7. Amend the Company’s “Functional Committee 
Performance Evaluation Method”.  

8. Amend the Company’s “Renumeration 
Committee Organization Regulations”. 

All the members present 

agreed to pass.

The proposal to the Board of 

Directors is approved by all the 

directors present.

Third Session of  
Fourth Term
2021.05.04 

1.The Company’s 2020 Director Remuneration List. . 
2. The Company’s professional manager’s promotion 

All the members present 

agreed to pass.

The proposal to the Board of 

Directors is approved by all the 

directors present.

Notes:

(1)  If a member of the Remuneration Committee resigns before the end of the year, the date of resignation should be indicated the remarks column. The 

actual attendance rate (%)  is calculated based on the number of meetings of the Remuneration Committee during their employment and the actual 

number of attendance.

(2)  Before the end of the year, if the remuneration committee is re-elected, the new and old remuneration committee members should be listed, and the 

remarks column should indicate whether the member is old, new or re-elected and the date of reelection. The actual attendance rate (%)  is calculated 

based on the number of meetings of the Remuneration Committee during their employment and their actual attendance. 

7. information and operation information of Nomination Committee member: The Company has 
not established a Nomination Committee and is thus not applicable.  

6. Information on the operation of the Remuneration Committee: 

(1) There are 3 members of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

(2) The term of the current (fourth term) members: From May 29, 2020 to May 28, 2023, 

the 2021 Remuneration Committee will meet 2 times (A).
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as
ed

 o
n
 

th
e 

o
p

er
at

in
g

 c
h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s,

 i
t 
d
o

es
 n

o
t 
n

ee
d
 t
o

 c
o
n

su
m

e 
to

o
 m

u
ch

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 a
n
d

 w
at

er
, b

u
t 
it

 

al
so

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

es
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
o
ll

ea
g
u

es
 s

av
e 

w
at

er
 a

n
d

 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

. 

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d
es

 
o

f 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v

er
n

an
ce

 
o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

•
G

en
er

al
 h

o
u
se

h
o

ld
 w

as
te

:
G

en
er

al
 d

o
m

es
ti

c 
w

as
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 s

tr
ic

tl
y
 i

m
p
le

m
en

te
d
 i

n
 r

es
o
u
rc

e 
an

d
 g

ar
b
ag

e 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o
n
 t

o
 f

ac
il

it
at

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

eu
se

 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
ce

 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

g
ar

b
ag

e.
•

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 

d
is

ca
rd

ed
 d

ru
g
s:

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
's

 d
is

p
o
sa

l 
o
f 

w
as

te
 p

ro
d
u
ct

s 
st

o
re

d
 i

n
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

ed
 

w
ar

eh
o
u
se

s 
is

 
d
o
n
e 

b
y
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 
en

v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 

en
g
in

ee
ri

n
g
 f

ir
m

s 
w

it
h
 w

as
te

 r
em

o
v
al

 p
er

m
it

s 
an

d
 i

n
 c

o
m

p
li

an
ce

 
w

it
h
 t

h
e 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
h
ea

lt
h
 b

u
re

au
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

im
p
ac

t 
o
n
 t

h
e 

ec
o
lo

g
ic

al
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

is
 m

in
im

iz
ed

. 
S

in
ce

 t
h
e 

es
ta

b
li

sh
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

o
n
 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 
1

,
 

2
0
1
0
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
h
as

 n
o
t 

b
ee

n
 i

n
v
o
lv

ed
 i

n
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
o
ll

u
ti

o
n
, 

an
d
 

w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u
e 

to
 u

p
h
o
ld

 i
ts

 c
o
n
si

st
en

t 
p
h
il

o
so

p
h
y
 i

n
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 t

o
 

co
n
ti

n
u
e 

to
 m

ai
n
ta

in
 t

h
e 

b
es

t 
en

v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 r

es
u
lt

s.
(2

) 
 

Is
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

co
m

m
it

te
d
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e 

u
ti

li
za

ti
o
n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
cy

 o
f 

v
ar

io
u
s 

fo
rm

s 
o
f 

en
er

g
y
 a

n
d
 

u
si

n
g
 

re
cy

cl
ed

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
w

it
h
 

lo
w

 
im

p
ac

t 
o
n
 

th
e 

en
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t?

V
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

d
o
es

 
n
o
t 

h
av

e 
a 

fa
ct

o
ry

, 
it

 
is

 
st

il
l 

co
m

m
it

te
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g
 e

n
er

g
y
 c

o
n
se

rv
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 I
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

s 
an

d
 i

m
p
le

m
en

ts
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
co

ll
ea

g
u
es

 t
o
 t

u
rn

 o
ff

 t
h
e 

li
g
h
ts

 d
u
ri

n
g
 l

u
n
ch

 b
re

ak
s,

 s
et

 u
p
 a

 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ar

ea
 f

o
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 p

ap
er

 o
n
 p

h
o
to

co
p
ie

rs
, 

so
rt

 g
ar

b
ag

e,
 

re
u
se

 i
n
te

rn
al

 e
n
v
el

o
p
es

, 
an

d
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
ce

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 f
o
rm

s 
ap

p
ro

v
al

 
sy

st
em

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
F

in
an

ce
’s

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 
in

v
o
ic

e 
p
o
li

cy
 t

o
 r

ed
u
ce

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
o
ll

u
ti

o
n
.

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(3
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
p
o
te

n
ti

al
 r

is
k
s 

an
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 n

o
w

 
an

d
 

in
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
, 

an
d
 

ta
k
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
re

sp
o
n
d
 

to
 

cl
im

at
e-

re
la

te
d
 i

ss
u
es

?

V
A

ll
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 p
ro

d
u
ct

s 
ar

e 
co

n
tr

ac
te

d
 o

u
t.

 T
h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 s

it
e 

is
 i

n
 t

h
e 

o
ff

ic
e,

 b
u
t 

th
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 s

ti
ll

 r
es

p
o
n
d
s 

to
 

th
e 

g
o
v
er

n
m

en
t’

s 
en

er
g
y
 s

av
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

ar
b
o
n
 r

ed
u
ct

io
n
 p

o
li

ci
es

 a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
en

ts
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 t
h
e 

im
p
ac

t 
o
n
 t

h
e 

en
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

in
 

it
s 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 s

it
es

. 
It

 w
il

l 
al

so
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 a
n
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e.

 T
h
e 

p
o

te
n
ti

al
 r

is
k
s 

an
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 

n
o
w

 
an

d
 

in
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

w
il

l 
b
e 

d
is

cu
ss

ed
 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

an
d
 c

o
o
p
er

at
io

n
 w

it
h
 c

o
o
p
er

at
in

g
 s

u
p
p
li

er
s.

(3
) 

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

h
as

 
n
o
t 

y
et

 
ta

k
en

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

re
sp

o
n
d
 

to
 

cl
im

at
e-

re
la

te
d
 

is
su

es
 

re
g
ar

d
in

g
 

th
e 

p
o
te

n
ti

al
 

ri
sk

s 
an

d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 c
li

m
at

e 
ch

an
g
e 

p
o
se

s 
to

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 n

o
w

 a
n

d
 i

n
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
.
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g
 i
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m
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E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

(2
) 

 
Is

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

co
m

m
it

te
d
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e 

u
ti

li
za

ti
o
n
 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 
o
f 

v
ar

io
u
s 

re
so

u
rc

es
 
an

d
 
u
si

n
g
 

re
cy

cl
ed

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 w

it
h
 l
o
w

 i
m

p
ac

t 
o
n
 t
h
e 

en
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t?

V
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

d
o
es

 
n
o
t 

h
av

e 
a 

fa
ct

o
ry

, 
it

 
is

 
st

il
l 

co
m

m
it

te
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g
 e

n
er

g
y
 c

o
n
se

rv
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 I
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

s 
an

d
 i

m
p
le

m
en

ts
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
co

ll
ea

g
u
es

 t
o
 t

u
rn

 o
ff

 t
h
e 

li
g
h
ts

 d
u
ri

n
g
 l

u
n
ch

 b
re

ak
s,

 s
et

 u
p
 a

 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ar

ea
 f

o
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 p

ap
er

 o
n
 p

h
o
to

co
p
ie

rs
, 

so
rt

 g
ar

b
ag

e,
 

re
u
se

 i
n
te

rn
al

 e
n
v
el

o
p
es

, 
an

d
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
ce

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 f
o
rm

s 
ap

p
ro

v
al

 
sy

st
em

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
F

in
an

ce
’s

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 
in

v
o
ic

e 
p
o
li

cy
 t

o
 r

ed
u
ce

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
o
ll

u
ti

o
n
.

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(3
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
p
o
te

n
ti

al
 r

is
k
s 

an
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 

n
o
w

 a
n
d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
, 
an

d
 t

ak
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
re

sp
o
n
d
 t

o
 c

li
m

at
e-

re
la

te
d
 i

ss
u
es

?

V
A

ll
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 p
ro

d
u
ct

s 
ar

e 
co

n
tr

ac
te

d
 o

u
t.

 T
h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 s

it
e 

is
 i

n
 t

h
e 

o
ff

ic
e,

 b
u
t 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 s

ti
ll

 r
es

p
o
n
d
s 

to
 

th
e 

g
o
v
er

n
m

en
t’

s 
en

er
g
y
 s

av
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

ar
b
o
n
 r

ed
u
ct

io
n
 p

o
li

ci
es

 a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
en

ts
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 t
h
e 

im
p
ac

t 
o
n
 t

h
e 

en
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

in
 

it
s 

o
p
er

at
in

g
 s

it
es

. 
It

 w
il

l 
al

so
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 a
n
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e.

 T
h
e 

p
o

te
n
ti

al
 r

is
k
s 

an
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 

n
o
w

 
an

d
 

in
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

w
il

l 
b

e 
d
is

cu
ss

ed
 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

an
d
 c

o
o
p
er

at
io

n
 w

it
h
 c

o
o
p
er

at
in

g
 s

u
p
p
li

er
s.

(3
) 

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 n

o
t 

y
et

 
ta

k
en

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 r
es

p
o
n
d
 t

o
 

cl
im

at
e-

re
la

te
d
 i

ss
u
es

 r
eg

ar
d
in

g
 

th
e 

p
o
te

n
ti

al
 r

is
k
s 

an
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 c
li

m
at

e 
ch

an
g
e 

p
o
se

s 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 n

o
w

 a
n
d
 i

n
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
.
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m
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E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
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ta
tu

s 
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N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

(4
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 m

ak
e 

st
at

is
ti

cs
 o

n
 g

re
en

h
o
u
se

 
g
as

 
em

is
si

o
n
s,

 
w

at
er

 
co

n
su

m
p
ti

o
n
, 

an
d
 

to
ta

l 
w

as
te

 
w

ei
g
h
t 

in
 t

h
e 

p
as

t 
tw

o
 y

ea
rs

, 
an

d
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 p

o
li

ci
es

 f
o
r 

en
er

g
y
 c

o
n
se

rv
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

ar
b
o
n
 r

ed
u
ct

io
n
, 

g
re

en
h
o
u
se

 
g
as

 
re

d
u
ct

io
n
, 

w
at

er
 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
, 

o
r 

o
th

er
 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t?

V
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 d
o

es
 n

o
t 

h
av

e 
fa

ct
o

ri
es

 a
n

d
 l

ab
o
ra

to
ri

es
, 

an
d
 t

h
e 

m
ai

n
 

p
o

ll
u

ti
o

n
 s

o
u
rc

es
 i

n
 o

p
er

at
io

n
 w

er
e 

o
n

ly
 t

h
e 

g
en

er
al

 d
o

m
es

ti
c 

w
as

te
 

o
f 

th
e 

o
ff

ic
e 

an
d

 t
h

e 
d
o

m
es

ti
c 

w
at

er
 o

f 
th

e 
g

en
er

al
 s

ta
ff

. 
C

u
rr

en
tl

y
, 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r 
en

er
g

y
 c

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
ar

b
o

n
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
 

in
 t
h

e 
o

ff
ic

e 
ar

e 
fo

rm
u

la
te

d
 a

s 
fo

ll
o

w
s,

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

em
. 

�
A

d
ju

st
 

th
e 

te
m

p
er

at
u
re

 
o
f 

th
e 

w
o
rk

p
la

ce
 

in
 

re
sp

o
n
se

 
to

 
w

ea
th

er
 f

ac
to

rs
.

•
T

u
rn

 o
ff

 t
h
e 

li
g
h
ti

n
g
 i

n
 s

o
m

e 
ar

ea
s 

d
u
ri

n
g
 b

re
ak

s.
•

T
u
rn

 o
ff

 t
h
e 

li
g
h
ti

n
g
 a

n
d
 a

ir
-c

o
n
d
it

io
n
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e 

m
ee

ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

 
o
r 

w
h
en

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

o
r 

re
ad

in
g
.

•
S

et
 u

p
 f

o
o
d
 w

as
te

 b
in

s 
an

d
 g

ar
b
ag

e 
so

rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

ec
y
cl

in
g
 b

in
s.

•
R

ec
y
cl

e 
w

as
te

 p
ap

er
 f

o
r 

re
u
se

.
•

T
h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

im
p
o
rt

in
g
 e

le
ct

ro
n
ic

 f
o
rm

s.
•

C
o
ll

ea
g
u
es

 b
ri

n
g
 t

h
ei

r 
o
w

n
 t

ab
le

w
ar

e.
•

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 t

ea
 s

et
s 

an
d
 c

u
p
s 

an
d
 t

ra
y
s 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 p

ap
er

 
cu

p
s,

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g
 d

is
p
o
sa

b
le

 t
ab

le
w

ar
e.

•
P

u
t 

u
p
 

en
er

g
y
-s

av
in

g
 

an
d
 

ca
rb

o
n
-r

ed
u
ct

io
n
 

sl
o
g
an

s 
in

 
co

m
m

o
n
 s

p
ac

es
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

m
ee

ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s 
an

d
 t

ea
 r

o
o
m

.
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

’s
 
to

ta
l 

ca
rb

o
n

 
d

io
x

id
e 

em
is

si
o

n
s 

in
 
2
0

2
0

 
an

d
 2

0
2

1
 
w

er
e 

1
9

,9
0
4

 k
g

 a
n

d
 1

3
,6

9
9

 k
g

 r
es

p
ec

ti
v

el
y

, 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 d
at

a 
fr

o
m

 T
ai

p
o

w
er

 a
n

d
 

T
ai

w
an

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y
w

it
h
o

u
t 
h

ir
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
al

 a
g

en
ci

es
 f

o
r 

th
e 

v
er

if
ic

at
io

n
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
's

 w
at

er
 c

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n
 i

n
 2

0
2
0

 a
n
d

 2
0
2

1
 w

er
e 

6
2

8
 m

et
ri

c 
to

n
s 

an
d

 5
7
4
 m

et
ri

c 
to

n
s 

re
sp

ec
ti

v
el

y
, 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n
g

 f
o

r 
o
n

ly
 0

.2
4

%
 a

n
d

 0
.3

2
%

 o
f 

ca
rb

o
n

 d
io

x
id

e 
em

is
si

o
n

s 
in

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
y

ea
r.

 T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 p

ai
d

 a
tt

en
ti

o
n

 t
o
 

th
e 

q
u

al
it

y
 o

f 
m

ed
ic

in
es

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
w

as
te

 m
ed

ic
in

es
 w

as
 s

m
al

l,
 a

n
d
 

2
.1

6
 m

et
ri

c 
to

n
s 

an
d

 4
.4

6
 m

et
ri

c 
to

n
s 

o
f 

w
as

te
 m

ed
ic

in
es

 w
it

h
 h

ar
m

le
ss

 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 a
n

d
 i

n
g

re
d

ie
n
ts

 w
er

e 
d

is
ca

rd
ed

 i
n

 2
0

2
0

 a
n

d
 2

0
2

1
 r

es
p

ec
ti

v
el

y
, 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 c
h

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

s 
o

f 
w

at
er

 c
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o
n

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

to
ta

l 

w
as

te
 w

ei
g

h
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 w

as
 n

o
t 

m
at

er
ia

l 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
.

(4
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N
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R

ea
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n
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r 

d
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n
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b
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w

ee
n

 

th
e 
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d
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f 
p
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e 
fo

r 
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n
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 d
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o
p
m
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t 

o
f 
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rp

o
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te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

4
. 
S

o
ci

al
 i

ss
u
es

(1
) 

 
D

o
es

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
 

re
le

v
an

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
o

li
ci

es
 a

n
d
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 
w

it
h
 

re
le

v
an

t 
la

w
s 

an
d
 

in
te

rn
at

io
n
al

 
h
u
m

an
 

ri
g
h
ts

 
co

n
v
en

ti
o
n
s?

V
 

(1
) 

 T
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 a

b
id

es
 b

y
 l

ab
o
r 

la
w

s 
an

d
 i

n
te

rn
at

io
n
al

 h
u
m

an
 

ri
g
h
ts

 c
o
n
v
en

ti
o
n
s,

 a
n
d
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
s 

it
s 

h
u
m

an
 r

ig
h
ts

 p
o
li

cy
 

w
it

h
 

re
fe

re
n
ce

 
to

 
th

e 
"U

n
iv

er
sa

l 
D

ec
la

ra
ti

o
n
 

o
f 

H
u
m

an
 

R
ig

h
ts

",
"T

en
 P

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
o
f 

th
e 

U
n

it
ed

 N
at

io
n
s 

G
lo

b
al

 C
o
v
en

an
t"

 a
n
d
 

"U
n
it

ed
 N

at
io

n
s 

G
u
id

in
g
 P

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
fo

r 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 H

u
m

an
 

R
ig

h
ts

” 
to

 t
re

at
 a

ll
 e

m
p
lo

y
ee

s 
fa

ir
ly

. 
R

el
ev

an
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
o
li

ci
es

 a
n
d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 p

ro
te

ct
 t

h
e 

b
as

ic
 

ri
g
h
ts

 
o
f 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s.
 

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
p
er

so
n
n
el

 
ap

p
o
in

tm
en

t 
an

d
 r

em
o
v
al

, 
re

m
u
n
er

at
io

n
 a

n
d
 w

el
fa

re
 s

y
st

em
s 

ar
e 

h
an

d
le

d
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 "
P

er
so

n
n
el

 
R

eg
u
la

ti
o
n
s"

 s
y
st

em
.

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 i
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 p

o
li

cy
:

•
P

ro
v
id

e 
a 

sa
fe

 
an

d
 
h
ea

lt
h
y
 
w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

to
 

en
su

re
 t

h
e 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
an

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
v
el

y
 r

ed
u
ce

 
th

e 
ri

sk
 o

f 
o
cc

u
p
at

io
n
al

 d
is

as
te

rs
.

•
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
to

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 p

h
y
si

ca
l 

an
d
 m

en
ta

l 
h
ea

lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

-l
if

e 
b
al

an
ce

.
•

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n
 i

n
 a

n
y
 f

o
rm

 i
s 

fo
rb

id
d
en

, 
an

d
 i

t 
is

 n
o
t 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 g

en
d
er

, 
se

x
u
al

 o
ri

en
ta

ti
o
n

,
 
ra

ce
,
 
cl

as
s,

 
ag

e,
 

m
ar

ri
ag

e,
 
la

n
g

u
ag

e,
 
id

eo
lo

g
y

,
 
re

li
g
io

n
,
 
p
ar

ty
, 

p
la

ce
 o

f 
o
ri

g
in

,
 
b
ir

th
p
la

ce
,
 
ap

p
ea

ra
n

ce
, 

fa
ci

al
 f

ea
tu

re
s,

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

an
d
 m

en
ta

l 
d
is

ab
il

it
ie

s,
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

fo
r 

d
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n
 o

r 
an

y
 

fo
rm

 
o
f 

d
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n
 

an
d
 

en
su

re
 

eq
u
al

 
jo

b
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s.

•
T

h
e 

em
p
lo

y
m

en
t 
o
f 

ch
il

d
 l
ab

o
r 

an
d
 i
ll

eg
al

 f
o
re

ig
n
 l
ab

o
r 

is
 p

ro
h
ib

it
ed

.

(l
) 
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v
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n
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f 
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st
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an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

•
F

o
rc

ed
 l

ab
o
r 

is
 p

ro
h
ib

it
ed

, 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
ar

e 
n
o
t 

re
st

ri
ct

ed
 

to
 
ta

k
e 

v
ac

at
io

n
s,

 
an

d
 
th

ey
 
ar

e 
n
o
t 

fo
rc

ed
 
to

 
w

o
rk

 
o
v
er

ti
m

e.
•

C
re

at
e 

an
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

th
at

 i
s 

w
il

li
n
g
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
e 

an
d
 

en
co

u
ra

g
e 

co
ll

ea
g
u
es

 
to

 
co

m
m

u
n
ic

at
e 

w
it

h
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
er

-e
m

p
lo

y
ee

 m
ee

ti
n
g
s.

•
P

ro
v
id

e 
d
iv

er
si

fi
ed

 
o
p
en

 
d
ia

lo
g
u
e 

ch
an

n
el

s,
 

so
 

th
at

 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

su
p
p
li

er
s 

an
d
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
p
ar

tn
er

s 
ca

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e 
fe

ed
b
ac

k
 

to
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

o
r 

re
p
o
rt

 
su

sp
ec

te
d
 v

io
la

ti
o
n
s.

•
G

u
ar

an
te

e 
th

e 
la

b
o
r 

ri
g
h
ts

 
o
f 

d
is

ad
v
an

ta
g
ed

 
o
r 

m
ar

g
in

al
iz

ed
 g

ro
u
p
s,

 h
ir

e 
th

e 
p
h
y
si

ca
ll

y
 a

n
d
 m

en
ta

ll
y
 

h
an

d
ic

ap
p
ed

 
an

d
 

ar
ra

n
g
e 

fo
r 

th
em

 
to

 
p
er

fo
rm

 
co

m
p
et

en
t 
jo

b
s,

 a
n
d
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 e
n
te

ri
n
g
 t

h
e 

w
o
rk

p
la

ce
. 
In

 
2

0
2

1
, t

h
e 

n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

p
er

so
n
s 

w
it

h
 d

is
ab

il
it

ie
s 

em
p
lo

y
ed

 
b
y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 i

s 
1
 p

er
so

n
, 

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g
 f

o
r 

1
.2

8
%

 o
f 

al
l 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
in

 l
in

e 
w

it
h
 t

h
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

"L
aw

 o
n
 t

h
e 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 o

f 
R

ig
h
ts

 a
n
d
 I

n
te

re
st

s 
o
f 

th
e 

D
is

ab
le

d
".

 
•

R
eg

u
la

rl
y
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d
 e

v
al

u
at

e 
re

la
te

d
 r

is
k
s 

an
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 

re
la

te
d
 s

y
st

em
s 

an
d
 b

eh
av

io
rs

.
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v
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T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

(2
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 a

n
d
 i

m
p
le

m
en

t 
re

as
o
n
ab

le
 e

m
p
lo

y
ee

 w
el

fa
re

 m
ea

su
re

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d
in

g
 

sa
la

ry
, 
v
ac

at
io

n
 a

n
d
 o

th
er

 b
en

ef
it

s,
 e

tc
.)

, 
an

d
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y
 r

ef
le

ct
 o

p
er

at
in

g
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r 
re

su
lt

s 
in

 e
m

p
lo

y
ee

 c
o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n
?

V
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 
ad

v
o

ca
te

s 
eq

u
al

it
y

 
in

 
th

e 
w

o
rk

p
la

ce
, 

an
d

 
is

 
co

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 i

m
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 e
q
u

al
 p

ay
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
m

en
 a

n
d
 w

o
m

en
. I

n
 2

0
2
1

, t
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

fe
m

al
e 

em
p

lo
y

ee
s 

is
 

6
0

.2
9

%
; 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
w

o
m

en
 a

s 
se

n
io

r 
ex

ec
u

ti
v

es
 i

s 
5

2
.9

4
%

. 
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

h
as

 
a 

co
m

p
et

it
iv

e 
an

d
 

fa
ir

 
sa

la
ry

 
an

d
 

re
m

u
n
er

at
io

n
 

p
o
li

cy
,
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 

b
as

ic
 

sa
la

ry
 

(n
o
n
-s

al
es

 
co

ll
ea

g
u
es

 g
u
ar

an
te

e 
1
5
 m

o
n
th

s 
o
f 

an
n
u
al

 s
al

ar
y
),

 t
h
re

e 
fe

st
iv

al
 

b
o
n
u
se

s,
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
o
n
u
se

s,
 a

n
d
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
 

in
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

"P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 B

o
n
u
s 

Is
su

an
ce

 G
u
id

el
in

es
" 

in
co

rp
o
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
to

 
th

e 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ap

p
ra

is
al

 
sy

st
em

. 
T

h
e 
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u
la
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o
n
 

an
d
 

d
is
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u
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o
n
 o

f 
an

n
u
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 p
er
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 b
o
n
u
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p
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y
ee
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sh
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l 

b
e 

b
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ed
 

o
n
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
an

n
u
al

 
K

P
I 

(k
ey

 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

) 
an

d
 t

h
e 

P
I 

(d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 i
n
d
ic

at
o
rs

) 
se

t 
b

y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 K
P

I 
an

d
 t

h
e 

P
D

P
 
(p

er
so

n
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

) 
 f

o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
al

s 
to

 u
n
d
er

ta
k
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e 

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o
f 

th
e 

ac
h
ie

v
em

en
t 
o
f 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
T

h
e 

sy
st

em
 c

le
ar

ly
 c

o
m

b
in

es
 t

h
e 

an
n
u
al

 o
p

er
at

in
g
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
es

u
lt

s 
o
f

in
d
iv

id
u
al

s,
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

w
it

h
 s

o
ci

al
 e

th
ic

s 
an

d
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
il

it
ie

s,
 a

n
d
 i

s 
u
se

d
 a

s 
a 

b
as

is
 f

o
r 

cl
ea

r 
re

w
ar

d
s 

an
d
 p

u
n
is

h
m

en
ts

.
•

A
n
n

u
al

 s
al

ar
y
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t:

 A
n
n

u
al

 s
al

ar
y
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n
 

th
e 

m
ar

k
et

 s
al

ar
y
 l

ev
el

 a
n
d

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 a
n

n
u

al
 o

p
er

at
in

g
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
In

 2
0
2

1
, 

th
e 

sa
la

ry
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d
 

n
o

n
-m

an
ag

er
s 

is
 1

.5
%

. 

•
P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

al
ar

y
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t:

 I
n

 A
p

ri
l 

an
d

 O
ct

o
b

er
 e

ac
h
 

y
ea

r,
 e

m
p

lo
y

ee
s 

w
h
o
 p

as
s 

th
e 

re
v

ie
w

 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 m

et
h
o

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

"P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

M
ea

su
re

s 

an
d

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

B
o
n

u
s 

Is
su

e 
G

u
id

el
in

es
" 

w
il

l 
b

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 

ac
co

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
ei

r 
p

ro
m

o
te

d
 l

ev
el

 i
n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

sa
la

ry
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
et

h
o

d
.

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
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re
n
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

• 
  

  
  

 B
et

te
r 

th
an

 t
h
e 

la
b
o
r 

la
w

 l
ea

v
e 

sy
st

em
:

T
h
o
se

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i

n
 s

er
v

ic
e 

fo
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
an

 t
h
re

e 
m

o
n
th

s 
an

d
 l

es
s 

th
an

 o
n
e 

y
ea

r 
ar

e 
en

ti
tl

ed
 t

o
 7

 d
ay

s 
sp

ec
ia

l 
le

av
e.

 (
B

et
te

r 
th

an
 t

h
e 

L
ab

o
r 

L
aw

) 
T

h
o
se

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i

n
 s

er
v
ic

e 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
an

 o
n
e 

y
ea

r 
b
u

t 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 t
h
re

e 
y
ea

rs
 a

re
 e

n
ti

tl
ed

 t
o
 1

0
 d

ay
s 

sp
ec

ia
l 

le
av

e.
 (

B
et

te
r 

th
an

 t
h
e 

L
ab

o
r 

L
aw

) 
T

h
o
se

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i

n
 s

er
v
ic

e 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
an

 t
h

re
e 

y
ea

rs
 a

n
d
 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 f

iv
e 

y
ea

rs
 a

re
 e

n
ti

tl
ed

 t
o
 1

4
 d

ay
s 

o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l 

le
av

e.
T

h
o
se

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i

n
 s

er
v
ic

e 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
an

 f
iv

e 
y
ea

rs
 a

n
d
 

le
ss

 t
h
an

 t
en

 y
ea

rs
 a

re
 e

n
ti

tl
ed

 t
o
 1

5
 d

ay
s 

o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l 

le
av

e.
 F

o
r 

th
o
se

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i

n
 s

er
v
ic

e 
fo

r 
o
v
er

 t
en

 y
ea

rs
, 

o
n
e 

d
ay

 w
il

l 
b
e 

ad
d
ed

 t
o
 t

h
e 

en
d
 o

f 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r 

u
n

ti
l 

a 
to

ta
l 

o
f 

3
0
 d

ay
s 

o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l 

le
av

e.
O

th
er

 e
m

p
lo

y
ee

 w
el

fa
re

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
d
et

ai
le

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

A
n
n
u
al

 
R

ep
o
rt

 o
n
 p

ag
e 

1
1
0
 ”

V
. 
O

p
er

at
io

n
 O

v
er

v
ie

w
,
 
5

. 
E

m
p
lo

y
er

-E
m

p
lo

y
ee

 R
el

at
io

n
s"

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 w

eb
si

te
.
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

(3
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 p

ro
v
id

e 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
w

it
h
 a

 s
af

e 
an

d
 h

ea
lt

h
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t,

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v

id
e 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
w

it
h
 r

eg
u
la

r 
sa

fe
ty

 a
n
d
 h

ea
lt

h
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
?

V
�

S
af

e 
an

d
 h

ea
lt

h
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t:

 T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 i

s 
co

m
m

it
te

d
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

a 
sa

fe
 

an
d
 

h
y
g
ie

n
ic

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

en
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

fo
r 

co
ll

ea
g
u
es

. 
It

 
h
as

 
es

ta
b
li

sh
ed

 
"O

ff
ic

e 
S

af
et

y
 a

n
d
 M

ai
n
te

n
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s"

, 
"S

af
et

y
 a

n
d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e 

W
o
rk

 
R

u
le

s"
 

(i
m

p
le

m
en

te
d
 

af
te

r 
ap

p
ro

v
al

 
b
y
 

th
e 

co
m

p
et

en
t 

au
th

o
ri

ty
),

 
an

d
 
se

t 
u
p
 
o
n
e 

sa
n
it

ar
y
 
st

af
f 

fo
r 

o
cc

u
p
at

io
n
al

 s
af

et
y

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 c
le

an
in

g
 

co
m

p
an

y
 t

o
 m

ai
n
ta

in
 t

h
e 

sa
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 t

id
in

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

o
ff

ic
e;

 
in

 a
d
d
it

io
n
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 l

o
ca

te
d
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 i

n
 t

h
e 

N
an

 
g

an
g

 S
o

ft
w

ar
e 

P
ar

k
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

as
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 f

ir
e 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

, 
se

cu
ri

ty
 a

n
d
 s

an
it

at
io

n
 s

y
st

em
. 

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 p

ar
ti

ci
p
at

es
 

in
 t

h
e 

fi
re

 d
ri

ll
s 

an
d
 e

ar
th

q
u
ak

e 
d
is

as
te

r 
p
re

v
en

ti
o
n
 d

ri
ll

s,
 

et
c.

 h
el

d
 b

y
 t
h
e 

p
ar

k
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
ev

er
y
 y

ea
r.

 I
n

 
ad

d
it

io
n
 

to
 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
p
er

so
n
n
el

 
to

 
st

at
io

n
 

an
d
 

p
at

ro
l 
th

e 
p
ar

k
, e

n
tr

an
ce

 a
n
d
 e

x
it

 c
o
n
tr

o
l,

 a
n
d
 e

le
v
at

o
r 

fl
o
o
r 

co
n
tr

o
l,

 t
h
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 a
n
d
 e

x
it

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 a
cc

es
s 

co
n
tr

o
l 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

sa
fe

ty
 
o
f 

co
ll

ea
g
u
es

. 
N

o
 
em

p
lo

y
ee

 
o

cc
u

p
at

io
n

al
 
ac

ci
d

en
t 

o
cc

u
rr

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 i
n

 2
0

2
1

. 
•

P
er

so
n
al

 i
n
su

ra
n
ce

: 
In

 a
d
d
it

io
n
 t

o
 i

n
su

ri
n
g
 l

ab
o
r 

in
su

ra
n
ce

  
 

an
d
 

n
at

io
n
al

 
h
ea

lt
h
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 
fo

r 
al

l 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

la
w

, 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n
, 

al
l 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
ar

e 
al

so
 

in
su

re
d
 

b
y
 

g
ro

u
p
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

. 
T

h
e 

co
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

p
h
y
si

ca
l 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 
co

v
er

s 
ac

ci
d
en

ta
l 

in
ju

ry
 
in

su
ra

n
ce

 
fr

o
m

 
1
 
m

il
li

o
n
 
d
o
ll

ar
s 

to
 
5
 

m
il

li
o
n
 d

o
ll

ar
s,

 
2
0
,0

0
0
 d

o
ll

ar
s 

p
er

 p
er

so
n
 i

n
ju

ry
 m

ed
ic

al
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 
an

d
 

h
o
sp

it
al

iz
at

io
n
 

m
ed

ic
al

 
in

su
ra

n
ce

; 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

as
si

g
n
s 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
w

h
o
 

tr
av

el
 

ab
ro

ad
, 

th
e 

g
en

er
al

 a
ff

ai
rs

 u
n
it

 w
il

l 
in

su
re

 t
ra

v
el

 s
af

et
y
 i

n
su

ra
n
ce

, 
an

d
 

th
e 

ad
d
it

io
n
al

 i
n
su

ra
n
ce

 l
im

it
 w

il
l 

b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n
 
to

 
en

su
re

 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 
o
f 

th
e 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
o
n
 

tr
av

el
.

(3
) 

N
o
 d
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n
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

• 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

h
ec

k
u

p
 &

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
: 

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

tt
ac

h
es

 g
re

at
 

im
p
o
rt

an
ce

 t
o
 t

h
e 

h
ea

lt
h
 o

f 
co

ll
ea

g
u
es

. 
In

 2
0
2
1
, 

th
e 

W
el

fa
re

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

ar
ra

n
g
ed

 i
n
fl

u
en

za
 v

ac
ci

n
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 g

en
et

ic
 c

an
ce

r 
te

st
in

g
 

fo
r 

al
l 

co
ll

ea
g
u
es

. 
T

h
e 

g
ro

u
p
 

h
el

d
 

m
an

y
 

d
is

ea
se

 
tr

ai
n
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

es
, 

an
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
ee

s 
w

er
e 

fr
ee

 t
o
 p

ar
ti

ci
p
at

e.
 I

n
 

ad
d
it

io
n
, 

th
e 

fa
m

il
y
 m

em
b
er

s 
o
f 

co
ll

ea
g
u
es

 w
er

e 
w

el
co

m
e 

to
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e;
 e

v
er

y
 y

ea
r,

 t
h
e 

co
m

p
an

y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e 

g
ro

u
p
 h

o
ld

 m
an

y
 

d
is

ea
se

 
tr

ai
n
in

g
 

co
u
rs

es
, 

an
d
 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
ar

e 
w

el
co

m
e 

to
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e.

(4
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 e
ff

ec
ti

v
e 

ca
re

er
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
s 

fo
r 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s?

V
T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 a

 l
ea

rn
in

g
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

, 
co

n
ti

n
u
ed

 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e 

T
D

P
 (

T
al

en
t 

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
) 

 k
ey

 t
al

en
t 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

sy
st

em
, 

an
d
 

in
cl

u
d
ed

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
K

P
I 

(k
ey

 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 i
n
d
ic

at
o
rs

) 
 t

o
 r

es
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n
al

 n
ee

d
s 

an
d
 

cu
lt

iv
at

e 
fu

tu
re

 l
ea

d
er

s;
 p

ro
m

o
te

 L
E

A
P

 (
L

ea
d
er

sh
ip

 E
n
h
an

ce
m

en
t 

A
ct

io
n

) 
 
P

la
n
) 

 
to

 
st

re
n
g
th

en
 
th

e 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
an

d
 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 
ca

p
ab

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
m

ar
k
et

in
g
 e

x
ec

u
ti

v
es

; 
im

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
P

D
P

 
(P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 
P

 o
r 

g
ra

m
) 

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 

an
d
 

ID
P

 
(I

n
d
iv

id
u
al

 
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

P
la

n
) 

 
p
er

so
n
al

 
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

p
la

n
 

to
 

en
ab

le
 

em
p
lo

y
ee

s 
to

 
ca

rr
y
 

o
u
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
p
er

so
n
al

 l
ea

rn
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

ar
ee

r 
d
ev

el
o
p

m
en

t.
 T

h
e 

p
la

n
 s

h
al

l 
se

t 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
y
ea

r’
s 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

d
ir

ec
ti

o
n
 

an
d
 

m
et

h
o

d
s 

an
d
 

th
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 r

es
o
u
rc

es
 b

ef
o
re

 M
ar

ch
 3

1
 e

ac
h
 y

ea
r,

 a
n
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

at
 t

h
e 

en
d
 o

f 
th

e 
y
ea

r,
 a

n
d
 s

et
 a

n
d
 a

d
ju

st
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 y
ea

r’
s 

g
o
al

s 
ac

co
rd

in
g
ly

.

(4
) 
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 d
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P
ro

m
o
ti

n
g

 i
te

m
s 

 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

(5
) 

 
W

it
h
 

re
g
ar

d
 

to
 

cu
st

o
m

er
 

h
ea

lt
h
 

an
d
 

sa
fe

ty
,
 

cu
st

o
m

er
 p

ri
v
ac

y
, 

m
ar

k
et

in
g
 a

n
d
 l

ab
el

in
g
 o

f 
p
ro

d
u
ct

s 
an

d
 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
an

d
 

re
la

te
d
 

is
su

es
, 

d
o
es

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

fo
ll

o
w

 r
el

ev
an

t 
la

w
s 

an
d
 r

eg
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 i

n
te

rn
at

io
n
al

 
st

an
d
ar

d
s,

 a
n
d
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 r

el
ev

an
t 
co

n
su

m
er

o
r 

cu
st

o
m

er
 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 p

o
li

ci
es

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
ea

l 
p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s?

V
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 h
as

 e
st

ab
li

sh
ed

 a
 G

D
P

 (
G

o
o
d

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n
 P

ra
ct

ic
e)

 
sy

st
em

 a
n

d
 p

as
se

d
 t

h
e 

re
v

ie
w

. 
G

D
P

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

es
 t

h
e 

ri
g

o
ro

u
s 

q
u

al
it

y
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sp
ir

it
 o

f 
d

ru
g

 G
M

P
 a

n
d

 c
o

v
er

s 
th

e 
en

ti
re

 p
ro

d
u

ct
 l

if
e 

cy
cl

e 
o

f 
d

ru
g
 q

u
al

it
y
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e 
q

u
al

it
y

 o
f 

th
e 

d
ru

g
 

af
te

r 
it

 l
ea

v
es

 t
h

e 
fa

ct
o

ry
 d

u
ri

n
g

 s
to

ra
g

e 
an

d
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
. 
A

n
d

 t
h

e 
in

te
g

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ac

k
ag

in
g

 i
s 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e 
q

u
al

it
y

 a
n

d
 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ed
ic

in
e 

u
se

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
li

c.
T

h
e 

d
ru

g
s 

so
ld

 b
y

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

ar
e 

p
re

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n
 

d
ru

g
s 

an
d

 
ar

e 
n

o
t 

d
ir

ec
tl

y
 

so
ld

 
to

 
co

n
su

m
er

s.
 

T
h

e 
p

ro
d

u
ct

 
n

am
es

, 
o

u
te

r 
b

o
x

es
, 

p
re

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n
 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 l
ab

el
s 

o
f 

th
e 

d
ru

g
s 

ar
e 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
"D

ru
g

 I
n

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n
 G

u
id

el
in

es
".

 T
h

e 
ad

v
er

ti
se

m
en

ts
 

fo
r 

d
ru

g
 m

ar
k

et
in

g
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

co
m

p
et

en
t 

h
ea

lt
h

 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ro

v
al

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o
 t

h
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
“D

ru
g
 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
L

aw
”.

 
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 
h

as
 

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 
a 

p
er

so
n

al
 

d
at

a 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 t
o
 m

an
ag

e 
an

d
 p

ro
te

ct
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 

p
ri

v
ac

y
. 

T
h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
er

so
n

al
 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

d
it

, 
cr

is
is

 
p

re
v

en
ti

o
n

 
an

d
 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
, 

it
 i

s 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

 d
at

a.
 T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 h
as

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 a
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 s

er
v

ic
e 

h
o

tl
in

e 
an

d
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 
m

ai
lb

o
x

 
o
n

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 w
eb

si
te

 
to

 
p

ro
v

id
e 

co
n

su
m

er
s 

w
it

h
 

ch
an

n
el

s 
fo

r 
in

q
u

ir
ie

s 
o
r 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
It

 
h

as
 

al
so

 
es

ta
b

li
sh

ed
 

"C
u

st
o

m
er

 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
H

an
d

li
n

g
 

M
ea

su
re

s"
 

an
d

 
"P

ro
d

u
ct

 
R

ec
y

cl
in

g
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
M

ea
su

re
s"

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

p
ro

d
u

ct
 r

es
p
o

n
si

b
le

 
p

er
so

n
n

el
 p

ro
v

id
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 s

p
ee

d
y

 r
es

p
o

n
se

: 
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

n
 

"a
d

v
er

se
 d

ru
g

 r
ea

ct
io

n
 n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
" 

o
p

er
at

io
n

 m
et

h
o

d
, 
an

d
 t
h
e 

d
ru

g
 

sa
fe

ty
 t

ea
m

 i
s 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

h
an

d
li

n
g

 t
h

e 
n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o
n

 o
f 

ad
v

er
se

 
d

ru
g

 r
ea

ct
io

n
s.

(5
) 
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 d
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b
et

w
ee

n
 

th
e 

co
d
es

 
o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

g
o
v

er
n
an

ce
 

o
f 

li
st

ed
 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

(6
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 s

u
p
p
li

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
o
li

ci
es

 t
h
at

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
su

p
p
li

er
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 r

el
ev

an
t 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

o
n
 t

o
p
ic

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
en

v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
p
ro

te
ct

io
n
, 

o
cc

u
p
at

io
n
al

 s
af

et
y
 a

n
d
 h

ea
lt

h
,
 
o
r 

la
b
o
r 

h
u
m

an
 r

ig
h
ts

,
 

an
d
 t

h
ei

r 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
?

V
 

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 
re

g
ar

d
s 

su
p

p
li

er
s 

as
 
im

p
o

rt
an

t 
p

ar
tn

er
s,

 
g
u

id
es

 
su

p
p

li
er

s 
to

 c
o

o
p

er
at

e 
in

 a
 l
o
n
g

-t
er

m
, t

o
w

ar
d

s 
a 

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

 s
u

p
p

ly
 

ch
ai

n
 

th
at

 
d

ev
el

o
p

s 
st

ea
d

il
y

, 
an

d
 

h
as

 
es

ta
b

li
sh

ed
 

su
p

p
li

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 
p

o
li

ci
es

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e 
st

ab
il

it
y

 o
f 

p
ro

d
u

ct
s 

an
d

 s
u
p

p
ly

 
ch

ai
n

s.
 S

u
p

p
li

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p

o
li

ci
es

 i
n

cl
u

d
e:

(1
)

N
ew

 s
u

p
p

li
er

 e
v

al
u

at
io

n
 

�
W

it
h

 P
IC

/S
 G

M
P

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

. 
• 

P
er

fo
rm

 o
n

-s
it

e 
an

d
 w

ri
tt

en
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

to
 e

v
al

u
at

e 
m

an
u

fa
ct

u
ri

n
g
 

sy
st

em
s,

 q
u

al
it

y
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 s

y
st

em
s,

 q
u

al
it

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
sy

st
em

s,
 

w
ar

eh
o

u
si

n
g

 s
y

st
em

s,
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 s
y

st
em

s,
 a

n
d

 v
al

id
at

io
n

 s
y

st
em

s.
 

T
h

o
se

 w
h

o
 h

av
e 

an
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n

 s
co

re
 o

f 
6

0
 p

o
in

ts
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
re

 
el

ig
ib

le
 t

o
 b

e 
li

st
ed

 a
s 

q
u

al
if

ie
d

 s
u

p
p

li
er

s.
  
 

(2
)

R
e-

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

su
p

p
li

er
s 

ev
er

y
 t

h
re

e 
y

ea
rs

. 
(3

)
C

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v

e 
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 i

s 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

re
g

u
la

rl
y

 e
v

er
y

 y
ea

r:
 

�
C

o
n

d
u

ct
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n

 o
n

ce
 a

 y
ea

r.
 

�
E

v
al

u
at

io
n

 i
te

m
s 

in
cl

u
d

e 
q

u
al

it
y

, 
d

el
iv

er
y
 d

at
e 

an
d

 s
er

v
ic

e,
 e

tc
. 

�
T

em
p

o
ra

ri
ly

 s
to

p
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

w
h

en
 s

co
ri

n
g
 i

s 
b

el
o

w
 6

0
 p

o
in

ts
. 

�
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 
p

o
in

ts
 

w
il

l 
b

e 
aw

ar
d

ed
 

fo
r 

su
p

p
li

er
s 

w
h
o

 
h

av
e 

o
b

ta
in

ed
 

en
v

ir
o

n
m

en
ta

l,
 

o
cc

u
p

at
io

n
al

 
sa

fe
ty

 
an

d
 

h
ea

lt
h

, 
an

d
 

la
b

o
r 

ri
g

h
ts

 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
(s

u
ch

 
as

 
H

S
A

S
1

8
0

0
1

 
o

cc
u

p
at

io
n

al
 

sa
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 h

ea
lt

h
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

, 
IS

O
4

5
0
0

1
 o

cc
u

p
at

io
n

al
 

sa
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 h
ea

lt
h

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
, 

IS
O

1
4

0
0

1
 e

n
v

ir
o
n

m
en

ta
l 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
, 

et
c.

) 
an

d
 

su
b

m
it

 
th

e 
su

p
p

li
er

 
su

st
ai

n
ab

le
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

se
lf

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

n
ai

re
. 

 
(4

)
R

eg
u
la

r 
an

d
 i

rr
eg

u
la

r 
m

ee
ti

n
g
s 

w
it

h
 s

u
p
p
li

er
s.

F
o

r 
d

et
ai

le
d

 
su

p
p

li
er

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p

o
li

ci
es

, 
p

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

's
 w

eb
si

te
.

(6
) 

T
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
es

 
su

p
p

li
er

s 
to

 f
o

ll
o

w
 r

el
ev

an
t 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 o
b

ta
in

 r
el

ev
an

t 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
o

n
 i

ss
u

es
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

en
v

ir
o

n
m

en
ta

l 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
, 

o
cc

u
p

at
io

n
al

 s
af

et
y

 a
n

d
 h

ea
lt

h
 o

r 
la

b
o

r 
ri

g
h

ts
, 

an
d

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

th
em

 i
n

 
th

e 
su

p
p

li
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
o

li
cy

. 
 

(N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce

) 
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

�
Su

pp
lie

r 
Se

lf-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
B

eg
in

n
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
2

0
2
1

 s
u

p
p
li

er
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n

, 
o

u
r 

co
m

p
an

y
 i

ss
u

ed
 i

ts
 

su
p

p
li

er
s 

an
 

an
n
u

al
 

se
lf

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

n
ai

re
. 

E
ac

h
 

su
p

p
li

er
 

co
n

d
u

ct
s 

a 
se

lf
-a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o

n
 
it

s 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 
w

it
h

 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 
en

v
ir

o
n
m

en
t,

 l
ab

o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
, 

h
u

m
an

 r
ig

h
ts

, 
so

ci
et

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s,

 s
o
 

th
at

 o
u

r 
co

m
p

an
y

 c
an

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

si
tu

at
io

n
 o

f 
su

st
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n
d

at
io

n
 

E
at

in
g
 i

s 
su

ch
 a

n
 o

rd
in

ar
y
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

ev
er

y
d

ay
 l

if
e,

 b
u
t 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
el

d
er

ly
 p

eo
p

le
 i

t 
is

 u
n

fo
rt

u
n

at
el

y
 n

o
t 

a 
ce

rt
ai

n
ty

. 
O

n
 o

u
r 

te
n

th
 a

n
n
iv

er
sa

ry
, 

T
S

H
 B

io
P

h
ar

m
 h

as
 r

ai
se

d
 

2
5
,0

0
0

N
T

D
 t
o
 d

o
n

at
e 

to
 t
h
e 

H
o

n
g
d

ao
 S

en
io

r 
C

it
iz

en
s 

W
el

fa
re

 F
o
u

n
d

at
io

n
 t
o
 p

u
rc

h
as

e 
co

o
k
in

g
 o

il
, p

ro
v

id
in

g
 n

ee
d
ed

 c
ar

e 
an

d
 a

tt
e
n

ti
o
n
 t
o

 e
ld

er
 p

eo
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
av

e 
tr

o
u
b

le
 

co
o

k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
em

se
lv

es
 d

u
e 

to
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
li

m
it

at
io

n
s,

 o
r 

w
h
o

 l
iv

e 
al

o
n

e,
 o

v
er

lo
o
k

ed
 b

y
 s

o
ci

et
y
, 
o

r 
w

h
o

 d
u

e 
to

 c
h

ro
n
ic

 d
is

ea
se

s 
n

ee
d
 m

ea
l 

p
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 h

el
p

. 
 

S
p

re
ad

in
g

 t
h
e 

L
o

v
e 

It
em

s 
fo

r 
A

fr
ic

a 
D

ri
v

e 
O

n
 t

h
is

 o
cc

as
io

n
, 

T
S

H
 B

io
P

h
ar

m
 s

p
re

ad
 l

o
v
in

g
 k

in
d

n
es

s 
n

o
t 

ju
st

 i
n
 T

ai
w

an
 b

u
t 

to
 A

fr
ic

a 
as

 w
el

l!
 W

e 
h
el

d
 a

 f
u
n

d
ra

is
er

 t
o

 c
o

ll
ec

t 
o

ld
 s

h
o

es
, 

cl
o
th

es
, 

b
ag

s,
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 

es
se

n
ti

al
s.

 U
lt

im
at

el
y

 c
o
ll

ec
ti

n
g
 o

v
er

 7
0
 i

te
m

s 
fo

r 
d

o
n
at

io
n

, 
T

S
H

 B
io

P
h
ar

m
 i

s 
w

o
rk

in
g

 h
ar

d
 t

o
 s

p
re

ad
 l

o
v

e 
an

d
 k

in
d
n

es
s 

to
 e

v
er

y
 c

o
rn

er
 o

f 
th

e 
g

lo
b

e!
  

T
h

re
e 

F
es

ti
v

al
s 

C
h
ar

it
y
 S

p
o

n
so

rs
h

ip
 

S
tr

iv
in

g
 t
o

w
ar

d
 “

D
ec

en
t 
W

o
rk

 a
n
d

 E
co

n
o

m
ic

 G
ro

w
th

,”
 t
h
e 

8
th
 o

f 
th

e 
U

n
it

ed
 N

at
io

n
s 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
G

o
al

s 
(S

D
G

s)
, w

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 h

ig
h

-q
u

al
it

y
 p

ro
d
u

ct
s 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e 

sh
el

te
re

d
 w

o
rk

sh
o
p
 o

f 
X

in
lu

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
an

d
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n
al

 F
o
u
n

d
at

io
n
 a

s 
S

p
ri

n
g
 F

es
ti

v
al

 g
if

ts
, 
so

 t
h
at

 p
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
 i

n
te

ll
ec

tu
al

 d
is

ab
il

it
ie

s,
 a

u
ti

sm
, 
D

o
w

n
 s

y
n
d

ro
m

e,
 c

er
eb

ra
l 

p
al

sy
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
an

d
 i

n
te

ll
ec

tu
al

 d
is

ab
il

it
ie

s 
ca

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
em

se
lv

es
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

. 
D

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e 

D
ra

g
o
n
 B

o
at

 F
es

ti
v
al

, 
w

e 
sp

o
n

so
re

d
 t

h
e 

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

P
eo

p
le

 
w

it
h

 A
L

S
, 

an
d

 d
o

n
at

ed
 p

ic
tu

re
 b

o
o
k

s 
an

d
 c

an
v

as
 b

ag
s 

cr
ea

te
d

 b
y

 t
h

e 
A

ss
o
ci

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
ed

ia
 a

n
d

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 s

o
 t

h
at

 m
o

re
 p

eo
p
le

 c
an

 u
n
d

er
st

an
d

 t
h
e 

d
is

ea
se

, 
an

d
 t

o
 

su
p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

as
so

ci
at

io
n

 t
o
 e

n
h

an
ce

 i
ts

 o
p
er

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 s
er

v
e 

m
o

re
 p

at
ie

n
ts

. 
D

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e 

2
0
2
1

 M
id

-a
u

tu
m

n
 F

es
ti

v
al

, 
th

e 
D

o
w

n
's

 S
y
n
d

ro
m

e 
F

o
u

n
d

at
io

n
’s

 "
L

u
n

ar
 P

ar
ad

is
e 

C
re

at
iv

e 
M

o
o
n
ca

k
e 

G
if

t 
B

o
x

" 
w

as
 s

el
ec

te
d
 a

s 
o
u

r 
o

ff
ic

ia
l 
M

id
-A

u
tu

m
n
 F

es
ti

v
al

 g
if

t,
 i
n
 a

n
 e

ff
o

rt
 t
o

 e
n
h
an

ce
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

en
t 
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
p

er
so

n
s 

w
it

h
 D

o
w

n
 s

y
n

d
ro

m
e,

 
w

h
il

e 
p

ro
v

id
in

g
 t

h
em

 s
k

il
ls

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

so
ci

al
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
-q

u
al

it
y

 s
er

v
ic

es
. 
 

N
o

te
 1

: 
If

 y
o
u

 c
h

ec
k

 "
Y

es
" 

fo
r 

th
e 

ex
ec

u
ti

o
n

 s
ta

tu
s,

 p
le

as
e 

sp
ec

if
y

 t
h

e 
im

p
o

rt
an

t 
p
o
li

ci
es

, 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s,
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d
 e

x
ec

u
ti

o
n
 s

ta
tu

s 
ad

o
p

te
d
. 

 I
f 

y
o
u

 c
li

ck
 “

N
o

” 
fo

r 
th

e 
ex

ec
u

ti
o
n

 s
ta

tu
s,

 p
le

as
e 

ex
p

la
in

 t
h

e 
ci

rc
u

m
st

an
ce

s 
an

d
 

re
as

o
n

s 
fo

r 
d

is
cr

ep
an

ci
es

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 t
h

e 
p
la

n
s 

o
f 

re
le

v
an

t 
p
o

li
ci

es
, 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s 
an

d
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

k
en

 i
n

 t
h
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

N
o

te
 2

: 
T

h
e 

m
at

er
ia

l 
p

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
re

fe
r 

to
 t

h
o

se
 w

it
h

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
im

p
ac

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

's
 i

n
v

es
to

rs
 a

n
d
 o

th
er

 s
ta

k
eh

o
ld

er
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l,

 s
o

ci
al

 a
n
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
o

v
er

n
an

ce
 i

ss
u

es
. 

 
N

o
te

 3
: 

F
o

r 
d

is
cl

o
su

re
 m

et
h

o
d

s,
 p

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e 

B
es

t 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 E

x
am

p
le

s 
o
n

 t
h
e 

w
eb

si
te

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 G

o
v

er
n
an

ce
 C

en
te

r 
o

f 
th

e 
T

ai
w

an
 S

to
ck

 E
x

ch
an

g
e.

 

-68-



(6
)

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 in

te
gr

ity
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
itu

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
di

ff
er

en
ce

s a
nd

 r
ea

so
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 m
an

ag
em

en
t c

od
e 

of
 th

e 
lis

te
d 

an
d 

O
T

C
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 
E

x
ec

u
ti

o
n

 s
ta

tu
s 

 (
N

o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
su

st
ai

n
ab

le
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

1
. 
F

o
rm

u
la

te
 i

n
te

g
ri

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
o
li

ci
es

 a
n
d
 p

la
n
s 

(1
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ri

ty
 o

p
er

at
io

n
 

p
o

li
cy

 a
p
p
ro

v
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
an

d
 c

le
ar

ly
 

in
d
ic

at
e 

th
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 o

p
er

at
io

n
 p

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 e

x
te

rn
al

 d
o
cu

m
en

ts
, 
as

w
el

l 
as

 t
h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

en
io

r
m

an
ag

em
en

t’
s 

co
m

m
it

m
en

t 
to

 
ac

ti
v
el

y
 i

m
p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
o
p
er

at
io

n
 p

o
li

cy
?

V
(1

)
In

te
g
ri

ty
 

is
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
co

rp
o
ra

te
 

cu
lt

u
re

 
an

d
 

co
re

 
v

al
u

es
. 

T
h

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

u
p
h
o
ld

s 
th

is
 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

 t
o
 o

p
er

at
e 

it
s 

b
u
si

n
es

s,
 a

n
d
 h

as
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
d
 t

h
e 

"I
n
te

g
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
o
d
e"

, 
"I

n
te

g
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
p
er

at
io

n
 P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
an

d
 B

eh
av

io
r 

G
u

id
el

in
es

" 
an

d
 
th

e 
"R

ep
o
rt

 
S

y
st

em
” 

fo
r 

d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

r.
 

T
h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 

an
d
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fo
ll

o
w

 
re

le
v
an

t 
la

w
s 

an
d
 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 

si
g
n
 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

o
f 

co
m

p
li

an
ce

 
w

it
h

 
in

te
g
ri

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 
T

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h

ly
se

lf
-d

is
ci

p
li

n
ed

. 
T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
's

 
w

eb
si

te
 

an
d
 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

so
ci

al
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
o
th

 
d
is

cl
o
se

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
's

 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
-b

as
ed

 o
p
er

at
in

g
 p

o
li

ci
es

, 
an

d
 

re
p
o
rt

 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 

st
at

u
s 

to
 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ev

er
y
 y

ea
r.

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(2
)

W
h
et

h
er

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

h
as

 
es

ta
b
li

sh
ed

 
a 

ri
sk

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
m

ec
h
an

is
m

 
fo

r 
d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
co

n
d
u
ct

, 
re

g
u
la

rl
y
 a

n
al

y
ze

s 
an

d
 e

v
al

u
at

es
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 

a 
h
ig

h
er

 
ri

sk
 

o
f 

d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
co

n
d
u
ct

 
in

 
th

e 
b
u
si

n
es

s 
sc

o
p
e,

 
an

d
 
fo

rm
u
la

te
s 

a 
p
la

n
 
to

 
p
re

v
en

t 
d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
co

n
d
u
ct

, 
an

d
 

at
 

le
as

t 
co

v
er

s 
th

e 
p
re

ca
u
ti

o
n
ar

y
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 s
ec

ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

rt
ic

le
 7

 
P

ar
ag

ra
p
h
 2

 o
f 

th
e 

“I
n
te

g
ri

ty
 G

u
id

el
in

es
 f

o
r 

li
st

ed
 

an
d

 O
T

C
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s”

. 

V
(2

) 
 

T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d
 

th
e 

"C
o
d
e 

o
f 

In
te

g
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t"

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ev
al

u
at

io
n
 m

ec
h
an

is
m

 t
o
 a

n
al

y
ze

 
an

d
 e

v
al

u
at

e 
b
u
si

n
es

s 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 a

 h
ig

h
er

 r
is

k
 o

f 
d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
co

n
d
u
ct

 i
n

th
e 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
sc

o
p
e.

 I
t 

re
q
u
ir

es
 d

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
m

an
ag

er
s,

 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s,
 a

n
d
 a

ss
ig

n
ee

s,
 a

n
d
 o

th
er

 r
el

ev
an

t 
p
er

so
n
n
el

 t
o

 t
ru

ly
 

ab
id

e 
b
y
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
n
o
rm

s 
o
f 

p
re

v
en

ti
n
g
 

d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

r.
 I

f 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
en

co
u
n
te

r 
et

h
ic

al
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s 

o
r 

co
n
fl

ic
ts

 
o
f 

in
te

re
st

, 
th

ey
 s

h
o
u
ld

 t
ak

e 
th

e 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e 

to
 u

se
 t

h
e 

m
ai

lb
o
x

 s
et

 
b
y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 o

r 
u
se

 w
ri

tt
en

 a
n
d
 t

el
ep

h
o
n
e 

m
et

h
o
d
s 

to
 r

ep
o
rt

 
to

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v

id
e 

ex
p
la

n
at

io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e 

ac
ce

p
ti

n
g
 u

n
it

. I
n
 

2
0

2
1

, 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

fi
n
d
 a

n
y
 d

is
h
o
n
es

t 
b

eh
av

io
r 

an
d
 a

n
y
 

re
p
o
rt

s.

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 I

te
m

s 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 S

ta
tu

s 
(N

o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

(3
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 c

le
ar

ly
 d

ef
in

e 
o
p
er

at
in

g
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s,
 b

eh
av

io
r 

g
u

id
el

in
es

, 
p
u
n
is

h
m

en
t 

an
d
 

ap
p
ea

l 
sy

st
em

s 
fo

r 
v
io

la
ti

o
n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
en

ti
n
g
 d

is
h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

r,
 i

m
p
le

m
en

t 
th

em
, 

an
d
 r

eg
u
la

rl
y
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d
 m

ak
e 

co
rr

ec
ti

o
n
s?

V
(3

) 
 I

n
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 p

re
v
en

t 
d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

rs
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d
 

th
e 

"I
n
te

g
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
an

d
 

B
eh

av
io

r 
G

u
id

el
in

es
” 

an
d
 

th
e 

p
u
n
is

h
m

en
t 

an
d
 

ap
p
ea

l 
sy

st
em

 f
o
r 

v
io

la
ti

o
n
s.

 T
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 p
er

so
n
n
el

 a
re

 s
tr

ic
tl

y
 

p
ro

h
ib

it
ed

 
fr

o
m

 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

o
r 

ac
ce

p
ti

n
g
 

an
y
 

im
p
ro

p
er

 
b
en

ef
it

s 
an

d
 i

ll
eg

al
 b

eh
av

io
rs

. 
T

h
e 

“I
n
te

g
ri

ty
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n
 

T
ea

m
” 

im
p
le

m
en

ts
 t

h
e 

re
le

v
an

t 
p
o
li

ci
es

 a
n
d
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

an
d
 

re
v
is

es
 

th
em

 
ev

er
y
 

y
ea

r.
 

T
h
e 

g
ri

ev
an

ce
 

sy
st

em
 

an
d
 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

ar
e 

d
et

ai
le

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 w

eb
si

te
, 
an

d
 t

h
er

e 
h
as

 b
ee

n
 n

o
 d

is
h
o
n
es

t 
in

ci
d
en

t 
in

 2
0
2
1
.

(3
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

2
. 
Im

p
le

m
en

ti
n
g
 i

n
te

g
ri

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

(1
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 e

v
al

u
at

e 
th

e 
in

te
g
ri

ty
 r

ec
o
rd

s 
o
f 

it
s 

co
u
n
te

rp
ar

ti
es

 a
n
d
 s

p
ec

if
y
 t

h
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

b
eh

av
io

r 
cl

au
se

s 
in

 t
h
e 

co
n
tr

ac
ts

 i
t 

si
g
n
s 

w
it

h
 i

ts
 

co
u
n
te

rp
ar

ti
es

?

V
(1

) 
 T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 e
v
al

u
at

es
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
es

 t
o
 p

ay
 a

tt
en

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 
re

co
rd

s 
o
f 

th
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
 
o
b
je

ct
s,

 
an

d
 
h
as

 
ap

p
o
in

te
d
 t

h
e 

le
g
al

 a
ff

ai
rs

 u
n

it
 t

o
 i

n
co

rp
o
ra

te
 t

h
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

b
eh

av
io

r 
cl

au
se

 
in

to
 

th
e 

co
n
tr

ac
t 

si
g
n
ed

 
w

it
h
 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

’s
 i

m
p
o
rt

an
t 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
 o

b
je

ct
s.

 I
f 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 c

as
e 

o
f 

d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

r,
 

u
n
co

n
d
it

io
n
al

ly
 

te
rm

in
at

e 
th

e 
co

n
tr

ac
t 

at
 a

n
y
 t

im
e.

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(2
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 s

et
 u

p
 a

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 u

n
it

 u
n
d
er

 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 a

n
d
 r

eg
u
la

rl
y
 (

at
 l

ea
st

 
o
n
ce

 a
 y

ea
r)

  
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

it
s 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
o
li

ci
es

, 
p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

p
re

v
en

ti
n
g
 d

is
h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

r,
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
er

v
is

io
n
 

an
d
 i

m
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
?

V
(2

) 
 

O
n
 

O
ct

o
b
er

 
3
0
, 

2
0
2
0
, 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d

 
th

e 
"I

n
te

g
ri

ty
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
O

p
er

at
in

g
 P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
an

d
 B

eh
av

io
r 

G
u
id

el
in

es
" 

an
d
 

se
t 

u
p
 

th
e 

"I
n
te

g
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
ro

m
o
ti

o
n
 T

ea
m

",
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
su

b
o
rd

in
at

e 
to

 t
h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

V
P

 o
f 

th
e 

g
en

er
al

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n
 s

er
v
es

 
as

 
th

e 
co

n
v
en

er
. 

T
h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
in

cl
u
d
e 

th
e 

h
ea

d
 
o
f 

th
e 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t,

 
th

e 
h
ea

d
 

o
f 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t,

 t
h
e 

le
g
al

 u
n
it

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

h
ea

d
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ce
 

an
d
 

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g
 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ar
e 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 
fo

r 
p
ro

m
o
ti

n
g
 t

h
e 

fo
rm

u
la

ti
o
n
, 

re
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 
in

te
g
ri

ty
 

p
o
li

cy
. 

It
 

re
p
o
rt

s 
to

 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
 

ev
er

y
 

y
ea

r 
an

d
 

d
is

cl
o
se

s 
it

 
o
n
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 w

eb
si

te
. 

2
0
2
1
 O

p
er

at
io

n
 R

ep
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
n
 M

ar
ch

 4
, 2

0
2
2

:

(2
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 S

ta
tu

s 
(N

o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

1
.P

u
b
li

ci
ty

 t
ra

in
in

g
O

n
 N

o
v

em
b

er
 5

, 
2

0
2

1
, 

th
e 

L
eg

al
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
co

n
d
u

ct
ed

 a
 

3
0

-m
in

u
te

 
o

n
li

n
e 

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
"I

n
te

g
ri

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t,

 
P

re
v

en
ti

o
n

 o
f 

In
si

d
er

 T
ra

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 P
er

so
n

al
 I

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 L
aw

" 
fo

r 
al

l 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
to

 l
et

 c
o

ll
ea

g
u

es
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d
 t

h
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 
o

f 
h

o
n

es
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 p
re

v
en

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

si
d

er
 t

ra
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 
co

m
p

li
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
p

er
so

n
al

 d
at

a 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 a

ct
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

o
n

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 o
n
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
, 

2
0

2
1

, 
th

e 
d

ir
ec

to
rs

 
w

er
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
st

at
u

s 
o

f 
th

e 
ri

g
h

t 
to

 b
el

o
n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e 
in

si
d

er
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
's

 "
in

te
rn

al
 i

m
p

o
rt

an
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
p

ro
ce

ss
in

g
".

 
"P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 

In
si

d
er

 
T

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s"
2

.
S

u
m

m
ar

y
 o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 s

it
u
at

io
n

T
h
e 

m
ai

lb
o
x
es

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g
 c

h
an

n
el

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
m

ai
lb

o
x
es

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
ro

m
o
ti

o
n
 t

ea
m

 h
av

e 
n
o
t 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
n

y
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 l

et
te

rs
.

3
.T

h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
n
d
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
er

so
n
n
el

 
si

g
n
 a

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
m

p
li

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
o

li
cy

.
4

.I
n
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 p

re
v
en

t 
co

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

, 
it

 r
eq

u
ir

es
 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
, 
m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d
 t

h
ei

r 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s 

to
 u

p
h
o
ld

 a
 h

ig
h

 
d
eg

re
e 

o
f 

se
lf

-d
is

ci
p
li

n
e,

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e 
th

at
 i

t 
ca

n
 p

ro
ac

ti
v
e^

 
ex

p
la

in
 w

h
et

h
er

 i
t 

h
as

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

o
n
fl

ic
t 

o
f 

in
te

re
st

 w
it

h
 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s,

 w
ri

tt
en

 d
o
cu

m
en

ts
, 
em

ai
l 

o
r 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e.

 F
o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
n
d
 r

es
o

lv
ed

 b
y

 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 i
n
 2

0
2
1
, 
th

e 
d
ir

ec
to

rs
 w

il
l 

al
so

 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 e
x
p
re

ss
 t

h
ei

r 
in

te
re

st
s 

in
 t

h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 t

h
at

 h
av

e 
th

ei
r 

o
w

n
 i

n
te

re
st

s,
 

an
d
 t

h
ey

 w
il

l 
al

l 
re

cu
se

 f
ro

m
 v

o
ti

n
g
, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

d
el

ib
er

at
in

g
 

u
n
it

 w
il

l 
re

co
rd

 t
h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 i
n
 t

h
e 

m
in

u
te

s 
o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

.
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E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 

P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

(N
o

te
 2

) 
 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

fo
r

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

 d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f

co
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

(3
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 p

o
li

ci
es

 t
o
 p

re
v
en

t 
co

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

, p
ro

v
id

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ch
an

n
el

s 
fo

r 
p
re

se
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 
an

d
 i

m
p
le

m
en

t 
th

em
?

V
T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 

h
as

 
es

ta
b
li

sh
ed

 
p
o
li

ci
es

 
an

d
 

st
at

em
en

t 
ch

an
n
el

s 
to

 p
re

v
en

t 
co

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

 i
n
 t

h
e 

"G
u
id

el
in

es
 

fo
r 

In
te

g
ri

ty
 

O
p
er

at
io

n
 

P
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
an

d
 

B
eh

av
io

rs
" 

an
d
 

"R
ep

o
rt

in
g
 S

y
st

em
",

 a
n
d
 i

n
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 p
re

v
en

t 
co

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

, 
it

 
re

q
u
ir

es
 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
, 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d
 

th
ei

r 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s 

to
 u

p
h
o
ld

 h
ig

h
 d

eg
re

e 
o
f 

se
lf

-d
is

ci
p
li

n
e,

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e 
th

at
 
it

 
ca

n
 
p
ro

ac
ti

v
e^

 
ex

p
la

in
 
w

h
et

h
er

 
it

 
h
as

 
a 

p
o
te

n
ti

al
 
co

n
fl

ic
t 

o
f 

in
te

re
st

 
w

it
h
 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

m
ee

ti
n
g
s,

 w
ri

tt
en

 d
o
cu

m
en

ts
, 

em
ai

l 
o
r 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e.

 F
o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
n
d
 r

es
o
lv

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 
in

 2
0
2
1
, 

th
e 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 w

il
l 

al
so

 a
u
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 e

x
p
re

ss
 t

h
ei

r 
in

te
re

st
s 

in
 t

h
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 t

h
at

 
h
av

e 
th

ei
r 

o
w

n
 
in

te
re

st
s,

 
an

d
 
th

ey
 
w

il
l 

al
l 

re
cu

se
 
fr

o
m

 
v
o
ti

n
g
, 

an
d
 t

h
e 

d
el

ib
er

at
in

g
 u

n
it

 w
il

l 
re

co
rd

 t
h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 i
n

 
th

e 
m

in
u
te

s 
o
f 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

.

(3
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ce

(4
) 

 W
h
et

h
er

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 a

n
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ac

co
u
n
ti

n
g
 s

y
st

em
 a

n
d
 i

n
te

rn
al

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 

sy
st

em
 f

o
r 

th
e 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 o

f 
h
o
n
es

t 
o
p
er

at
io

n
, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u
d
it

 u
n
it

 d
ra

w
s 

u
p
 

re
le

v
an

t 
au

d
it

 p
la

n
s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ri
sk

 o
f 

d
is

h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

rs
, 

an
d
 c

h
ec

k
s 

th
e 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
en

ti
n
g
 d

is
h
o
n
es

t 
b
eh

av
io

rs
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

 a
n
d
 c

h
ec

k
 c

o
m

p
li

an
ce

, 
o
r 

en
tr

u
st

 a
n
 a

cc
o
u
n
ta

n
t 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 t

h
e 

ch
ec

k
?

V
 T

h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 

h
as

 
es

ta
b
li

sh
ed

 
an

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g
 

sy
st

em
 

an
d
 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

n
tr

o
l 

sy
st

em
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

th
e 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 

o
f 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 
an

d
 

th
e 

au
d
it

 
o
ff

ic
e 

d
ra

w
s 

u
p
 
re

le
v
an

t 
au

d
it

 
p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
b
as

ed
 
o

n
 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o
f 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ri
sk

 
o
f 

d
is

h
o
n
es

ty
 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

ar
ra

n
g
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

an
n
u
al

 a
u
d
it

 p
la

n
, 

an
d
 c

h
ec

k
s 

co
m

p
li

an
ce

 f
o
r 

th
e 

p
re

ce
d
in

g
 s

y
st

em
 a

n
d
 r

ep
o
rt

 
th

e 
in

v
es

ti
g
at

io
n
 

re
su

lt
 

to
 

th
e 

B
o
ar

d
 

o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
. 

In
 

ad
d
it

io
n
, 

th
e 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n
d
 A

cc
o
u
n
ti

n
g
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

A
u
d
it

 
O

ff
ic

e 
co

m
m

u
n
ic

at
e 

w
it

h
 

ac
co

u
n
ta

n
ts

 
o
n
 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n
ti

n
g
 

sy
st

em
, 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

n
tr

o
l 

sy
st

em
 

an
d
 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 s

ta
tu

s 
ev

er
y
 y

ea
r.

(4
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe
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n
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

(5
) 

 D
o
es

 t
h
e 

C
o

m
p
an

y
 r

eg
u
la

rl
y
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
an

d
 e

x
te

rn
al

 e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 i

n
te

g
ri

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t?

V
T

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 o
rg

an
iz

es
 i

n
te

rn
al

 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ed
u
ca

ti
o

n
 

an
d

 p
u

b
li

ci
ty

 b
y
 t

h
e 

“I
n

te
g

ri
ty

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 T

ea
m

” 
ev

er
y

 
y

ea
r.

 
O

n
 

N
o
v

em
b

er
 

5
, 

2
0

2
1

, 
th

e 
L

eg
al

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
co

n
d

u
ct

ed
 

a 
3

0
-m

in
u

te
 

o
n
li

n
e 

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n
 

o
n
 

“I
n

te
g

ri
ty

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t,
 

P
re

v
en

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

In
si

d
er

 
T

ra
d

in
g

 
an

d
 

P
er

so
n

al
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 L
aw

 f
o

r 
al

l 
em

p
lo

y
ee

s 
to

 l
et

 c
o

ll
ea

g
u

es
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 
th

e 
im

p
o
rt

an
ce

 o
f 

h
o
n

es
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 p

re
v

en
ti

o
n
 o

f 
in

si
d

er
 

tr
ad

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
li

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

so
n

al
 d

at
a 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 a

ct
, 

an
d
 

al
l 

h
av

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e 

o
n

li
n

e 
te

st
 a

ft
er

 c
la

ss
, 

w
it

h
 a

 t
o

ta
l 

o
f 

7
0
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts
. 

T
h
e 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
 w

er
e 

al
so

 a
rr

an
g
ed

 t
o
 p

ar
ti

ci
p
at

e 
in

 
ex

te
rn

al
 r

el
at

ed
 c

o
u
rs

es
, 

an
d
 t

h
e 

d
ir

ec
to

rs
5

tr
ai

n
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s 
w

as
 

d
et

ai
le

d
 o

n
 p

ag
e 

.

(5
) 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

co
d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

 d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
 (

N
o
te

 2
) 

 

3
. 
T

h
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
's

 w
h
is

tl
eb

lo
w

in
g
 

sy
st

em
(1

) 
 

D
o
es

 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
 

a 
sp

ec
if

ic
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

ew
ar

d
 s

y
st

em
, 

an
d
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 a
 

co
n
v
en

ie
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 

ch
an

n
el

, 
an

d
 

as
si

g
n
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ac
ce

p
ta

n
ce

 
p
er

so
n
n
el

 
to

 
th

e 
re

p
o
rt

ed
 o

b
je

ct
?

V
T

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 h

as
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 a

 "
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 s

y
st

em
” 

(d
et

ai
ls

 
o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 w

eb
si

te
).

 D
ep

en
d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o
rt

in
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
d
ir

ec
to

rs
, 

th
e 

g
en

er
al

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
/a

u
d
it

 o
ff

ic
e,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
ro

m
o
ti

o
n
 

te
am

 
ar

e 
th

e 
sp

ec
ia

l 
u
n
it

s 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
le

 
fo

r 
h
an

d
li

n
g
 t

h
e 

re
p
o
rt

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 c

h
an

n
el

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 

m
et

h
o
d
 i
t 
is

 p
ro

v
id

ed
 o

n
 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 w

eb
si

te
. T

h
e 

id
en

ti
ty

 
o
f 

th
e 

w
h
is

tl
eb

lo
w

er
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

re
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
te

n
t 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e 

k
ep

t 
co

n
fi

d
en

ti
al

. 
R

eg
ar

d
in

g
 p

er
so

n
n
el

 v
io

la
ti

o
n
s 

o
f 

in
te

g
ri

ty
, 

d
ep

en
d
in

g
 

o
n
 

th
e 

se
ri

o
u
sn

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

ci
rc

u
m

st
an

ce
s,

 
p
u
n
is

h
m

en
t,

 d
is

m
is

sa
l 

o
r 

ju
d
ic

ia
l 

ac
ti

o
n
s 

sh
al

l 
b
e 

ta
k
en

 i
n

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 r

el
ev

an
t 

la
w

s 
an

d
 r

eg
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

o
r 

re
le

v
an

t 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
.

•
R

ep
o
rt

in
g
 c

h
an

n
el

:
In

te
g
ri

ty
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
ro

m
o
ti

o
n
 

te
am

 
M

ai
lb

o
x
: 

et
h
ic

al
@

ts
h

b
io

p
h
ar

m
.c

o
m

 I
n

te
rn

al
 r

ep
o
rt

in
g
 c

h
an

n
el

:
R

ep
o
rt

in
g
 h

o
tl

in
e:

V
P

 o
f 

G
en

er
al

 A
d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n
 X

in
-Y

an
g
 L

iu
 (

E
x
t 

5
5
0
0

) 
 

A
u
d
it

 s
u
p
er

v
is

o
r 

Y
a-

C
h

i 
W

u
 (

E
x
t 

5
5
2
3
) 

T
el

: 
0
2

-2
6
5
5
-8

5
2
5

M
ai

lb
o
x
: 

V
P

 
o
f 

G
en

er
al

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n
 

S
ea

n
_

L
iu

@
ts

h
b
io

p
h
ar

m
.c

o
m

A
u
d
it

 
su

p
er

v
is

o
r 

Je
ss

ic
a_

W
u
@

ts
h

b
io

p
h

ar
m

.c
o

m
 

E
x
te

rn
al

 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 

ch
an

n
el

:
N

am
e:

 
C

h
ih

- 
L

i 
W

an
g
 

In
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
d
ir

ec
to

r 
(M

o
o
re

s 
R

o
w

la
n

d
 C

P
A

) 
M

ai
lb

o
x
: 

lm
u
i@

m
s5

9
.h

in
et

.n
et

 
•

A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 u
n
it

:
T

h
e 

u
n

it
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e 

ac
ce

p
ta

n
ce

 i
n
cl

u
d
es

 t
h
e

in
te

g
ri

ty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
ro

m
o
ti

o
n
 t

ea
m

, 
th

e
V

P
 o

f 
th

e 
g
en

er
al

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

 s
u
p
er

v
is

o
r.

•
A

w
ar

d
 m

et
h
o
d
:

T
h
e 

re
p
o
rt

ed
 i

te
m

s 
ar

e 
v
er

if
ie

d
 t

o
 b

e 
tr

u
e,

 a
n
d
 r

ew
ar

d
s 

w
il

l 
b
e 

g
iv

en
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s 

o
f 

C
h
ap

te
r

8
 o

f 
th

e 
"W

o
rk

 R
u
le

s”
 s

et
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
.

(l
) 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
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P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

te
m

s 
 

E
x

ec
u

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s 
 (

N
o
te

 1
) 

 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 

th
e 

co
d

es
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
li

st
ed

 

an
d
 O

T
C

 c
o
m

p
an

ie
s 

Y
es

 
N

o
 

S
u
m

m
ar

y
(N

o
te

 2
) 

 

(2
) 

 H
as

 t
h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 s

ta
n
d
ar

d
 o

p
er

at
in

g
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

v
es

ti
g
at

io
n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o
rt

ed
 

m
at

te
rs

, 
fo

ll
o
w

-u
p
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

k
en

 a
ft

er
 t

h
e 

in
v
es

ti
g
at

io
n
 i

s 
co

m
p
le

te
d
, 
an

d
 r

el
at

ed
 

co
n
fi

d
en

ti
al

it
y
 m

ec
h
an

is
m

s?

V
T

h
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
 o

p
er

at
in

g
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
an

d
 c

o
n
fi

d
en

ti
al

it
y
 

m
ec

h
an

is
m

 f
o
r 

th
e 

in
v
es

ti
g
at

io
n
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

ce
p

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

ep
o
rt

ed
 

m
at

te
rs

 s
h
al

l 
b
e 

h
an

d
le

d
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
's

 
"R

ep
o
rt

in
g
 S

y
st

em
".

 I
n
cl

u
d
e 

th
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 (

b
ri

ef
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n
):

•
N

ec
es

sa
ry

 f
o
r 

w
h
is

tl
eb

lo
w

in
g
: 

th
e 

re
al

 n
am

e 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

to
 r

ep
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

fa
ct

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

st
at

ed
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi

rm
ed

 b
y

 t
h
e 

w
h
is

tl
eb

lo
w

er
.

•
A

cc
ep

te
d
.

•
In

v
es

ti
g
at

io
n
: 

O
n
ce

 t
h
e 

ca
se

 i
s 

ac
ce

p
te

d
, 

th
e 

re
le

v
an

t 
fa

ct
s 

w
il

l 
b
e 

as
ce

rt
ai

n
ed

. 
If

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
an

t
s 

p
er

so
n
al

 
d
at

a 
ca

n
 b

e 
co

n
ce

al
ed

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 r

el
ev

an
t 

u
n
it

s,
 e

x
te

rn
al

 
la

w
y
er

s 
o
r 

ex
p
er

ts
 

fo
r 

as
si

st
an

ce
, 

v
er

if
y
 

th
e 

tr
u
th

, 
an

d
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
re

q
u
es

t 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

an
t 

to
 

st
o
p
 

th
e 

re
le

v
an

t 
b
eh

av
io

r,
 a

n
d
 i

n
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 p

ro
p
er

ly
 d

is
p
o
se

 o
f 

it,
if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

se
ek

 c
o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

d
am

ag
es

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l

eg
al

 p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s.
•

R
ep

o
rt

in
g
 

an
d
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(9) Implementation of internal control system 

1. Statement of internal control 

TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Internal Control System 

March 4, 2022 

Based on the results of its own assessment, for the internal control system in 2021, the Company hereby declares the following:

1. We acknowledge that it is the responsibility of our Board of Directors and managers to establish, implement and 

maintain an internal control system, which we have established. Its purpose is to provide reasonable assurance of 

operational effectiveness and efficiency (including profitability, performance and asset safety), reporting reliability, 

timeliness, transparency, and compliance with relevant codes and regulations.

2. The internal control system has its inherent limitations. No matter how well designed, an effective internal control 

system can only provide reasonable assurance for the achievement of the above three objectives, the effectiveness of the 

internal control system may then change along with changes in the environment and the situation. However, the internal 

control system of the Company has a self-monitoring mechanism. Once a shortcoming is identified, the Company will take 

corrective action. 

3. Based on the Internal Control System Processing Guideline established by a publicly-listed company (hereinafter 

referred to as the Processing Guideline), the Company judged the effectiveness of its internal control system in accordance 

with the design and implementation of the internal control system. The internal control system judgment items adopted in 

the Processing Guideline is based on the process of Management Control, which divides the internal control system into 

five components: (1) Control the environment; (2)  Risk Assessment; (3)  Control Operations; (4)  Information and 

communication, and (5)  Supervisory operation. Each component also includes a number of items. Please refer to the 

Processing Guideline for the above items. 

4. The Company has adopted the above internal control system judgment project to evaluate the effectiveness of the 

design and implementation of the internal control system. 

5. Based on the results of the foregoing assessment, we consider that our internal control system of December 31, 

2021 contains the supervision and management of our subsidiaries, including understanding the effectiveness of 

operations and the extent to which efficiency objectives are achieved, reporting is reliable, timely, transparent and in 

compliance with the relevant norms and regulations, and compliance with the relevant internal control system is effective, 

it can reasonably ensure the achievement of the above-mentioned goals. 

6. This statement shall be the main content of the Company’s annual report and Prospectus and shall be made public. 

If the above-mentioned contents are false or concealed, they will involve the legal liability of Articles 20, 32, and 171 and 

174 of the Securities Exchange Act. 

7. This declaration was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on March 4, 2022. No one among the 

seven directors present raised objections and they agreed with the contents of this declaration. 

TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

Chairman: Chuan Lin 
General Manager: Sze-Yuan Yang 
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2. If an accountant is appointed to review the internal control system through a special project, the auditor5s 

review report shall be disclosed: Nil 

(10) IN 2021 AND UP TO THE PUBLICATION DATE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, IF THE 
COMPANY AND ITS INTERNAL PERSONNEL ARE PUNISHED ACCORDING TO LAW, 
OR IF THE COMPANY HAS PUNISHED ITS INTERNAL PERSONNEL FOR VIOLATING 
THE PROVISIONS OF THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM, AND THE RESULT OF THE 
PUNISHMENT MAY HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON SHAREHOLDERS EQUITIES 
OR SECURITIES PRICES, SHOULD LIST ITS PUNISHMENT CONTENT, THE MAIN 
FLAW AND THE IMPROVEMENT SITUATION: NIL
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(11) IN 2021 AND AS OF THE PUBLICATION DATE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, 
IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS OF THE SHAREHOLDERS MEETING AND THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR IMPLEMENTATION: 

2. IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS OF THE SHAREHOLDERS MEETING AND THEIR 

IMPLEMENTATION: 

NAME OF 
MEETING/DATE IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS AND IMPLEMENTATION

GENERAL MEETING 

OF SHAREHOLDERS 

AUG 20, 2021

1. Passed and acknowledged the case of the Company’s 2020 financial statement and business 

report.  

Execution status:  Resolved and passed.  

2. Passed and acknowledged the case of the Company’s 2020 surplus distribution.  

Execution status:  Resolved and passed.  The resolution was passed and completed in 

accordance with the resolutions of the Shareholders Meeting. The ex-dividend base date would 

be set on September 13, 2021, and the distribution date would be set on October 8, 2021 (with a 

cash dividend of $1.8 per share).  

3. Removal of Directors’ non-competition restriction.  

Execution status:  Resolved and passed.  Directors were removed from their position currently 

taken in other companies. 

1. IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

NAME OF SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS
MEETING/DATE

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

2021.03.10 

1. The Company’s 2020 Employees’ and Directors’ Remuneration Allocation. 

2. The Company’s 2020 Business Report and Financial Statement. 

3. The Company’s 2020 Surplus Distribution.  

4. The Company’s 2020 Statement of Internal Control System. 

5. The amendment to the Company’s “Board of Directors Performance Evaluation Method”.  

6. The amendment to the Company’s “Functional Committee Performance Evaluation Method” 

7. The amendment to the Company’s “Code of Ethical Conduct”.  

8. The amendment to the Company’s “Whistleblowing System “.  

9. The amendment to the Company’s “Audit Committee Organization Regulations”.  

10. The amendment to the Company’s “Remuneration Committee Organization Regulations”.  

11. The amendment to the Company’s “Independent Director’s Responsibility Scope and Rules”.  

12. The removal of Directors’ non-competition restriction.  

13. Agenda, date, time and venue of the Company’s 2021 Shareholders Meeting.  

14. Remuneration Committee’s proposal.  

(1)  The Company’s 2020 Employees Bonus Distribution.  

(2)  The Company’s 2021 Sales Division Head Bonus Distribution.  

(3)  The Company’s 2021 Business Development Division Head Bonus Distribution.  

(4)   The Company’s Manager annual remuneration adjustment proposal. 

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

2021.05.04 

1. The Company’s 2021 first quarter financial statement.  

2. The Company’s proposal of signing an “Entrusted Service Contract” for 2021 to 2023 with TTY 

Biopharm Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “TTY Biopharm”.  

3. Remuneration Committee’s proposal.  

(1) The Company’s 2020 Director’s Remuneration List.  

(2) The Company’s Manager’s Promotion Recommendation.
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(12) IN CASE OF ANY DISAGREEMENT AND RECORD OR WRITTEN STATEMENT ON 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ADOPTION OF IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS IN 2021 
AND AS OF THE DATE OF PUBLICATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, THE MAIN 
CONTENT OF WHICH IS: THE COMPANY HAS NO SUCH SITUATION. 

NAME OF
SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS

MEETING/DATE

Board of Directors 

2021.08.03

1. The Company’s 2021 Second Quarter Financial Statement.  

2. Proposed to reschedule the date and venue of the Company's 2021 General Shareholders Meeting.  

Board of Directors  

2021.11.03

1. The Company’s 2021 Third Quarter Financial Report. 

2.  Proposal of amending the Company’s “Measures for Preparation and Management of Financial 

Reports”. 

3. Proposal of amending the Company’s “Accounting System”.  

4. Proposal of amending the Company’s Internal Control System” and “Internal Audit System”. 

5. Proposal of terminating the service contract of the Company with E Co., Ltd.  

6. Proposal of entering into a service contract of the Company’s development project with French 

consultant company A. 

Board of Directors  

2021.12.17

1. The Company’s 2022 Budget and KPI (Key Performance Indicators).  

2. The Company’s 2022 Audit Plan.  

3.  Proposal of appointing “KPMG “ as the Company’s certified public accountant firm and setting 

various certification service fees for 2022 

4. Proposal of amending the Company’s housing  “lease contract”  signed with TTY Biopharm Co., 

Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “TTY Biopharm”.  

Board of Directors  

2022.03.04.

1. The Company’s 2021 Employees’ and Directors’ Remuneration Distribution.  

2. The Company’s 2021 Business Report and Financial Report.  

3. The Company’s 2021 Surplus Distribution.  

4. Re-election of Independent Director.  

5. Amendment to the Company’s “Processing Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets “.  

6. Amendment to the Company’s “Director Election Method”.  

7. Agenda, Date, Time and Venue of the 2022 Shareholders Meeting of the Company. 

8. The Company’s 2021 “Statement of Internal Control System”.  

9. Remuneration Committee’s Proposal.  

(1) The Company’s 2021 Employee’s Bonus Distribution: In order to motivate the important 

management of the Company (including managers and non-managers), it is proposed to combine 

performance bonuses with employee remuneration for the bonus distribution.  

(2)  The Company’s 2022 Sales Division Head’s Bonus Distribution.    

(3) The Company’s 2022 Business Development Division Head’s Bonus Distribution.  

(4) Proposal of the Company’s 2022 Manager’s Remuneration Adjustment.  
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(13) SUMMARY OF RESIGNATION AND DISMISSAL OF THE BOARD CHAIRMAN, 
GENERAL MANAGER, ACCOUNTING DIRECTOR, FINANCIAL DIRECTOR, 
INTERNAL AUDIT DIRECTOR, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTOR AND R & D 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY IN 2021 AND UP TO THE DATE OF PUBLICATION OF 
THE ANNUAL REPORT: THE COMPANY HAS NO SUCH SITUATIONS.  

(14) MAJOR INFORMATION PROCESSING PROCEDURES: 
The Company has "internal major information processing procedures" and 
"contingency major information processing procedures" for the processing, 
transfer and information disclosure of major information. The Company 
employees of various units shall follow the procedures for handling possible major 
information. The operation procedures shall be informed to employees by public 
notice and publicity, and shall be placed on the employee website and company 
website for the use of the staff.
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1. If the non audit fee paid to the certified public accountant, the certified public accountant's 
firm and its affiliated enterprises is more than one fourth of the audit fee, the amount of audit 
and non audit fee and the content of non audit service shall be disclosed: Audit fees are the fees 
for checking (reviewing) financial reports.  The tax compliance audit fees are adjusted to 
non-audit fees in correspondence to the amendment to the "Standards Governing Information 
to be Published in Annual Reports of Public Companies" by Securities and Futures Bureau of 
the Financial Supervisory Commission on January 30, 2021, plus the financial report printing 
fees and seal certification fees. 

2. If the audit fee paid in the replacement year is less than that of the previous year, the amount 
and reasons for the audit fee before and after the replacement shall be disclosed: 
N/A 

3. If the audit fees have decreased by more than 10% over the previous year, the amount, 
proportion and reason of the decrease shall be disclosed: N/A 

5. Information on Accountants’ Fees

(1)  Information on accountants’ fees                                                          Amount: Thousand NT$ 

Name of 
Accounting 

Firm 

Name of 
Accountant  

Accountant Audit 
Period 

Audit 
Fees

non-audit 
fees Total  Remarks 

KPMG Shin-Chin 
Chih

2021/01/01~ 
2021/12/31 

1,020 406 1,426 
Kuo-Yang  

Tseng
2021/01/01~ 
2021/12/31 

Note: The Company’s non-audit fees including tax compliance audit fees, finanal report printing fees 
and seal certification fees are approximaely  $406,000. 

Note: If the Company has changed accountants or accounting firms this year, please list the audit 
period separately, explain the reason for the change in the remarks, and disclose the audit and 
non-audit fees paid in sequence.  For non-audit fees, the content of services should be described in 
the notes.  
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6. Information on Change of Accountants: 

(1) About the former accountants  

Date of Change Passed by the Board of Directors on December 17, 2021 

Reason and Description of 
Change

KPMG’s internal operation and personnel adjustment:  From the first quarter 
of 2022, public certified accountants are changed from Shin-Chin Chih and 
Kuo-Yang Tseng to Huang Hsin-Ting and Han Yi-Lien.  

Indicating that the 
appointee or accountant 
terminates or no longer 
accepts the appointment  

Related Party 
Situation 

Accountant Appointee  

Voluntary Termination of 
Appointment 

N/A 
No longer accept (continue) 
appointments. 

Comments and reasons of 
issuing audit reports other 
than the unreserved 
opinions within the last 
two years  

No

Different Opinions with 
Issuer

Yes 

Accounting Principles or Practices 

Disclosure of Financial Reports  

Audit Scope or Steps 

Others 

No V 

Description 

Other Disclosed Matters  
(Those should be disclosed 
according to Items 1-4 to 
1-7 of , Paragraph 6 of 
Article 10 of this standard) 

None

(2)  About the Successor Accountants  

Name of Firm KPMG  

Name of accountant  Huang Hsin-Ting, Han Yi-Lien  

Date of Appointment Passed by Board of Directors on December 17, 
2021 

Opinions and results that may be issued on the financial 
reports prior to the appointment on the accounting 
processing methods or accounting principles for specific 
transactions.  

N/A

Written opinions by Successor accountants on matters 
of disagreement with previous accountants  

N/A 

(3) Reply letter from the former accountants on Items 1 and 2-3 of Article 10 (6) of this 
standard: N/A 

7. Corporation’s Chairman, General Manager, Financial Manager or Accounting 
Manager Who Has Been Working In a Certified Accountant Firm or Its Affiliated 
Enterprises in Last Year: None.
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8.   In 2021 and As of the Publication Date of the Annual Report, the Transfer of 
Shares of Directors, Managers And Shareholders Whose Shareholding Ratio 
Exceeds 10% and Changes in the Number Of Shares Pledged. 
If the counterpart of the equity transfer or equity pledge is a related party, the 
name of the related party, the relationship with shareholders holding more than 
10% of the shares of the Company, directors or managers, and the number of 
shares acquired or pledged shall be disclosed. 

(1) Changes in equity of directors, managers and major shareholders 

Title (Note 1)  Name 

2021  As of March 3 of the year 

Increase 

(decrease) in the 

number of shares 

Increase (decrease) 

in the number of 

pledged shares 

Increase (decrease) 

in the number of 

shares 

Increase (decrease) 

in the number of 

pledged shares 

Director 
(Major shareholder with more than 
10% of shareholdings)  

TTY Biopharm 0 0 0 0 

Independent director Chih-Li Wang 0 0 0 0 

Independent director Rwei-Syun Chen 0 0 0 0 

Independent director Yi-Min Wang 0 0 0 0 

General manager Sze-Yuan Yang 9,000 0 0 0 

Deputy General Manager of 
General Management Office 

Xin-Yang Liu 0 0 0 0 

Director of Business Development 
Division 

Chao-Jen Liao 0 0 0 0 

Director of Sales Division Jian-Rong Huang 0 0 0 0 

Senior Manager of Accounting 
Department of General 
Management Division 

Chen-Ju Kan 0 0 0 0 

(2) Equity transfer information:  N/A 
(3) Information of equity pledge: N/A

Note 1 • TTY Biopharm holds more than 10% of the total shares of the Company. 
Note 2 • Where the counterpart of the transfer or pledge of equity is a related party: none. 
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9. Information Of Top Ten Shareholders Whose Relationship Are Related 
Persons, Spouses And Relatives Within The Second Degree Of Kinship, Etc. 

Note 2 • The calculation of shareholding ratio refers to the calculation of the shareholding ratio in the name of oneself, spouse, child or other person. 

Note 3 • The shareholders listed above, including legal person and natural person, shall disclose their relationship in accordance with the financial 

reporting standards of issuers.

10. The Number Of Shares Held By The Company, Its Directors, Managers, And 
Businesses Directly Or Indirectly Controlled By The Company In The Same 
Reinvested Enterprise, And The Consolidated Shareholding Ratio Is 
Calculated. 
The Company has no such situation.

Name (Note 1) 

Self-owned equity
Shares held by spouse 

and minor children

Holding shares in the 

name of others

The names and relationships of the top ten 

shareholders who have relationship with each other as 

stated in the statement of Financial Accounting 

Standards No. 6 or who are spouses or relatives 

within the second degree (Note 3). 

Rem

arks

No. of 

shares

Shareholding 

Ratio %

No. of 

shares Shareholdi

ng ratio %

No. of 

shares

Shareholdi

ng Ratio

%
Name Relationship

TTY

Biopharm

Representative:

Chuan Lin

21,687,177 56.48 0 0 0 0 None None

Chuan Lin 0 0 0 0 0 0 None None

Dawan 

Technology Co., 

Ltd. 

Representative:

Ying-Jun Hsiao

805,941 2.10 0 0 0 0 None None

Ding-Wei Hong 432,730 1.13 0 0 0 0 None None

Chung Tian 

Biotechnology 

Co., Ltd. 

Representative:

Hsien-Shou Kuo

386,240 1.01 0 0 0 0 None None

Rong-Jin Lin 350,194 0.91 0 0 0 0 None None

Ya-Chi Pan 303,000 0.79 0 0 0 0 None None

Ying-Chang
Liu 282,300 0.74 0 0 0 0 None None

Wen-Xing
Lee 235,000 0.61 0 0 0 0 None None

Guei-Tang Shih 218,000 0.57 0 0 0 0 None None

Ci-Sheng Chen 205,000 0.53 0 0 0 0 None None

Note 1 • All the top ten shareholders shall be listed, and the name of the legal person shareholder and the name of the representative shall be listed separately for 

those who are legal person shareholders. 
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IV. Fund Raising 
1. Capital And Shares 
(1) Source of equity 

No. 09987636410. 

Note 2:  It was approved and put on record by the government on November 29, 2010 per letter FCYSZ No. 

09989789610. 

Note 3: It was approved and put on record by the government on September 22, 2011 per letter FCYSZ No. 

10087837410. 

Note 4:  It was approved and put on record by the government on May 25, 2012 per letter FCYSZ No. 

10183748410. 

Note 5:  It was approved and put on record by the government on September 19, 2012 per letter FCYSZ No. 

10187530210. 

Note 6: It was approved and put on record by the government on September 24, 2013 per letter No. 

10288087900. 

General information on the declaration system: Nil

Unit: Thousand shares; Thousand NT$ 

Year/month
Issue

Price

Approved share capital Paid in capital Remarks

No. of 

shares
Amount

No. of 

shares
Amount Source of equity

Using 

property other 

than cash to 

offset the 

share proceeds

Other
s

2010.09 10 50,000 500,000 15,000 150,000
Divided and transferred to 

issue new shares of 150,000 

thousand dollars

Nil
Note

1

2010.11 30 50,000 500,000 25,000 250,000
Cash capital increase of 

100,000 thousand dollars
Nil

Note

2

2011.10 10 50,000 500,000 28,000 280,000

Surplus transferred to capital 
increase of 30,000 thousand 
dollars

Nil
Note

3

2012.04 88 50,000 500,000 31,734 317,340
Cash capital increase of 
37,340 thousand dollars

Nil
Note

4

2012.09 10 50,000 500,000 34,907 349,074

Surplus converted to capital 

increase of 31,734 thousand 

dollars
Nil

Note

5

2013.09 10 50,000 500,000 38,398 383,981

Capital reserve converted to 
capital increase of 34,907 
thousand dollars

Nil
Note

6

Note 1:  It was approved and put on record by the government on September 21, 2010 per letter FCYZ 

Types of shares                                                                                                                      Unit: share

Types of shares 

Approved share capital 
Remarks 

Outstanding shares  

(Note 1) 
Unissued shares Total 

Registered 

common stock 
38,398,140 11,601,860 50,000,000 - 

Note 1: It was listed as an OTC company shares on April 30, 2012. 

Note 2: General information on the declaration system: Nil 
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(2)  Shareholder structure
March 31, 2022 (Unit: person; share) 

Quantity 

Governme

nt 

agencies 

Financial 

institutions 

Other legal 

persons Individuals 

Foreign 

institutions and 

foreigners 

Total 

No. of persons 0 0 12 4,488 17 4,517 

No. of shares 

held 
0 0 23,097,622 15,095,916 204,602 38,389,140 

Shareholding 

percentage 
0.00% 0.00% 60.15% 39.31% 0.53% 100% 

Note: The first listed (OTC) Company and emerging OTC company shall disclose the shareholding ratio of mainland capital; 

mainland capital refers to the people, legal persons, organizations, other institutions in mainland China or the Company invested in 

the third region as stipulated in Article 3 of the measures for the people's investment permission in Taiwan. 

(3)  Equity dispersion 
1. Common stock

Face value of 10 dollars per share                             March 31, 2022 

Shareholding classification (share)  
No. of 

shareholders 

(person)  

No. of shares held Shareholding ratio (%)  

1 to 999 2,128 258,569 0.67 

1,000 to 5,000 1,874 3,590,084 9.35 

5,001 to 10,000 270 2,100,906 5.47 

10,001 to 15,000 87 1,129,084 2.94 

15,001 to 20,000 38 702,604 1.83 

20,001 to 30,000 35 879,535 2.29 

30,001 to 40,000 17 573,813 1.49 

40,001 to 50,000 19 854,604 2.23 

50,001 to 100,000 29 2,109,243 5.49 

100,001 to 200,000 10 1,294,116 3.37 

200,001 to 400,000 7 1,979,734 5.16 

400,001 to 600,000 1 432,730 1.13 

600,001 to 800,000 0 0 0.00 

800,001 to 1,000,000 1 805,941 2.10 

1,000,001 or above 
Grading according to actual situations 

1 21,687,177 56.48 

Total 4,517 38,398,140 100.00 

2. Special shares: The Company does not issue special shares, inapplicable. 
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Unit: dollar; share; NT$ 

(4)  List of major shareholders

Note: The equity in this table refers to the name, amount and proportion of the top ten shareholders. 

(5)Market price per share, net worth, earnings, dividends and related information in the last two years 

            Year 
 Item 

2020  2021  As of  March 31, 2022 (Note 8) 

Price per share 

(Note 1)  

Highest  82.10 61.50 N/A 

Lowest 58.10 38.80 N/A 

Average 68.46 46.06 N/A 

NAV per share 

(Note 2)  

Before distribution 29.33 28.22 N/A 

After distribution     27.53  26.72 N/A 

EPS Weighted average number of shares 38,398 38,398 N/A 

Earnings per share (Note 3)  1.60 1.23 N/A 

Dividend per 

share 

Cash dividend 1.80 1.50 N/A 

Free- 

Gratis 

Earning allotment  0 0 N/A 

Capital surplus allotment 0 0 N/A 

Cumulative unpaid dividend (Note 4) N/A N/A N/A 

Return on 

investment 

analysis

Price-to-earnings ratio (Note 5)  42.79 37.45 N/A 

Price-to-dividend ratio (Note 6)  38.03 30.71 N/A 

Dividend yield (Note 7)  2.63 3.26 N/A 

  

If there is a capital increase or an allotment by means of surplus or capital reserve, the market price and cash dividend information which are 
retrospectively adjusted according to the number of issued shares shall be disclosed. 

  
Note 1: List the highest and lowest market prices of ordinary shares in each year, and calculate the average market price in each year based on the 

transaction value and volume in each year. 
Note 2: Please fill in this field based on the number of shares issued at the end of the year and according to the resolved distribution of the Board 

of Directors or the resolution of the next annual shareholders meeting. 
Note 3: If retrospective adjustment is required due to free allotment, etc., the earnings per share before and after adjustment shall be listed. 
Note 4: If the conditions for the issuance of equity securities stipulate that the unpaid dividends in the current year are accumulated to the year 

when there is a surplus, the accumulated and unpaid dividends up to the current year shall be disclosed separately. 
Note 5: Price-to-earnings ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/Earnings per share. 
Note 6: Price-to-earnings ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/Cash dividend per share. 
Note 7: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share / Average closing price per share for the year. 
Note 8: Net worth per share and earnings per share shall be filled with the information audited (reviewed) by the accountant in the most recent 

quarter up to the printing date of the annual report; other fields shall be filled with the information of the current year up to the printing date 
of the annual report.  

Shares
Name of major shareholders No. of shares held Shareholding ratio (%) 

TTY Biopharm 21,687,177 56.48

Dawan Technology Co., Ltd. 805,941 2.10 

Ding-Wei Hong 432,730 1.13 

Chung Tian Biotechnology Co., Ltd. 386,240 1.01 

Rong-Jin Lin 350,194 0.91 

Ya-Chi Pan 303,000 0.79 

Ying-Chang Liu 282,300 0.74 

Wen-Xing Lee 235,000 0.61 

Guei-Tang Shih 218,000 0.57 

Ci-Sheng Chen 205,000 0.53 
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(6) Company dividend policy and implementation status 

1. Dividend policy as defined in the articles of association 

The Company’s dividend policy is in accordance with the Company law and the provisions of the 

Articles of Association of the Company to ensure the normal operation of the Company and protect 

the interests of investors. The details of the Company’s dividend policy are contained in Articles 29 

to 31 as follows: 

(1) If the Company has a profit in the year, it shall allocate 2% to 8% of the compensation for the 

employees. The Board of Directors shall decide to distribute the compensation in stock or cash 

to the employees of the Company who meet certain conditions. The Company may allocate not 

more than 2% of the above profit amount for directors’ compensation. The distribution of 

employee and director compensation shall be reported to the shareholders meeting. However, 

if the Company still has accumulated losses, it shall reserve the necessary amount in advance 

and then allocate the compensation to employees and directors in proportion to the preceding 

paragraph. 

(2) If the Company has a surplus in its annual final accounts, it shall, after paying taxes in 

accordance with the law and making up the accumulated losses, appropriate another 10% to be 

the statutory surplus reserve, but the statutory surplus reserve shall not be appropriated when it 

has reached the paid-in capital of the Company. If there is any remaining surplus, it shall be 

consolidated together with the undistributed surplus, and the Board of Directors shall draw up 

a motion for the distribution of surplus and submit it to the shareholders meeting for a 

resolution on the distribution of dividend.

(3) The dividend payment procedure shall be followed at the end of each business year. The 

Board of Directors shall consider factors such as the Company’s profitability, capital and 

financial structure, future operating demand, accumulated surplus and statutory reserve, 

market competition, etc., and formulate a proposal for the distribution of surplus, to be handled 

after the resolution of the shareholders meeting. 

(4) The Company shall distribute its surplus on a basis of not less than 50% of the distributable 

surplus of the current year, subject to financial, business and operational considerations. In 

order to improve the financial structure of the Company and take into account the interests of 

investors, the Company adopts a dividend equalization policy and pays a cash dividend of 

more than 50% of the dividends distributed during the year. 

3. Dividend distribution planned at shareholders general meeting in 2022 (distributing the surplus 
of 2021): 

Dividend distribution planned at shareholders general meeting in 2022 (2022/3/4 Audit 
Committee audited and agreed and adopted by the Board of Directors)  

2. Implementation of dividend distribution in 2021 (distributing the surplus of 2020): 

Types of dividend 
Dividend per share adopted at 

shareholders meeting (dollar) 

Actual distributed 

amount 
Source 

Cash dividend 1.8 69,116,652 
Undistributed 

profits 

Total 1.8 69,116,652 - 
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(7)  The impact of the proposed free rights issue on the Company’s 2022 operating performance and 
earnings per share: N/A 

(8) Employee, director compensation: 

1. The amount or scope of compensation of the staff and directors as set out in the articles of 

association: 

In accordance with Article 29 of the Articles of Association of the Company, if the Company 

makes a profit during the year (the profit status refers to the profit before tax deducted from the 

profit distributed to the employees), it shall allocate 2% to 8% of the profit for the employees 

compensation. The Board of Directors shall adopt resolution to distribute in shares or cash to 

employees of the Company who meet certain conditions, and the Company may set aside not 

more than 2% of the profit for the compensation of the directors. The distribution of employee 

and director compensation shall be reported to the shareholders meeting. 

2. The basis for estimating the compensation of employees and directors in the current period, and 

the basis for calculating the number of shares of employees compensation distributed in shares, 

and the accounting treatment in case of any discrepancy between the actual amount distributed 

and the estimated amount: 

(1) The Board of Directors of the Company approved the distribution of employee and director 

compensation on March 4, 2022. The above compensation is calculated on the basis of the 

Company’s net profit before tax in the current year after deducting the compensation of its 

employees and directors. The amount of 2% shall be set aside as the operating expenses in 

2020 in proportion to the Company’s articles of association. There is no difference between 

the amount of employee compensation and director’s compensation assigned in the 

above-mentioned board resolution and the amount estimated in the Company’s 2021 

financial report. 

(2) If the actual distribution amount is different from the estimated amount, the accounting will 

be processed by adjusting the difference to the profit and loss of the actual distribution year. 

3. Distribution of compensation approved by the Board of Directors: 

(1) The Company’s Board of Directors resolved on March 4, 2022 to distribute employee 

compensation and director compensation in cash or stocks. If there is a difference from the 

annual estimated amount of recognized expenses, the difference, the reason and the handling 

situation shall be disclosed: On March 4, 2022, the Board of Directors resolved to distribute 

employee cash compensation of NT$ 1,282 thousand, employee stock compensation of NT$0, 

Types of dividend Dividend per share (dollar) Amount Source 

Cash dividend 1.5 57,597,210 Undistributed 

profits 

Total 1.5 57,597,210 - 
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and director compensation of NT$1,282 thousand. There is no difference between the annual 

estimated amount of the approved compensation and recognized expenses. 

(2) Stock-based employee compensation distributed and its ratio to the total amount of net 

profit after tax and total employee compensation in the current period: The current employee 

compensation is paid in cash and therefore does not apply. 

4. The actual distribution of compensation of employees and directors (including the number of 

shares distributed, the amount and the price of shares distributed)  and the difference between 

the compensation of employees and directors recognized in 2021 are as follows: No difference 

(9) Company’s repurchase of its shares: Nil 

2. The Handling Of Corporate Bonds, Special Shares, Overseas Depository 
Receipts And Employee Stock Warrants And New Shares For Employee 
Restricted Stocks 

(1) Handling of corporate bonds (including overseas corporate bonds) : Nil 

(2) Handling of preferred shares: Nil 

(3) Participation in the issue of overseas certificates of deposit: Nil 

(4) Handling of employee stock subscription certificates:

1. The unexpired employee stock option certificates shall disclose the status as at the publication 

date of the annual report and the impact on shareholders equity. Private Equity Employee 

warrants shall be noticeably identified: Nil 

2. The names, acquisition and subscription of the top 10 employees who have obtained employee 

share warrants up to the date of publication of the annual report and the top 10 employees who 

have obtained employee share warrants: Nil 
(5) Restrictions on the handling of employees’ rights for new shares:

1. Any new shares which do not fully meet the required conditions shall disclose the transaction as 

at the publication date of the annual report and the impact on shareholders’ equity: Nil 

2. The name of the manager who acquired the restricted employee rights IPO and the name of the 

top 10 employees who acquired the shares up to the date of the annual report: None 

3. Issuance Of New Shares For Merging And Transferring The Stocks Of Other 
Companies 

(1) An appraisal opinion issued by the principal securities underwriter who recently acquired or 
accepted the rights to issue new shares in another company in the latest quarter shall be 
disclosed: Nil 

(2) In addition to the companies specified in the previous period, the implementation of the latest 
quarter should be disclosed. If the implementation progress or benefits have not reached the 
expected target, the impact on the shareholders9 equity and the improvement plan should be 
specified: Nil 

(3) If the Board of Directors has made a decision to issue new shares through the acquisition or 
transfer of shares of another company in the latest year or up to the date of publication of the 
annual report, it shall disclose the implementation situation and the basic data of the acquired 
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or transferred company. The acquisition or acceptance of new shares issued by other 
companies in the process of acquisition shall disclose the situation of implementation and its 
impact on shareholders’ equity: Nil 

4. Implementation of Fund Utilization Plan 
As of the quarter prior to the publication date of the annual report, there is no prior issue or private placement 

of the security that has not been completed or completed in the last three years and the planned benefits have 

not yet shown and are inapplicable.
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V. Operation Overview 
1. Business Contents 

(1) Business scope 
1. The main contents of the business of the Company 

(1) C199990 Unclassified other food manufacturing 

(2) C802060 Animal drug manufacturing

(3) F102170 Food and sundries wholesale 

(4) F108021 Western Medicine wholesale 

(5) F108031 Medical equipment wholesale 

(6) F208021 Western medicine retail 

(7 )  F208031 Medical equipment retail 

(8 )  F401010 International trading  

(9 )  F601010 Intellectual property rights 

(10) IC01010 Drug testing 

(11) IG01010 Biotechnology services 

(12) ZZ99999 In addition to licensed business, may carry on business not prohibited or 

restricted by law 

2. Percentage of business 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Year
Item

2020 2021 

Amount 
Percentage of 

business 
Amount 

Percentage of 

business 

Cardiovascular 

medicine 
313,191 69.93% 280,841 67.92% 

Gastroenterological 

medicine 
80,748 18.03%   78,775 19.05% 

Central nervous medicine 
30,912 6.90%   27,576 6.67% 

Others 0 0% 0 0.00% 

Testing 20,898 4.67%   24,188 5.85% 

Income from services 

rendered  
2,113 0.47% 2,103 0.51% 

Total 447,862 100.00%  413,483 100.00% 

3. The Company’s current merchandise (service)  items The Company’s current products for 

cardiovascular medicine, gastrointestinal medicine, central nervous medicine and precision 

medical testing. The main products and their important uses are as follows: 
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Drugs--major products and their important uses 

Products Important uses Representative 

products 

Cardiovascular 

medicine 
High blood pressure Amtrel

Cardiovascular 

medicine 
Cardiac dysrhythmia Rhynorm

Cardiovascular 

medicine 
Hypolipidemic Linicor,  Cretrol

Cardiovascular 

medicine 
Angina pectoris Rancad, Isormol

Cardiovascular 

medicine 
Antiplatelet agglutination Licodin

Cardiovascular 
medication

Improving  the symptoms of peripheral arterial 
occlusive disease  

Alprosm

Gastroenterological 

medicine 

Discomfort caused by abnormal peristalsis of the 

digestive organs Mopride 

Central nervous 

medicine
Epilepsy Aleviatin

Central nervous 

medicine
Osteoarthritis Lonine

Central nervous 

medicine Rheumatoid Arthritis Lacoxa SR
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Precision medical testing-major products and their important uses 

(1) In line with the development of new drugs and the expansion of marketing channels, 

and actively promote the Company's marketed and upcoming products to the world. 

For example, Amtrel has completed the certification in

Testing 

technology 
Testing object and target Chinese/English names of tested items 

CTC 

Suitable for 18 kinds of solid cancer 

patients, regular follow-up after 

surgery, monitoring the efficacy of 

treatment. 

Tumor tracking PanCa Monitor

CTC 
Patients with cancer (except 

osteosarcoma/leukemia) assessed as 

suitable for immunotherapy. 

Apoptosis of Circulating 

Tumor Cells-Ligand 1 

Detection 

PD-L1 CTC test 

CtDNA

(NGS

sequencing)  

It only needs to be done once in a 

lifetime (can be done during 

pregnancy). Early health 

management, to understand whether 

you or your family members are at 

risk of hereditary cancer genes, 

analyze 98 genetic genes, including 

25 cancer risk assessments.

Genetic test for hereditary 

cancer risk (blood/saliva)  
Assure

CtDNA 

(NGS

sequencing)  

For lung cancer patients, analyze 10 

genes + MSI to determine the 

appropriate medicine. 

Lung cancer detection Lung LBx

CtDNA

(NGS

sequencing)  

For solid cancer patients (except 

brain tumors), analyze 74 genes + 

MSI, find the right target or immune 

drugs, seize the opportunity for 

treatment, and increase the choice of 

drugs for clinical trials.

Aikeming (blood)  LBx

CtDNA

(NGS

sequencing)  

For solid cancer patients, analyze 73 

genes + MSI, find the right target or 

immune drugs, seize treatment 

opportunities, and increase the 

choice of drugs for clinical trials. 

Aikeming (tissue)  TBx

Gene 

methylation 

For patients with abnormal uterine 

bleeding, the risk of endometrial 

cancer is assessed by taking a sample 

of the cervix, as a basis for doctors to 

conduct invasive examinations. 

Anbe gene MPap

CtDNA

(NGS 

sequencing)  

For solid cancer patients (except 

brain tumors), analyze 106 genes + 

MSI, find the right target or immune 

drugs, seize treatment opportunities, 

and increase the choice of drugs for 

clinical trials. 

Aiyezhun (blood)  Alpha-liquid 100 

4. New Products to be developed 
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Thailand and is undergoing registration in China, and has been inspected and registered in 

the Philippines, Malaysia, and Myanmar. 

(2) Committed to drug development, in the fields of cardiovascular and autoimmune 

diseases, develop high barrier and patentable new drugs.  In addition to obtaining the 

marketing approval of Rancad in 2020, the Company also successfully obtained the 

marketing approval of Cretrol and the drug license transfer  of Alprosm in 2021.  

(3) Invest in clinical research and drug treatment of diseases, in order to become a 

provider of drugs for special chronic diseases with high economic benefits. 

(4) Continue to develop international partners and businesses. 
(2 )  Industry overview 

1. Current status and development of the pharmaceutical industry 

Pharmaceutical industry has the characteristics of high-tech, high value-added, low 

pollution, low energy consumption and long development period and life cycle. Its 

products are mainly used in the treatment of human diseases, and closely related to the 

health of the people, so its safety and effectiveness worth special attention. Its 

development is also a symbol of a country’s degree of progress, the higher the national 

income of the country, the more developed the pharmaceutical industry, such as USA, 

Europe and Japan are typical examples. The outlook for the future of the global 

pharmaceutical industry is as follows: 

(1) In order to meet the basic requirements of drug safety, the environmental 

requirements of pharmaceutical regulations have become more and more stringent, 

which has increased the cost of new drug research and development, lengthened 

research and development time, and greatly increased research and development costs, 

but the research and development results were not good. In order to maintain research 

and development competitiveness and to control the growth of research and 

development costs, many pharmaceutical companies adopt a cooperative development 

policy, authorize the pre-development of drugs to partners, and share research and 

development costs and share results. 

(2) Both Europe and the United States have legislated to encourage the development of 

innovative drugs. Under the pressure of competition, more pharmaceutical companies 

will adopt the strategy of developing niche drugs, selling niche products in different 

markets, or focusing on the research and development of medicines for certain types 

of diseases. In order to enhance the value of drugs, in recent years, orphan drugs have 

accounted for a certain proportion of new drugs approved by the USA as evidence.

(3) China's pharmaceutical laws and regulations are actively in line with international 

standards, and the globalization of the pharmaceutical industry has gradually formed a 

global pharmaceutical industry network from laws and regulations, markets, supply 

chains to marketing. Therefore, how manufacturers use global resources and 

distinguish the roles of the industrial supply chain will help these manufacturers in 

their future development. 

2. Upstream, midstream and downstream relevance in the pharmaceutical industry 

The structure of the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry can be distinguished from 

the upstream, midstream and downstream. The upstream and midstream are the search 
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and manufacture of raw materials; the downstream is the manufacture of preparations 

and various sales channels. Drugs can be simply divided into three types: Original, 

imported or domestically-developed Innovative Generics, and Pure Generics. At present, 

Taiwan's pharmaceutical industry is generally located in the downstream, and most of 

them are only engaged in the manufacturing and sales of Pure Generic Drug 

Manufacturing Structure. 

Upstream: The raw material stage of drug preparation and processing. Western 

medicine raw materials include general chemicals, natural plants, animals, 

minerals, microbial strains and related tissue cells, etc., of which general 

chemicals make up the majority of raw materials. The upstream Chinese herbal 

medicine, mainly plants and a small part of animals, minerals as raw materials. 

As a result of advances in biotechnology, scientists have obtained many 

successful examples of transgenic animals and plants by means of gene 

transfer, so that in the future, direct cultivation of plants or animals for the 

production of drugs may be possible, this is a major breakthrough in upstream 

drug production technology. 

Midstream: mainly for the raw material medicine industry and the Chinese medicinal 

materials processing industry, the API industry consists of organic chemical 

synthesis, extraction and purification of natural substances, fermentation or 

post-fermentation synthesis of microorganisms, and cell purification and 

recycling modified by genetic engineering technology. The processing of 

Chinese medicinal materials is mainly the processing of medicinal plants. 

Downstream: It is the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry. It mainly processes the 

raw materials plus preparation of auxiliary materials, such as excipients, 

disintegrating powders, adhesives, lubricants, etc., into convenient dosage 

forms. According to the production at this stage, Taiwan needs to meet the 

requirements of high-quality pharmaceutical manufacturing and standard 

(PIC/S GMP) requirements, and then sell patients through marketing 

channels such as hospitals, clinics, and pharmacies. 

3. Various development trends of pharmaceutical products 

The trends in global pharmaceutical product development over the next few years can be 

summarized as follows: 

(1) The world’s population is concentrated in cities, where lifestyles and diets are 

refined. The world’s elderly population is growing rapidly, and diseases such as high 

blood pressure, high cholesterol, diabetes, obesity, depression and cancer are growing 

rapidly, it has also stimulated demand for drugs for chronic diseases and cancer. 

(2) In recent years, in addition to new strains leading to outbreaks of infectious diseases 

such as SARS and avian flu, the trend of globalization has made the spread of 

infectious diseases easier, the future of research and development in the 

pharmaceutical industry will also focus on research and development of drugs related 

to infectious diseases. 

(3) Research on gene-related and protein drug treatments is still the focus of competition 

in the R&D departments of many pharmaceutical companies. Due to the significant 

impact on the development of pharmaceuticals and the profits it is expected to bring, it 

is considered a major development in the pharmaceutical industry. 
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(4) As far as the cardiovascular drug market is concerned, since no new drugs have been 

successfully developed for blood pressure lowering drugs in recent years, the current 

development of new combination drugs for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases 

with two or more different drug complementary mechanisms will become the future 

trend. 

(5) At present, many autoimmune drugs such as lupus erythematosus and Alzheimer's 

disease can only treat symptoms but fail to effectively treat the disease. Therefore, 

there is still considerable medical demand. 

4. Drug competition 

According to the Taiwan Drugs Manufacturing Association, due to the small domestic 

market and the large number and small scale of pharmaceutical manufacturers, it is 

difficult for individual manufacturers to compete with large international pharmaceutical 

companies. There are 148 western pharmaceutical manufacturers that have passed the 

PIC/S GMP specifications. 

The sales channels of medicines in Taiwan are mainly divided into three categories: 

hospitals, pharmacies and clinics (excluding government medical stations, special 

medical hospitals and dental clinics). Most of the Company's products are sold in 

hospitals, accounting for more than 80% of the turnover. The sales channels cover major 

domestic hospitals, such as: National Taiwan University Hospital, Veterans General 

Hospital, Mackay Hospital, General Hospital of the Tri-Services, etc. 

The Company's products are mainly characterized by oral lozenges and small injections 

in western medicine preparations. In order to expand the product range and reduce 

business risks, cardiovascular and gastroenterology preparations have been developed 

successively and have achieved remarkable results. Products such as Mopride, Amtrel, 

Linicor and Rancad have been launched successively. TSH Biopharm also successfully 

marketed Cretrol this year. In addition, in response to the impact of the annual price 

reduction of health insurance, we will strive to develop products in the fields of 

cardiovascular, autoimmune and gastrointestinal diseases, and actively explore the 

international market. In order to strengthen the market and international competitiveness, 

we will develop high barriers and patentable drugs in the future. Mainly, it is now more 

actively developing towards the field of biotechnology pharmaceuticals. 

5. Current status and development of precision medical testing industry Precision 

medicine, which has emerged in recent years, plays a key role in the four aspects of 

cancer risk assessment (Risk Assessment), treatment (Therapeutics), prognosis and 

disease monitor, among which liquid biopsy registers the fastest growth in the field of 

oncology. Since liquid biopsy requires only body fluid sampling (such as blood, saliva, 

or urine)  for analysis, it is less invasive and can be applied to early detection of other 

major diseases in addition to cancer screening. Therefore, liquid biopsy shows great 

market potential. 

Current clinical cancer screening methods, such as traditional biochemical Tumor 

Index (CEA, CA153, CA125)  or traditional tissue slicing, are susceptible to individual 

health status and physical fitness, with low sensitivity and specificity. They may not be 

available for early cancer screening because of restrictions on the number of inspections, 

quantity, or organ tissue. For high-dose radiation instruments such as positron emission 

Tomography (pet), computed tomography (CT)  and magnetic resonance imaging 

(MRI), they can only be used for diagnosis of diseases, and their sensitivity cannot be 

used for early screening of cancers, nor can they be used for postoperative follow-up 
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because of their high radiation doses. There are also many cancers that cannot be 

detected early because of the lack of effective detection methods. They are often 

detected as terminal cancers such as colorectal cancer, lung, liver and stomach cancers, 

most cannot be initially examined by appearance or palpation. The Company has forged 

cooperation with a number of domestic and foreign companies to promote a variety of 

different liquid Biopsy technology testing services, these include the next generation 

sequencing (NGS)  of Circulating Tumor DNA (ctDNA), which is used for 

comprehensive analysis of drug efficacy to assist physicians in Treatment Selection, 

and the use of another generation sequencing in genetic cancer risk assessment, target 

Gene methylation and MITOCHONDRIAL DNA analysis are two different techniques 

used in non-invasive cancer risk assessment for specific cancers and Circulating Tumor 

Cells (CTCs)  for cancer prognosis and disease monitoring. TSH Biopharm provides 

cancer detection services for healthy, sub-healthy and sick people in different ethnic 

groups with different liquid biopsy techniques. 

At present, most of the cancer testing companies on the market are single technology or 

sell traditional test reagent groups. The strategy of TSH Biopharm is to focus on 

technical and clinical benefits, either by commercializing the technology of the 

domestic team or by licensing leading foreign technology products to the Taiwan 

market, the goal is to provide doctors and patients with more information when they 

need it for risk assessment or treatment to improve the efficiency of cancer treatment. In 

order to ensure the quality of testing services, TSH Biopharm’s partners have 

international certification of the laboratory and team. In the future, we also plan to 

extend such technology and service products, together with the access and experience 

of TSH Biopharm in the field of chronic diseases and cancer for many years, to 

domestic cooperative hospitals and laboratories, in addition to being the basis of 

medical clinical examination, to speed up and enhance clinical value and services, more 

patients will benefit from early screening and follow-up treatment. 
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Technology and R&D Overview 

1. Technical level and research and development of the business 

The Company mainly aims to improve new drug development as the focus of research 

and development direction, such as: controlled release, compound dosage form products, 

biological pharmaceutical research and development. 

• Controlled release, compound dosage form products 

The Company currently has considerable technology and results in the research of 

sustained-release dosage forms. Taiwan’s first long-acting cough suppressant Regrow 

and rheumatoid arthritis long-acting drug Locoxa SR have been marketed, and 

compound dosage forms such as Amtrel and Linicor have been put on market.  In this 

year, the Company has also obtained the marketing approval of Cretrol, a new 

compound drug for lowering blood lipids.  In the future, the Company will continue to 

invest in the development of special dosage forms and compound dosage forms for the 

treatment of chronic diseases and treatment solutions for special patient groups.  

• Research on biopharmaceuticals 

Biopharmaceuticals is an emerging pharmaceutical field. The source of 

biopharmaceuticals is cell sources. Different cell sources will lead to different effects. 

Therefore, biological drugs cannot be fully replicated. As a result, the entry barrier is 

high and the product cycle is relatively prolonged. 

Based on the previous experience in research and development of new biological drugs, 

the Company chooses to research and develop biologically similar drugs with 

relatively low risk and high probability of success, and develops through the model of 

cooperation with domestic and foreign manufacturers as the basis for future expansion 

into the global market. 

2. Expenditure on research and development in 2021 and up to the first quarter of 2022 
Unit: Thousand dollars 

Item 2021 Q1 in 2022 

Research and development costs 23,515 N/A 

Net operating income 413,483 N/A 

Percentage of net revenue 5.69% N/A 
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4. Unfinished R&D plan and implementation progress 

R&D
Projects 

R&D Progress 

R&D

expenses to be 

reinvested 

(thousand 

dollars)  

Estimated 

time to 

market 

The main factors 

affecting the 

success of 

research and 

development in 

the future 

1. TRIA11

Planning to enter into the global market, 

completed European EMA Scientific advice, and 

conducting process validation test. 

130,000 2022 Q4
Comparative trial and 

clinical trials 

2. LBCA19

Expected to complete the bioequivalence 

pre-trial in Q1 of 2022. 30,000 2023 Q4 
Formulation development 

and bioequivalence test 

3. ACTA20

Expected to complete the bioequivalence 

pre-trial in Q2 of 2022. 30,000 2024 Q 4 
Formulation development 

and bioequivalence test 

(3) Long-term and short-term business development plans 
1. Development direction of short-term plan 

(1) Marketing Strategy: execute the domestic target marketing strategy through the 

established domestic marketing network, and execute the operation plan. 

(2) Production Strategy: Through Strategic Alliance or commissioned 

agent, commissioned to professional pharmaceutical plants meeting the PIC/S 

GMP certification. We will focus on the production of competitive high 

economic value drugs, and on the core of the preparation and clinical R&D 

capabilities. 

(3) R&D strategy: Focus on the development of special dosage forms of drugs and meet 

the quality of international norms in preparation for internationalization. 

(4) Business Planning: By deepening the Taiwan chronic disease field customers, 

3. Successfully developed technology or product 

September 2010 
Obtained the patent for the preparation of the compound blood 

pressure lowering drug "Amtrel". 

September 2012 
Obtained the Linicor compound medicine certificate for lowering 

blood lipids. 

February 2015 
Obtained the patent of DMTA combination preparation in Mainland 

China. 

July 2017 
TuNEX passed the inspection and registration audit of the Ministry of 

Health and Welfare of Taiwan. 

March 2020 
Rancad® Extended Release (Norexinine medicinal tablets)  passed 

the review of the Ministry of Health and Welfare to obtain marketing 

April 2020 Launched MPap endometrial cancer screening test exclusively 
licensed by Guzip Biomarkers Corporation.  

October 2020 Obtained exclusive license on IMBDx cancer NGS products in 
Taiwan and commercialized the products.  

March 2021 Obtained the license of testing cancer and non-cancer in Taiwan from 
Centogene 

December 
2021 

Obtained the marketing approval of Cretrol, a new compound drug for 

lowering blood lipids, in Taiwan 

December 
2021 

Obtained the marketing approval of Alprosm Lyophilized Powder for 

Injection for the palliative treatment of peripheral arterial diseases in 

Taiwan.  

-102-



optimize the existing product portfolio life cycle management, continue to improve 

profitability to maintain new product development energy. Continue to select the most 

suitable partner in the target market, establish a long-term relationship with CMC/CTD 

format, ICH data and all products produced by PIC/S GMP manufacturers, to 

implement the International Business Plan. 
2. Direction of long-term projects 

(1) Marketing Strategy: Take the core disease field as the marketing backbone, improve the 

channel competitiveness, become the best drug development and marketing partner of 

Greater China Biotechnology Technology Innovation Company in the Chinese market. 

(2) Production Strategy: With the development of new drugs and the expansion of 

international marketing channels, to produce products in line with PIC/S certification 

standards to enhance international marketing. 
(3) R&D strategy 

A. To develop semi-new drugs or new drugs with international market potential and 

specifications, to license them internationally after Phase I or II and to market them 

in Taiwan. Based on the local clinical trial experience in Taiwan, we will complete 

new drugs development and International Patent deployment in combination with 

international clinical trials. 

B. To integrate the Taiwan and Chinese mainland markets with the rapid marketing, 

and most effective and accurate clinical trial capabilities. 

C. Participate in the early research and development of international biotech 

companies and share the global patent achievements of new drugs. 

(4) Business Planning: 

Corporate Vision: Committed to improve the quality of life of patients with unmet 

medical needs. 
Corporate Missions: 

1. “Becoming an international innovative biotech manufacturer and the best new drug 

development and marketing partner in Asia.” 

2. " Creating a medical product portfolio for patients with unmet medical needs”

3. " Developing new ingredients, special formulations, chronic disease treatments, 

genetic testing, cancer testing, and joint development of innovative therapy.” 

2. Overview On Market, Production And Sales 
(1) Market analysis 

1. Sales (provided)  regions and market share of the Company's main products (services)  

The sales area of the Company's main products is mainly domestic sales; sales channels include 

hospitals and clinics, which account for more than 90% of net revenue. 

2. Future supply and demand and growth of the market 

2-1. Chronic Disease Market 

According to statistics from the Ministry of the Interior, affected by the decline in the fertility 

rate and the increase in the age of survival in recent years, the proportion of the population over 

65 in Taiwan is currently over 16% (according to the statistics announced by the Ministry of the 

Interior in December 2020)  and is classified as an aging society (The aging society index set by 

the United Nations Health Organization is that the total number of elderly people reaches more 

than 7% of the national population). According to the population estimation system of the 

National Development Commission, Taiwan will formally enter a super-aged society in 2025, 

which shows that the rate of population aging in Taiwan is accelerating. Therefore, as the 

elderly population continues to increase, the demand for drugs for cardiovascular and 
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autoimmune diseases is expected to increase. 

The Global Cardiovascular Drugs market will reach $141.1 billion in 2017, according to BCC 

Research “Cardiovascular Drugs: Global Markets to 2022” The market is forecast to expand by 

1% in a compound half-year growth rate to $150.0 billion by 2025. However, the majority of the 

current best-selling drug patents in the global cardiovascular drug market have long expired. In 

response to the impact, pharmaceutical companies have continued to develop new products as 

well as to adopt a product life-cycle management strategy, including the introduction of 

different dosage forms, new indications and multi-component of drugs and so on. However, in 

the situation that most cardiovascular diseases are common diseases, it is necessary to take 

multiple drugs at the same time. Multi-component combination drugs are the main drug 

development axes of many major pharmaceutical companies, focus on its low cost, short time 

horizon, combined with the advantages of existing products, in a bid to maintain market share. 

Many combinations emphasize the ability to achieve multiple effects with a single pill, such as 

lowering blood lipids and blood pressure at the same time, or combining more than two 

components to reduce blood lipids or blood pressure into a new combination, the emergence of 

these drugs will bring about a new shift in the composition of the cardiovascular drug market. 

Since COVID-19 has a greater impact on the cardiovascular drug market, mainly due to 

changes in medical treatment habits. For patients with long-term medication for diseases such 

as cardiovascular disorder, drug acquisition and convenience of taking medication will be a 

major issue.  

Looking ahead, the global pharmaceutical industry will continue to grow and develop steadily 

in the future, along with population growth, aging structure, increased vigilance to health and 

increased demand for drugs. 

2-2.The market for precision medicine 

According to the BIS Research report, the global precision medicine market will gradually grow 

from USD78.9 billion in 2018 to USD216.8 billion in 2028, with a compound annual growth 

rate of 10.64%. In addition, Netscribes data also shows that the growth of the Asia-Pacific 

precision medicine market will be higher than that of the world, with an estimated annual 

compound growth rate of 16.63%. Based on this estimate, the economic scale of the 

Asia-Pacific market will reach 20.9 billion US dollars in 2023. 

In recent years, global governments have actively invested in precision medicine. For example, 

in January 2015, former President Obama of the USA actively promoted the "Precision 

Medicine Initiative"; in 2016, he also proposed the "MoonShot Project" with Vice President 

Biden, looking forward to the shortest possible time to conquer cancer. At the end of 2016, the 

US Congress passed the "21st Century Cures Act" to accelerate the FDA's review of drugs and 

medical materials, encourage medical research and innovation, and accelerate the United States' 

investment in the field of precision medicine. The global biotech industry also promotes the 

"precision medicine" policy in major countries. 

In accordance with the policy of "Complete Ecosystem-Creating a Vigorous Biotechnology 

Industry Environment" and the recommendations of the 2016 Biotechnology Industry Strategy 

Advisory Committee, the Ministry of Economic Affairs has started with the "Biomedical 

Industry Innovation Promotion Plan" approved by the Executive Yuan in 2016, and in 

December 2016 amended the "Regulations on the Development of Biotechnology and New 

Drug Industry" to add precision medicine, gene therapy and cell therapy to accelerate the 

development of the industry. The Executive Yuan also proposed the "Five Plus Two Industry 

Innovation Program". Among them, the biomedical industry innovation promotion program 

will develop niche precision medicine. Ministries and committees will work together to promote 
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various precision medicine plans. In particular, the integrated “Precision Oncology" flagship 

project, looking forward to turning Taiwan into a unique "Asia-Pacific cancer medical center". 

With the continuous introduction of drugs covered by National Health Insurance, companion 

targeted gene detections are also a mainstream of future development.  Among these detections, 

the application of liquid biopsy in the field of oncology is the fastest, because it only requires 

body fluid samples (for example, blood, saliva or urine)  for analysis and incurs a low 

invasiveness.  In addition to cancer screening, it can also be used for early detection and 

diagnosis of other major diseases, so that liquid slices have a very high potential in market 

development.  
3. Competitive niche 

 As far as the Company’s core competence in pharmaceuticals is concerned: 

A. The Company is well positioned. 

B. Complete value chain of pharmaceutical industry. 

C. Sustainable development of core competitive drugs for chronic diseases. 

(2) In terms of market competitiveness in precision medicine: 

A. The group is deeply involved in the cancer field and is familiar with key 

customer groups. 

B. Has a complete product line of tissue/liquid biopsy and risk assessment. 

C. Continue to introduce the domestic and foreign characteristics of the relevant 

testing products. 
4. Favorable, unfavorable factors to the Development Prospect and countermeasures 

(1)  Favorable factors 

A. The Taiwan market shows a growing trend 

(a). Pharmaceutical market 

In March 2021, the total drug market in Mat Taiwan reached NT$200.42 billion, an 

increase of 4.86% over the same period last year. However, due to the severe epidemic 

situation after May 2021, it is forecasted that the growth rate of the overall drug 

market will be affected and currently estimated that it will have a greater impact on 

drugs for chronic disease treatment. According to the public health viewpoint, with the 

aging of society, the total medical expenses should increase by about 6% year by year. 

In order to avoid excessive increases in overall medical costs of the national health 

system, annual reduction of medicine prices is adopted. However, as far as the overall 

long-term trend is concerned, the medical expenditure in Taiwan will increase 

gradually in the future, estimated to be about 3% per year, so that the overall 

pharmaceutical industry has room for sustained growth. 

(b). The market for precision medicine 

Based on disease category analysis, global pharmaceutical development is still 

dominated by cancer, so cancer is also the main focus in research and development for 

precision medicine industry. The CAGR for precision medicine for cancer in 

2017-2026 is 10.4%. Other chronic diseases, such as central nervous system disease and 

cardiovascular disease, are another focus of research and development for precision 

medicine. 

B. Excellent R&D and marketing capabilities 

(a) The Company is committed to the cultivation of talent and investment in research and 

development, and in line with the GMP norms of the Company, to enable the Company 

implement from pre-clinical trials, drafting human trial plan to the implementation of 

Human Trial Program Summary Report and application of new drug market so as to 

ensure the speed and plan of new product launch. 

(b) The marketing team has been deeply involved in the Taiwan market for many years. 
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They have a good grasp of the key channels and important customers of the main 

products for sustained growth in sales. 
(2) Unfavorable factors and countermeasures 

A. The reform of drug price payment system 

In Taiwan, the total payment system has been implemented for many times to adjust drug 

prices. Through the total payment system, the drug prices and drug quantity of domestic 

drug factories are controlled, affecting the selling prices and sales of some drugs, resulting in 

the reduction of the drug factories’ revenue and profits. 

In addition to establishing a complete sales network throughout the province, the Company 

is able to provide immediate services to medical institutions in order to increase the 

breadth of sales, and to increase sales channels and customers for drugs with a certain 

market size and value, to continuously enhance the confidence of hospitals and doctors in 

prescription drugs. Furthermore, to strengthen the research and introduction of new drugs 

and competitive new products to avoid the implementation of drug price adjustment, 

resulting in the Company’s declining profitability. On the other hand, through the 

introduction of genetic testing-related products, to increase sales volume step by step to 

reduce the financial impact from national health care price cuts. 

B. Manufacturers are small in scale and face upgrade pressure 

Most of the domestic pharmaceutical companies are traditional small and medium-sized 

pharmaceutical companies that mainly produce generic drugs and act as agents for the 

sales of foreign drugs. However, in terms of export sales, domestic pharmaceutical 

companies are restrained in growth from insufficient professional information on foreign 

markets and international regulations and lack international marketing experience. In 

addition, after Taiwan's accession to the World Trade Organization (WTO), foreign 

competitors have been added to occupy Taiwan's pharmaceutical market at lower prices, 

which will deal a big blow to most small and medium-sized pharmaceutical companies that 

rely on the domestic market. In order to respond to the trend of international regulations 

and improve the quality of drugs, Taiwan has implemented the Drug Master File (DMF)  

management since 2013, and has fully implemented PIC/S GMP since 2015. Both 

domestic and imported drugs and their manufacturing plants have been required to comply 

with PIC/S GMP, therefore, pharmaceutical factories that do not comply with PIC/S GMP 

will be phased out. 

The Company has now engaged in the development and sales of innovative generic drugs, 

deepening its operations in the field of chronic diseases, in order to maintain the capacity 

for new product research and development. On the other hand, it focuses on the

development of specialty drugs with drug economic effects, including drugs with high 

barriers or the development of patentable drugs. To build a complete product development 

portfolio in the fields of cardiovascular (CV), gastrointestinal (GI)  and auto-immune 

diseases (Auto-immuneDiseases), and is committed to becoming a biotech pharmaceutical 

factory for international drug development and marketing in Taiwan. To play the role of 

international partners in CV? GI and Auto-immuneDiseases drug development and 

marketing, and because of the investment in the above fields, the Company^ existence will 

help partners focus on the development of drugs to create more value-added benefits. 

(2)  Important use and production process of main products 
The Company’s main products are prescription drugs and testing items. The usage and production 

process are listed as follows: 

1. The important uses of prescription drugs can be divided into the following: 

A. Cardiovascular medicine: hypertension, arrhythmia, antiplatelet, angina pectoris, lowering 

blood lipids. 
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B. Gastroenterology drugs: Discomfort symptoms caused by abnormal peristalsis of 

the digestive organs. 

C. Central nervous system medicine: epilepsy, osteoarthritis, rheumatoid arthritis. 
2. Production process: 

3. The test items are mainly divided as follows: 

A. Risk assessment testing: genetic cancer risk testing, endometrial cancer gene

methylation testing. 

B. Next-generation gene sequencing: liquid slice gene sequencing, tissue slice gene sequencing. 

C. Circulating tumor cell detection: Circulating tumor cell tracking detection, 

PDL-1 tumor cell monitoring. 
4. Production process 

At present, the relevant tests are all service-type products. After the relevant blood or tissue 

samples are obtained by the medical institutions, they are transferred to the testing laboratory, 

and after the relevant tests are completed, the testing laboratory provides the relevant test report, 

and the Company provides to the relevant medical institutions. 

(3)Supply status of major raw materials 
The Company currently does not have a production plant, which is mainly for merchandise sales, so it 

is inapplicable. 

(4)Name and its purchase (sales)  amount and proportion of purchase and sales customers 
who account for more than 10% of the total purchases (sales)  in any year of the last two 
years, and explain the reasons for the increase or decrease 

1. Main purchase customers 

Information of major suppliers in the last two years 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Note 2: As of the date of the publication of the annual report, companies that are listed or whose stocks have been traded in the business premises of a securities firm have 

the latest financial information that has been verified by an accountant or reviewed, they shall be disclosed.

Note 3: In order to effectively control the cost, product quality and production timeliness of each product, in 2020 and 2021, respectively, the mode of commodity purchase was changed to 
the mode of customer supply, and the Company is responsible for purchasing API and then handing over to TTY Biopharm and Genovate for processing and production, resulting in 
the difference between the two years  

The figure below shows the production process of the main tablets: 

Item

2020 2021 Q1 of 2022 

Name Amount 

Percentage of 

annual net 

purchases 

Relationship 

with the issuer 
Name Amount 

Percentage of 

annual net 

purchases 

Relationship with 

the issuer
Name Amount 

Percentage of 

annual net 

purchases 

Relationship 

with the issuer 

1
TTY 

Biopharm  

97,759 53.32 Parent company  
TTY 

Biopharm  

71,615 43.61 Parent company  N/A N/A N/A N/A 

2
Gevovate 

47,089 25.68 N/A Genovate  28,794 17.53 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

3 Others 38,484 21.00 N/A Others 63,815 38.86 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Net purchase 183,332 100.00 - Net purchase  164,224 100.00 - Net purchase  N/A N/A - 

Note 1: List the names of suppliers with more than 10% of the total purchases in the last two years and their purchase amounts and proportions, but because the contract stipulates that it 

is not permitted to disclose the supplier's name or the transaction object is an individual and non-related person, thus a code may be used instead. 
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2. Major sales customers 

Information of major sales customers in the last two years 
Unit: Thousand dollars 

(3) The output value of the last two years: 

Note 1: The Company does not have a factory, so there is no capacity information..  

Note 2: Output refers to the quantity of finished products with materials supplied by customers or imported products.  

Note 3: It does not include the information of recalled agent products in 2020. 

(4) Value of sales in the last two years: 

Item

2020 2021 Q1 of 2022 (Note 2) 

Name Amount

Percentage 

of total 

annual net 

sales

Relationship 

with the 

issuer

Name Amount

Percentage of 

total annual 

net sales

Relationship 

with the 

issuer

Name Amount

Percentage of 

total annual 

net sales

Relationship 

with the 

issuer

1 Top Pharma  

(Note 3)  

72,800 16.26 N/A Top Pharma 

(Note 3)  

69,809 16.88 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 Others 372,949 83.27 N/A Others 341,571 82.61 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

3 Labor income 2,113 0.47 
Parent 

company Labor income 2,103 0.51 
Parent 

company N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net sales 447,862 100.00 - Net sales 413,483 100.00 - Net sales N/A N/A - 

Note 1: List the names of customers with more than 10% of the total sales in the last two years and their sales amounts and proportions, but because the contract stipulates that it is not 

permitted to disclose the customer's name or the transaction object is an individual and non-related person, thus a code may be used instead. 

Note 2: As of the date of the publication of the annual report, companies that are listed or whose stocks have been traded in the business premises of a securities firm have 

the latest financial information that has been verified by an accountant or reviewed, they shall be disclosed. 

Note 3: The name of the principal customer for the sale of goods is: TOP Pharma & Medicalware.  

With the launch and sales of the Company's cardiovascular pharmacology lipid-coated tablets (Linicor), Rhynorm tablets, and various test products, the percentage of sales 

increases. 

 _____________________________________________ Unit: Thousand dosages, thousand injections; Thousand NT$ 

Year
Output values of 

main products

Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 2020 Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 2021

Capacity 
(Note 1)

Output 
(Note 2, 3)

Output value 
(Note 3)

Capacity 
(Note 1)

Output Output value

Cardiovascular

medicine

N/A 72,236 105,283 N/A 69,039 95,677 

Gastroenterology

medicine

N/A 74,491 33,695 N/A 76,618 34,607 

Central nervous 

system medicine

N/A 11,466 16,839 N/A 8,625 13,908 

Testing items
N/A 2 12,008 N/A 2 16,263 

Total N/A 158,195 167,825 N/A 154,284 160,455 

 _____________________________________________ Unit: Thousand dosages, thousand injections; Thousand NT$ 

2020.01.01 to 2020.12.31 2021.01.01 to 2021.12.31 

Sales amount Domestic sales Export domestic sales Export 

Main products Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value 

Cardiovascular

medicine

72,934 308,035 2,385 5,156 66,997 276,999 1,728 3,842 

Gastroenterology

medicine

75,751 80,748 N/A N/A 76,230 76,857 250 1,918 

Central nervous 

system medicine
12,701 30,912 N/A N/A 10,462 27,576 N/A N/A

Other medicines 2 20,898 N/A N/A 1 24,188 N/A N/A

Testing items 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 N/A N/A

Total 161,388 440,593 2,385 5,156 153,690 405,620 1,978 5,760 
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3. Employees 

4. Information On Environmental Protection Expenditure 
For the most recent year and up to the publication date of the annual report, losses incurred due to 

pollution of the environment (including compensation and violation of environmental laws and 

regulations as a result of the environmental protection inspection, the date of disposition, the letter of 

disposition, the provisions of the laws and regulations, the content of the violation, and the content of 

the disposition)  shall be specified, if it cannot be reasonably estimated, it shall explain the fact that it 

cannot be reasonably estimated. 

Since the establishment of the Company on 1 October, 2010 and up to the date of publication of the 

annual report, the Company has no environmental pollution and shall adhere to this belief and 

maintain the best achievements.

Year 2020  2021  
For the three months 

ended March 31, 2022 

No. of 

employees

Management 14 14 14

R & D 5 7 6 

Other employees 58 47 44 

Total 77 68 64 

Average age 39.45 40.25 40.5

Average service years 3.6 4.5 4.8

Percentage 

distribution of 

academic 

qualifications 

Doctor 0% 0% 0% 

Master 35% 35% 34% 

College 44% 48% 48% 

Junior college 19% 16% 17% 

High school 0% 0% 0% 

Below high 

school 
0% 0% 0% 
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5. Labor Relations 
(1)  Set out the Company’s various employee welfare measures, further education, training, retirement 

system and its implementation, as well as the agreements between employers and employees 

and the various measures to safeguard employees’ rights and interests. 

1. Employee welfare measures and implementation status

In order to strengthen the relationship between the Company and its colleagues, encourage 

their contributions, create more well-being, take care of their lives, and establish a good 

culture and spirit of the Company, we hereby comply with the Regulations on Employee 

Welfare and the Organization Rules of the Welfare Committee issued by the competent 

authority. On November 8, 2010, the Company approved the establishment of the 

Employee Welfare Committee with the approval of the Taipei City LZZ No. 09941864100, 

and the Company allocated the welfare funds according to law to the committee to handle 

various welfare measures. It is described as follows: 

A. Birthday gift: A birthday gift of NT$1,000 will be paid in the month of the employee’s 

birthday. 

B. Marriage Gift: For employees who have served for three months but less than one year, 

a gift of NT$3,600 will be granted; Staff with more than one year of service will receive 

NT$6,000 as a gift. 

C. Birth: NT$3,600 for each birth of a co-worker or spouse who has passed the probation 

period. 

D. Festival gift: NT$1,000 for Dragon Boat Festival, mid-autumn Festival and 

International Workers Day. 

E. Education Grant: divided into scholarships and bursaries. Students from low-income 

families will be given a scholarship of NT$1,000 to NT$4,000 to reward their students’ 

achievement. Students from low-income families will be given a scholarship of 

NT$4,000 to NT$10,000 subsidy in accordance with their level of education. 

F. Hospital Care: NT$3,000 for those who have been admitted to hospital after passing 

the probation period; NT$800 gift for hospital visit. 

G. Disaster Relief: In the event of a disaster, colleagues will be given NT$5,000 to 

NT$30,000 as appropriate. 

H. Condolence: 

a. Flower baskets with NT$3, 100 and NT$2,000 as a token of condolence for parents, 

children, and spouses of the deceased. 

b. Grandparents, grandparents-in-law, siblings, grandchildren, grandchildren-in-law, 

great-grandparent and great-grandparent-in-law will be provided with NT$1, 500 

or NT$2,000 flower baskets when they pass away (either one). 

I. Others: Company dinners and year-end dinner of the year: The Welfare 

Committee organizes various activities from time to time according to budget and 

needs. And at the end of each year, it is responsible for planning the gifts and 

dinners for the end of the year. 
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2. Employee further education and training and their implementation 

In order to enhance the professional knowledge and skills of our employees, to effectively 

accomplish tasks, achieve work goals and motivate their potential as well as enhance their 

willingness to learn, so as to meet the needs of their self-growth and organizational 

development, in accordance with the Company’s Education and Training Management 

Measures, the implementation of pre-service training, internal and external in-service 

training and domestic and foreign training and other related training courses.  In response to 

the trend of globalization, we have signed preferential plans with a number of foreign 

language learning institutions in 2021 to provide employees with plentiful foreign language 

learning resources.  In addition, a special planning team will set up courses at the end of the 

year. Through team activities, we will build organizational consensus and move forward 

with our five-year goal. 

3. The employee retirement system and its implementation 

All employees of the Company are covered by the Labor Pensions Ordinance (The 

new scheme) which came into effect on July 1, 2005, the pension shall be paid by the 

Company at a monthly rate of not less than 6% of the monthly salary and shall be 

deposited in the employee pension personal account.

(1) Retirement qualifications: 

According to Article 24 of the Labor Retirement Ordinance, an employee who has 

reached the age of 60 and has worked for more than 15 years may claim a monthly 

Implementation Status of the Year  

Item 
No. of 

Classes

No. of 

Trainees 

Total No. of 

Hours

Total 

Expense 

(dollars) 

New Employee Training  1 10 4 0 

Professional Skill Training 17 40 169.5 9,765 

Management Training 5 43 32 43,147 

General Knowledge Training 14 68 82 59,235 

External Training 20 20 435 78,400 

Total 57 181 722.5 190,547 

 Implementation status: 

Retirement 

system 

New scheme 

Applicable law Labor Pensions Ordinance 

How to appropriate 
According to the employee's insurance level, 6% is allocated to the 

individual account of the Labor Insurance Bureau

Amount of 

appropriation 
Setting aside NT$4,181,000 in 2021. 

Application for 

retirement 
No employee has applied for retirement in 2021. 
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pension. However, those who have not completed 15 years of service shall be 

eligible for a lumpsum pension. 
(2) Pension payment and standard 

Individual pension account system: 

• Monthly pension: the amount of a worker’s retirement account and 

accumulated income calculated on the basis of the average life expectancy 

and interest rate as defined in the annuity life table. 

• One-time pension: the principal and the accumulated income of a lumpsum 

pension from an individual pension account. 

4. Agreements between employers and employees and measures to safeguard 

employees’ rights and interests 

Any new or revised measures related to employer-employee relations of the 

Company are finalized after the employer-employee meeting has been fully 

negotiated and communicated by both parties. In 2021, the Company held 

employer-employee meetings regularly and set up multiple communication channels, 

including TSH Post, TSH TV, TSH Talk (Staff Mailbox) to allow the opinions of 

both employers and employees to be effectively communicated. 

5. Code of conduct or ethics for employees 

In order to clarify and regulate the rights and obligations of employer and employee, 

the Company has established "work rules" in accordance with the law and publicly 

disclosed them after approval by the competent authority, so that the Company's 

colleagues can follow the rules of employment, resignation, dismissal, retirement, 

wages, working hours, rewards and punishments, compensation for disasters, injuries 

and illnesses, pensions, welfare measures, and safety and health, etc. All have clear 

regulations, and there is a "Code of Integrity Management" to regulate the process of 

employees’ business conduct. Or indirectly provide, promise, request or accept any 

improper benefits, or make other dishonest acts that violate integrity, illegality, or 

breach of fiduciary obligations, in order to obtain or maintain benefits. For the 

relevant contents of the "Code of Integrity Management," please refer to the 

Company's website http://www.tshbiopharm.com

6. Protective measures for the working environment and the personal safety of employees 

(1) Conduct regular employee health checks every year and the Company has a first 

aid kit for medicines. 

(2) Drinking water equipment that meets drinking water standards is installed in the 

workplace, and cleaned and maintained regularly every 1 to 2 months. 

(3) The workplace environmental sanitation management and cleaning and 

maintenance committee is regularly implemented by a professional cleaning 

company in accordance with the Company's "cleaning and maintenance schedule" 

items in accordance with the cleaning operation benchmark book to ensure the 

quality of the work environment. 

(4) Formulate "Office Security and Maintenance Measures" to maintain office security. 

A. Do not place flammable and dangerous articles. 

B. Colleagues who leave the office at the end of each day after get off work or 
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overtime on holidays, must close doors and windows, air-conditioning and the 

lighting in front of the gate. 

C. After get off work or when working overtime on holidays, if there are no other 

people in the office, please lock the door (ground lock) to prevent theft. 

D. Implement a total ban on smoking indoors and public places in accordance with 

the provisions of the Tobacco Hazard Control Act. 

E. Colleagues who borrow keys for parking space and office must return them 

after use and must not lend the Company's prohibited cards and keys to 

non-company personnel without authorization. 

(5) In order to maintain the working environment and the personal safety of 

employees, a "Safety and Sanitation Work Code" has been formulated and an 

occupational safety and health officer has been appointed; the Company's "Safety 

and Sanitation Work Code" should be implemented after approval by the 

competent authority. 

A. In principle, the actual operator is responsible for the work related to safety and 

sanitation inspection; and the management, command, and supervision personnel 

are responsible for supervising it. 

B. In order to prevent the stacked objects from collapsing or falling, all stacked 

objects should be tied with ropes, set up piles, limit the height, or change the 

stacking method. 

C. Clearly prescribe first aid measures such as general first aid, traumatic bleeding, 

electric shock, fracture, respiratory arrest, cardiac arrest, etc. 

D. When a death disaster occurs in a workplace, if more than three people are 

affected at the same time, and more than one person is affected by the disaster 

and requires hospitalization, and other disasters designated by the central 

competent authority, it is necessary to notify the labor inspection agency within 

eight hours aside from taking emergency first aid, rescue, etc. 

(6) For enforcement of access control, employees and visitors entering the Company 

are required to pass the swipe sensor verification at the elevator of the park building 

and the office gate. 

(7) Participate in firefighting seminars and drills organized by the Nangang Software 

Park Phase II Management Committee every year. 

(8) Adequate fire extinguishers should be installed in the office space. 

(9) All employees of the Company are covered by labor insurance, national health 

insurance, and group insurance separately insured by the Company; employees 

who are assigned by the Company on business trips shall be insured by the 

administration department including travel safety insurance, and increase the 

insurance coverage according to the situation to protect the safety of employees 

who are on business trips. 

(10) The Zhongxiao Branch of Taipei United Hospital has an outpatient department 

outside the hospital in the second phase of Nangang Software Park where the 

Company is located. 
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(2)  List the losses suffered due to labor disputes in the most recent year and as of 
the publication date of the annual report, and disclose the estimated amount 
and corresponding measures that may occur at present and in the future. If 
it cannot be reasonably estimated, it shall state the fact accordingly. 

The Company’s employer-employee relationship is harmonious. In the most recent 
year and as of the publication date of the annual report, there was no loss due to 
labor disputes. 

6. Information Security Management 
(1)  Information security risk management framework, security policy, specific management 

plan, and resources invested in information security management 

1. To unify the coordination, planning, auditing and promotion of information security management and 

related matters, a single independent information security risk management team was established. This team 

is composed of the head of the general management office, IT personnel, and internal auditors. They 

regularly review our information security policy. The main responsibilities of this group include: the 

research, construction and evaluation of information security policies and technical specifications; research 

on, and management and protection of, data and information system security needs; the maintenance of 

information confidentiality, security audits, and the approval of other information security matters.  

2. Information Security Policy and Specific Management Plan 

Our company's information security policy objective is to ensure the confidentiality, integrity and 

availability of information. 

(1)   Availability:  To ensure timely and accurate data and data asset services to meet the needs of users. 

(2)   Integrity: To classify information assets according to their importance and provide the necessary 

protection to ensure their integrity. 

(3) Confidentiality: To appropriately divide information according to confidentiality level, and properly 

regulate and protect it according to said level. 

Our company's information security compliance standard is ISO27001, even though we are not among those 
companies required to obtain international certification for our information security policies and specific 
management plans. At present, according to the information security risk tolerance identified by the Company's 
risk management team, no insurance against security risks is required. However, in the interests of information 
security management, the Company continues to take measures to strengthen and defend our information security. 
Our company invested about NTD$321,000 in 2021 to update our information software and hardware equipment, 
thereby strengthening our information security protection capabilities.

Our information security policies and specific management plan is provided below:  

Regarding Objectives Steps being taken to that end

Employee security 

management and 

educational training

Continued creation, 

guidance and 

promotion of an 

understanding of 

information security 

among employees, in 

order to raise the level 

of information 

security competency

1. Unscheduled online posting to company employees of our 

security information literature

2. Unscheduled emailing of information security documents

3. All new employees receive information security education and 

training.

4. Current employees annually carry out information security 

advocacy. 

-114-



Computer system security 

management

Security management 

Update management 

Usage management 

Outsourcing 

management

1.All company computers are installed with anti-virus software, 

which updates automatically.  

2.Changes to critical information systems perform updates in 

accordance with software management.

3.Updates to the software license list happen at the same time as 

software changes.

4.In the management of outsourced manufacturers, we perform 

maintenance operations via an application form.

Internet security 

management

External connections 

management

Internal connections 

management

Information flow 

management

1. Management of inter-network access 

2. Separation of internal and external loops of our wireless base 

platform

3. Providing encryption software for the circulation of electronic 

files

System access controls

System access 

policies

Management of 

personnel changes 

Personnel 

identification 

management

Remote access 

management

1. All critical systems are set up via an authorization form 

2. All remote workers will use VPN software to connect to the 

Company network via a secure, encrypted channel.

Security management for 

systems development and 

maintenance

Systems development 

management  

Outsourced 

manufacturing 

management 

Management during 

commission 

Regardless of whether a software development project is 

self-developed or outsourced, in accordance with the software 

project framework, all documents and execution contents are 

retained.

Intellectual property 

security management

Intellectual Property 

Directory

Information security 

levels

Data output 

management

1. A full record of the software inventory is maintained at all times; 

the hardware inventory is updated annually. 

2.  Each data file is assigned a security level and a classification 

suitability assessment is performed. 

3. The information security process records the specification and 

content of all output data.

4. Files are backed up remotely.

Physical and 

environmental security 

management

Safeguard system 

management

Monitoring system 

management

Access control 

system management

1. Regularly perform information security inspections. 

2.  Regularly review the environment to ensure compliance with 

information security standards

Management and outlining 

of a plan for sustainable 

businesses operations

Crisis response 

measures

Sustainability plan 

Perform regular disaster recovery exercises to check emergency 

response measures.

 (2) List the losses incurred by, possible impacts of, and countermeasures taken against, all 

major information security incidents in the most recent year and as of the date of publication 

of the annual report. If it is impossible to estimate reasonably, the fact that it cannot be 

reasonably estimated shall be stated.

In the most recent year and up to the date of publication of the annual report, our company 

has not suffered any losses due to major information security incidents. 
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7. Important Contracts 
Contractual 

Nature 
Related Party  Contract Term Main Content  Restrictions 

investment 

agreement  
CellMax. Starting from 2019.02.13 Equity Investment 

according to 

contract  

Oversea 

License   
Innopharmax Starting from 2019.02.20

Oversea License of 

Products   

according to 

contract  

contract 

assignment  
Anxo Starting from 2020.08.04

Transfer of Drug 

License Rights  

according to 

contract  

contract 

assignment  
Mycenax  Completed by  2018.01.04 

Transfer of Drug 

License Rights  

according to 

contract  

OEM  TTY Biopharm  2021.01.01-2025.12.31 OEM 
according to 

contract  

OEM  Genovate. 2020.11.01-113.10.31 ODM
according to 

contract  

OEM  Genovate 2020.01.01-2022.12.31 OEM 
according to 

contract  

Distribution 

Agency  
Aju Pharm. 2019.10.01-2025.9.30 

Drug Distribution 

Agency  

according to 

contract  

Distribution 

Agency  
American Taiwan Biopharm Starting from 2013.08.20

Overseas Drug 

Distribution Agency  

according to 

contract  

Distribution 

Agency  
CENTOGENE GmbH Starting from 2021.03.01

Product/Service 

Distribution Agency  

according to 

contract  
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VI. Financial Overview 
1. Concise Balance Sheet And Statement Of Comprehensive Income For 

The Last Five Years 
(1)  Concise balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income 

Concise balance sheet 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Year

Item

Financial information for the last five years (Note 1) Financial data for 

the year ending 

March 31, 2022
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Current assets 997,419 895,718 885,884 943,841 919,972 N/A

Real estate, plant, 
equipment 19,410 21,585 26,225 25,255 22,792 N/A

Intangible assets 13,001 10,572 8,239 6,180 3,628 N/A

Other assets 239,386 279,052 337,213 249,587 216,334 N/A

Non-current assets 12,487 13,394 6,194 4,517 6,700 N/A

Total assets 1,281,703 1,220,321 1,263,755 1,229,380 1,169,426 N/A

Current

liabilities

Before 
Distribution 

135,082 99,417 138,792 98,618 85,800 N/A

After 
Distribution

215,718 160,854 207,909 167,735 143,397 N/A

Non-Current 0 23 0 4,418 0 N/A

Total 
liability

Before 
Distribution 

135,082 99,440 138,792 103,036 85,800 N/A

After 
Distribution

215,718 160,877 207,909 172,153 143,397 N/A

Equity of owner of 

parent company
1,146,621 1,120,881 1,124,963 1,126,344 1,083,626 N/A

Equity 383,981 383,981 383,981 383,981 383,981 N/A

Capital reserve 458,977 458,977 458,977 458,977 459,361 N/A

Retained

surplus

Before
Distribution 

174,186 151,366 175,256 266,626 224,075 N/A

After 
Distribution

93,550 89,929 106,139 197,509 166,478 N/A

Other equity 129,477 126,557 106,749 16,760 16,209 N/A

Treasury stock 0 0 0 0 0 N/A

Non-controlling equity 0 0 0 0 0 N/A

Total

equity

Before 
Distribution 

1,146,621 1,120,881 1,124,963 1,126,344 1,083,626 N/A

After 
Distribution

1,065,955 1,059,444 1,055,846 1,057,227 1,026,029 N/A

Note 1:  The 2021 earnings distribution proposal has not yet been approved by the shareholders meeting. 
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Concise statement of comprehensive income 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Year 

Item 

Financial information for the last five years 
Financial

Information for the 

year March 31 2022 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Operating income 486,277 515,646 507,666 447,862 413,483 N/A 

Operating gross profit 317,308 334,386 314,730 285,192 247,358 N/A 

Operating profit and 70,922 61,964 56,198 74,304 55,615 N/A 

Non-operating 3,220 3,943 47,157 2,928 5,934 N/A 

Net profit before tax 74,142 65,907 103,355 77,232 61,549 N/A 

Continued business 
unit Net profit for the 
period

64,971 57,784 85,327 61,570 47,108 N/A 

Loss of failed 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 

Net profit (loss)  for the period 64,971 57,784 85,327 61,570 47,108 N/A 

Other comprehensive gains and 

losses for the period (Net after tax) 
(249,678) (2,888) (19,808) 8,928 (21,094) N/A 

Total (184,707) 54,896 65,519 70,498 26,014 N/A 

Net profit to the owner 

of the parent 
(184,707) 54,896 65,519 70,498 26,014 N/A 

Net profit attributable 

to non-controlling 
0 0 0 0 0 N/A 

The total 

comprehensive profit 
(184,707) 54,896 65,519 70,498 26,014 N/A 

Total comprehensive 

profit and loss 
0 0 0 0 0 N/A 

Earnings per share 1.69 1.50 2.22 1.60 1.23 N/A 
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(2)  Concise balance sheet and income statement-Taiwan's financial accounting standards 1. Concise 

balance sheet-Taiwan’s financial accounting standards 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Year Financial information of the last five years (Note 1)  

Item 2017  2018  2019  2020 2021

Current assets — — — — — 

Real estate, plant and 
equipment (Note 2)  — — — — — 

Intangible assets — — — — — 

Other assets — — — — — 

Total assets — — — — — 

Current 

Before 

distribution 
— — — — — 

liabilities After 

distribution 
— — — — — 

Non-current liability 
— — — — — 

Other liabilities — — — — — 

Total 

Before 

distribution 
— — — — — 

liabilities After 

distribution 
— — — — — 

Equity — — — — —

Capital reserve — — — — — 

Retained 

Before 

distribution 
— — — — — 

earnings After 

distribution 
— — — — — 

Other interests  

— — — — — 

Treasury shares  
— — — — — 

Total equity  

Before 
distribution  

— — — — — 

After 
distribution 

— — — — —

Note 1: The year for which the certificate was not audited by the accountant should be indicated.
Note 2: If the asset revaluation was conducted in the current year, the date of the transaction and the revaluation value-added amount should be listed. 
Note 3: Please fill in the above figures after distribution according to the situation of the Board of Directors or the resolution of the next annual shareholders meeting. 
Note 4: If the financial information is notified by the competent authority that it should be corrected or restated by itself, such information should be listed in the figures after the correction 
or restatement, and the circumstances and reasons should be indicated.
Note 5: the Company has been established since September 1, 2010.  
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2. Concise Income Statement-Taiwan's Financial Accounting Standards 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Year 
Financial data for the last five years (Note 1)  

Item 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Operating income — — — — — 

Operating gross profit — — — — — 

Operating profit & loss — — — — — 

Non-operating income and 

expenses 
— — — — — 

Net profit (loss) before tax  — — — — — 

Profit and loss of continuing 

business units  
— — — — — 

Profit and loss of closed units — — — — — 

Cumulative effect of changes in 

accounting principles 
— — — — — 

Net profit (loss) for the current 
period  

— — — — — 

Other comprehensive profit and 

loss for the current period 
— — — — — 

Total  comprehensive profit and 
loss for the current period 

— — — — — 

Note: The Company was established on September 1, 2010. 

Year Name of certified public accountant Review opinion 

2017 KPMG: Shin-Chin Chih, and Kuo-Yang Tseng Unqualified opinion 

2018 KPMG: Shin-Chin Chih, and Kuo-Yang Tseng Unqualified opinion 

2019 KPMG: Shin-Chin Chih, and Kuo-Yang Tseng Unqualified opinion 

2020 KPMG: Shin-Chin Chih, and Kuo-Yang Tseng Unqualified opinion 

2021 KPMG: Shin-Chin Chih, and Kuo-Yang Tseng Unqualified opinion 

(3)  The name of the certified public accountant in the last five years and their review opinions 

Note: The Company was established on September 1, 2010. 
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2. Financial Analysis For The Last Five Years 

2.  Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years 
(1) Financial analysis

Year (Note 1) 
Financial Analysis for the last five years

As of March 31,

Analysis items ( Note 3) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (Note 2) 

F
in

an
cial 

S
tru

ctu
re %

Ratio of liabilities to assets 10.54 8.15 10.98 8.38 7.34 N/A

Ratio of long-term capital to 
real estate, plant and 
equipment

5,907.37 5,192.98 4,289.66 4,477.38 4,754.41 N/A

S
o

lv
en

cy
 %

Current ratio 738.38 900.97 638.28 957.07 1,072.23 N/A

Quick ratio 691.22 852.88 576.75 849.58 971.72 N/A

Interest coverage ratio N/A N/A 1,261.43 2,861.44 770.36 N/A

Turnover rate of accounts 
receivable (times) 

3.29 3.95 4.30 3.91 3.94 N/A

O
p

eratin
g

 cap
acity

Average cash collection days 111 92 85 93 93 N/A

Inventory turnover rate 

(times) 
3.22 3.28 3.63 2.38 2.20 N/A

Turnover of accounts 
payable (times) 

3.24 3.47 4.94 6.70 16.50 N/A

Average days of sales 113 111 101 154 166 N/A

Turnover rate of real estate, 

plant and equipment (times) 
23.52 25.16 21.24 17.40 17.21 N/A

Turnover rate of total assets 
(times) 

0.34 0.41 0.41 0.36 0.34 N/A

Return on assets (%) 4.56 4.62 6.88 4.94 3.93 N/AP
ro

fitab
ility

Return on equity (%) 5.00 5.10 7.60 5.47 4.35 N/A

The ratio of net profit before 
tax to paid-in capital (%) 
(Note 7)

19.31 17.16 26.92 20.11 16.03 N/A

Net profit rate (%) 13.36 11.21 16.81 13.75 11.39 N/A

Earnings per share ( dollars ) 1.69 1.50 2.22 1.60 1.23 N/A

C
ash

 flo
w

Cash flow ratio (%) 60.06 62.98 63.87 11.77 80.08 N/A

Allowable cash flow ratio
(%) 81.61 71.83 77.93 63.02 70.82 N/A

Cash reinvestment ratio(%) -3.31 -1.44 2.13 -4.82 -0.04 N/A

L
ev

erag
e

Operating leverage 1.84 1.94 2.19 1.83 1.94 N/A

Financial leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 N/A

Reasons for changes in various financial ratios during the last two years (20% change in increase or decrease): 
(1) Since 2020, the Company has changed the purchase of finished products to the customer-supplied processing mode to control 

the increase of raw material costs. Different payment terms are set by each manufacturer, resulting in different payment speeds
from previous years. In addition, due to the COVID-19 epidemic, in 2021, the number of outpatients in various medical 
institutions was  reduced, and some health examination centers were closed, resulting in a decline in the sales of various 
products. At the same time, the progress of overseas R&D projects has also been delayed due to the impact of the epidemic, 
resulting in delayed implementation of R&D milestone funds, resulting in a lower labor income than expected. 

(2) In summation, 2021 has a net profit lower than that of 2020.  Except for the ratios related to financial structure and operating 
capacity other ratios such as interest coverage ratio, payables turnover ratio, profitability-related ratios, and cash flow-related 
ratios are all affected, and their financial ratios have changed by more than 20%. 

Note 1: The year not audited by the accountant should be indicated.  

Note 2: As of the date of publication of the annual report, companies whose stocks have been listed or whose stocks have been 
traded at the business offices of securities firms should also be analyzed if they have the most recent financial 
information that has been verified, certified or reviewed by the accountant.  
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Note 3: At the end of the annual report, the following calculation formula should be listed: 
     1.  Capital Structure Analysis  

(1) Debit ratio = Total liabilities/Total assets. 
(2) Long-term fund to fixed asset (real estate, plant and equipment) ratio = (Total equity + Non-current liability) / 

Net amount of real estate, plant and equipment. 
2. Liquidity Analysis 

(1) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities. 
(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventory - Prepaid expenses) / Current liabilities. 
(3) Interest guarantee (times) = Net profit before income tax and interest expense / Interest expense for the current 

period.  
3. Operating Performance Analysis  

(1) Average Collection Turnover (including accounts receivable and bills receivable arising from business 
operations) = Net sales / Average balance of receivables (including accounts receivable and bills receivable 
arising from business operations) in each period. 

(2) Average collection days = 365/Receivables turnover rate. 
(3) Inventory turnover = Cost of goods sold/Average inventory. 
(4) Turnover rate of accounts payable (including accounts payable and bills payable arising from business 

operations) =Cost of goods sold / Balance of average payables (including accounts payable and bills payable 
arising from business operations) in each period. 

(5) Average days of sales = 365/inventory turnover rate. 
(6) Turnover rate of real estate, plant and equipment = Net sales / Average net amount of real estate, plant and 

equipment. 
(7) Turnover rate of total asset = Net sales / Average total assets.  
  

4.  Profitability 
(1) Return on assets = [Profit and loss after tax + interest expense × (1- tax rate)] / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = Profit and loss after tax / Average total equity. 
(3) Net profit ratio = Profit and loss after tax / Net sales. 
(4) Earnings per share = (Profits and losses attributable to owners of the parent company - dividends on special 

shares) / Weighted average number of issued shares. (Note 4) 
5.  Cash flow 

(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities / Current liabilities. 
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow of operating activities in the last five years / (Capital 

expenditure + Inventory increase + Cash dividend) of the last five years. 
(3) Cash flow reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - Cash dividends) / (Gross amount of 

real estate, plant and equipment + Long-term investment + other non-current assets + Working capital).  
(Note 5) 

6. Leverage:  

(1) Operating leverage (Net operating income - Variable operating costs and expenses) / Operating profit 

 (Note 6).  

(2) Financial leverage Operating profit / (Operating profit - Interest expense).  

Note 4:  In the above calculation formulas of earnings per share, special attentions should be paid to the following: 
1. Based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares, but not on the number of issued shares at the end of the 

year. 
2. For those having a cash capital increase or treasury stock trading, the weighted average number of shares should be 

calculated taking their circulation period into account. 
3. Whenever there is a capital increase from surplus or capital reserve, retrospective adjustments should be made 

according to the capital increase ratio when calculating the earnings per share for previous years and half-years, 
regardless of the issuance period of the capital increase.

4. If the preferred stock is a non-convertible cumulative preferred stock, its dividend for the current year (whether 
issued or not) should be deducted from the net profit after tax, or increased by the net loss after tax.  If the preferred 
stock is of a non-cumulative preferred stock and there is profit after tax, the special stock dividend should be 
deducted from the net profit after tax; and no adjustment if it is a loss, it shall not be adjusted. 

Note 5: In the cash flow analysis, special attentions should be paid to the following: 
1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities stated in the cash flow 

statement. 
2. Capital expenditure refers to the annual cash outflow for capital investment. 
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3. The increase of inventory will only be included when the closing balance is greater than the opening balance, and 
will be calculated as zero if the inventory at the end of the year decreases. 

4. Cash dividends include cash dividends on ordinary shares and preferred shares. 
5. The gross amount of real estate, plant and equipment refers to the total amount of real estate, plant and equipment 

before deducting accumulated depreciation.

Note 6: The issuer shall divide various operating costs and operating expenses into fixed and variable cost according 
to their nature. Estimates or subjective judgments so involved shall be noted with special attentions to their 
rationality and maintenance of consistency. 

Note 7: If the shares of the company have no par value or the denomination per share is not NT$10, the 
aforementioned profit ratio of paid-in capital shall be calculated based on the equity ratio attributable to the 
owner of the parent company stated in the balance sheet. 

.
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(2) Financial Analysis-Taiwan's Enterprise Accounting Standards 

Year

Analysis

Financial Analysis for the last five years

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Financial

structure

Debt to assets ratio — — — — —

Ratio of long-term capital to 

real property, plant and 

equipment (%) 

— — — — —

Solvency

Current ratio (%) — — — — —

Quick ratio (%) — — — — —

Interest coverage multiple — — — — —

O
p

eratin
g

 cap
ab

ility

Turnover rate of accounts 

receivable (times) — — — — —

Average cash collection 

days
— — — — —

Inventory turnover 

rate(times) 
— — — — —

Accounts payable turnover 

rate (times) 
— — — — —

Average sales days — — — — —

Real estate, plant and equipment 

turnover rate of fixed assets 

(times)  

— — — — —

Turnover rate of total assets 

(times) 
— — — — —

P
ro

fitab
ility

Return on assets (%) — — — — —

Return on equity (%) — — — — —

Percentage 

of paid-in 

capital 

(%)

Operating profits — — — — —

Net profit before tax — — — — —

Net profit rate (%) — — — — —

Earnings per share (dollar) — — — — —

C
ash

 flo
w

Cash flow ratio (%) — — — — —

Allowable cash flow ratio 

(%) 
— — — — —

Cash reinvestment ratio(%) — — — — —

L
ev

erag
e

Operating leverage — — — — —

Financial leverage — — — — —

Note 1 • The Company was established on September 1, 2010. 
Note 2 • Calculation formula: 

1. Financial structure 
(1) RATIO OF LIABILITIES TO ASSETS = total liabilities/total assets. 
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to real estate, plant and equipment (Total equity non-current liability)  net 
amount of real estate, plant and equipment. 

2. Solvency 
(1) Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities. 
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets-inventory-prepaid expenses) / current liabilities. 
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(3) Interest coverage multiple = net profit before income tax and interest expense/interest expense in the 
current period. 

3. Operating capability 
(1) Accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable due to business)  turnover rate = net 

sales/average accounts receivable for each period (including accounts receivable and notes receivable due to business)  balance. 
(2) Average number of days for cash collection = 365/ turnover rate of accounts receivable. 

(3) Inventory turnover rate = cost of goods sold/average inventory value. 
(4) Accounts payable (including accounts payable and bills payable due to business)  turnover rate = cost of goods 

sold/average of each period (including accounts payable and bills payable due to business)  balance. 
(5) Average sales days=365/inventory turnover rate. 
(6) Real estate, plant and equipment turnover rate   net sales net amount of real estate, plant and equipment. 
(7) Turnover rate of total assets = net sales/total assets. 

4. Profitability 
(1) Return on assets = [After-tax profit and loss + interest expense x (1-tax rate) ] / average total assets. 
(2) Return on shareholders' equity = after-tax profit and loss/average net shareholders' equity. 
(3) Net profit rate = after-tax profit and loss/net sales. 
(4) Earnings per share = (net profit after tax-special stock dividend) /weighted average number of issued shares. 
(Note 4)  

5. Cash flow 
(1)  Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities/current liabilities.
(2) Net cash flow allowable ratio = net cash flow from operating activities in the most recent five years/the most 

recent five years (capital expenditure  + inventory increase + cash dividends). 
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio (Net cash flow from operating activities - cash dividend ) (Gross amount of real 

estate, plant and equipment + Long-term Investment  other non-current asset + Work capital). (Note 5)  
6. Leverage: 

(1) Operating leverage = (net operating income-variable operating costs and expenses) / operating profit (Note 6). 
(2) Financial leverage = operating profit/(operating profit-interest expense). 

Note 3: For above calculation formula of earnings per share, it is necessary to pay attention to the following while measuring:
1. Based on the weighted average number of common shares, rather than the number of issued shares at the end of the 

year. 
2. For those who have cash capital increase or treasury stock trading, the weighted average number of shares should be 

calculated in consideration of the circulation period. 
3. Where there is a capital increase from surplus or a capital increase from capital reserves, when calculating the 

earnings per share of previous years and half-years, retrospective adjustments should be made according to the 
capital increase ratio, regardless of the period of the issuance of the capital increase. 

4. If the special shares are non-convertible cumulative special shares, the dividend for the current year (regardless of 
whether it is paid out) shall be deducted from the net profit after tax, or net loss after tax shall be increased. If the 
special stock is non-cumulative, in the case of net profit after tax, the dividend of the special stock shall be deducted 
from the net profit after tax; if it is a loss, no adjustment is necessary. 

Note 4: For cash flow analysis, it is necessary to pay attention to the following while measuring: 
1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash flow 

statement. 
2. Capital expenditure refers to the amount of cash outflow from capital investment each year. 
3. The increase in inventory is only included when the ending balance is greater than the beginning balance. If the 

inventory decreases at the end of the year, it will be counted as zero. 
4. Cash dividends include cash dividends for ordinary shares and special shares. 
5. Gross amount of real estate, plant and equipment refers to the total amount of real estate, plant and equipment before 

deduction of accumulated depreciation. 

Note 5:  The issuer should classify the various operating costs and operating expenses as fixed and variable 

according to their nature. If estimates or subjective judgments are involved, they should pay attention to their 

reasonableness and maintain consistency.
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3. Audit Committee Review Report Of The Most Recent Annual Financial 
Report 

TSH Biopharm Corporation, Ltd. 
Audit Committee’s Review Report 

The Board of Directors has prepared the year 2021 business report, 

financial statements, and profit distribution table, Shin-Chin Chih 

CPA and Kuo-Yang Tseng CPA of KPMG Taiwan were retained to 

audit TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd.’s financial statements and 

have issued an audit report relating to the financial statements. The 

aforementioned reports and statements prepared by the Board of 

Directors has been reviewed by Audit Committee and believed that 

there is no incompatibility, and thus reported as above in pursuant to 

Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the 

Company Act.

Attention to 

TSH Biopharm, Shareholders’ Meeting 2022 

Audit Committee Convener: 

Chih-Li Wang 

March 4, 2022
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4.  The Most Recent Annual Financial Report, Including The Accountant 
Review Report, The Biennial Comparative Balance Sheet, The Statement Of 
Comprehensive Income, The Statement Of Changes In Equity, The Cash 
Flow Statement, And Any Notes Or Schedules: please refer to pages 128 to 
182 for details.

5.  Individual Financial Report Of The Company Which Has Been Verified 
And Certified By An Accountant In The Most Recent Year: Nil 

6.  If The Company And Its Affiliated Enterprises Have Financial 
Difficulties In The Most Recent Year And Up To The Publication Date Of 
The Annual Report, The Impact On The Financial Position Of The Company 
Shall Be Specified: Nil 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. (“the Company”), which 

comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 

2021 and 2020, and notes to the parent company only financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and its 

financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations 

Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial 

Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 

Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of 

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and the auditing standards generally accepted in 

the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of 

Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and 

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit 

matters for the parent company only financial statements in the current period are stated as follow: 

1. Valuation of Inventories 
Please refer to notes 4(7) 5 and 6(5) of the notes to the parent company only financial statement for 
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the accounting policies on measuring inventory, assumptions used and uncertainties considered in 

determining net realizable value, allowances for impairment loss and obsolescence and balances of 

impairment loss and obsolescence, respectively.   

Description of key audit matter: 

Inventories are stated at of cost and net realizable value. Due to fierce competition in pharmaceutical 

industry and the declining prices of health insurance drugs every year, which will affect the sales prices 

of related products, resulting in a risk that the cost of inventories to exceed its net value. Therefore, 

inventory evaluation is one of the key audit matters for our audit.  

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

Our audit procedures for the above key audit matters included assessing the Company’s inventory 

allowance amount based on the nature of the inventories; performing audit to check the correctness of 

the inventory age report; reviewing the company’s past inventory allowances and assessing whether the 

estimation methods and assumptions are appropriate; observe the inventory count and check the 

inventory status to assess whether the inventory is expired or damaged; sampling the latest sales prices 

of inventory and assessing the reasonableness of net realizable value; assessing whether disclosure items 

for inventory allowances are appropriate.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company 
Only Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only 

financial statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting 

Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory 

Commission and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance (including of the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the 

Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 

the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent 

company only financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, 

we exercised professional judgment and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 

also:  

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements 
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identified during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report are Shin-Chin Chih 

and Kuo-Yang Tseng. 

KPMG 
Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China) 
March 4, 2022 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial 
position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and 
practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from 
those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, 
the accompanying parent company only financial statements and report of independent accountants are 
not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing 
standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. 
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(English Translation of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese) 
TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

Statements of Comprehensive Income 
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Share)

 See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2021 2020 
AMOUNT % AMOUNT % 

4000 Operating revenue (notes 6(16) and 7) $  413,483  100 $ 447,862 100 
5000 Operating costs (notes 6(5) and 7)  166,125  40  162,670  36 

Gross profit  247,358  60  285,192  64 

6000 Operating expenses (notes 6(3) (12) (17)
7 and 12): 

6100 Selling expenses  120,215  29  124,836  28 
6200 Administrative expenses  48,113  12  57,474  13 
6300 Research and development expenses  23,515  6  28,681  6 
6450 Expected credit loss (gain) (  100  ) - (  103  ) - 

 191,743  47  210,888  47 

Operating income  55,615  13  74,304  17 

Non-operating income and expenses (notes 
6(11) (18) and 7):

7100 Interest income  2,099  1  2,238  - 
7010 Other income  48  -  57  - 
7020 Other gains and losses  3,867  1  660  - 
7050 Finance costs (  80  ) - (  27  ) - 

 5,934  2  2,928  - 

Profit before tax  61,549  15  77,232  17 
7950 Income tax expense (note 6(13)) (  14,441  ) ( 3 ) (  15,662  ) ( 3 ) 

Profit for the year $  47,108  12 $  61,570  14 

8300 Other comprehensive income 
8310 Components of other comprehensive 

income that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from 
investments in equity instruments at 
fair value through other comprehensive 
income (  21,094 ) ( 5 )  8,928  2 

8349 Income tax related to components of 
other comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -  - - 

Components of other 
comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss (  21,094  ) ( 5 )  8,928  2 

8300 Other comprehensive income  (  21,094  ) ( 5 )  8,928  2 

Total comprehensive income $ 26,014 7 $ 70,498 16 
Earnings per share (note 6(15)) 

9750 Basic earnings per share $ 1.23 $ 1.60
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 1.23 $ 1.60
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(English Translation of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese) 
TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
2021 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Profit before tax $ 61,549 $ 77,232 

Adjustments: 
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) 

Depreciation 7,233 7,127 

Amortization 2,552 2,522 

Expected credit loss  ( 100 ) ( 103 ) 
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss - 1,558 

Interest expense 80 27 

Interest income ( 2,099 ) ( 2,238 ) 
Dividend income ( 6,360 ) ( 6,420 ) 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  4 - 

Impairment loss from non – financial assets 4,146 4,583 

Gain on lease modification ( 47 ) - 

Total adjustment to reconcile profit  5,409 7,056 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in notes receivable 861 4,060 

Decrease in accounts receivable(including related parties) 9,053 5,136 

(Increase) decrease in other receivables 1,851 ( 1,603 ) 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 4,687 ( 18,851 ) 
(Increase) decrease in other current assets 11,042 ( 8,110 ) 
Decrease in contract liabilities - ( 2,483 ) 
Increase (decrease) in notes payable (including related 
parties) ( 1,028 ) 969 

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable(including related 
parties) 6,329 ( 34,659 ) 

Decrease in other payables ( 9,709 ) ( 11,171 ) 
Increase in other current liabilities 322 117 

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities 23,408 ( 66,595 ) 

Total adjustments 28,817 ( 59,539 ) 

Cash flows from operations 90,366 17,693 

Interest received 2,165 2,238 

Interest paid ( 80 ) ( 27 ) 
Income tax paid ( 23,744 ) ( 8,293 ) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 68,707 11,611 

(Continued) 
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
2021 2020 

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities: 
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income ( $ 3,478 ) $ -

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 20,707 182,784 

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss - 4,316 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment ( 382 ) ( 1,916 ) 
Decrease (increase) in guarantee deposits paid ( 1,757 ) 739 

Acquisition of intangible assets - ( 463 ) 
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets - current ( 31,838 ) 41,909 

Decrease in other financial assets - non-current 328 421 

Dividends received  6,360 6,420 

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities ( 10,060 ) 234,210 

Cash flows used in financing activities: 
Payments of lease liabilities ( 4,345 ) ( 4,215 ) 
Cash dividends paid ( 69,116 ) ( 69,117 ) 

Net cash flows used in financing activities ( 73,461 ) ( 73,332 ) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ( 14,814 ) 172,489 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 396,701 224,212 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 381,887 $ 396,701

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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(English Translation of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
TSH BIOPHARM CORPORATION LTD. 

Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified) 
1. History and organization

TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. (the Company”) was incorporated on September 21, 2010. The 

Company's registered office address is 3F.-1, No. 3-1, Park St., Nangang Dist., Taipei City 115, Taiwan 
(R.O.C.). The shares of the Company have been listed on the Taipei Exchange (“TPEx”) since April 
2012. The main activity of the Company is in sale of a variety of pharmaceuticals, chemical drugs and 
engaged in biotechnology services.  

2. Approval date and procedures of the financial statements
The accompanying parent company only financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of 
Directors on March 4, 2022. 

3. Application of new standards, amendments and interpretations
(1) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (“FSC”) which have already been adopted. 
The Company believes that the adoption of the following IFRSs would not have any material 
impact on its parent-company-only financial statements. 

� Amendments to IFRS 4, “Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9” 

� Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 , IFRS 7 , IFRS 4  and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark 

Reform- Phase 2

The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new standards, effective from April 1, 
2021 would not have any material impact on the financial statements. 

� Amendments to IFRS 16 "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021" 

(2) The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not yet effective 
The Company assesses that the adoption of the following standards would not have any material 
impact on its parent-company-only financial statements. 

� Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment  Proceeds before Intended 

Use

� Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts–Cost of Fulfilling a Contract” 
� Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 
� Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework” 

(3) The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC 
The Company believes that the adoption of the following standards would not have any significant 
impact on its parent-company-only financial statements.t.  

� Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and 
Its Associate or Joint Venture”

� IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” 
� Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” 
� Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 
� Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” 
� Amendments to IAS 12“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 
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Transaction” 

4. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these parent company only financial 
statements are summarized as follows. Except for those described individually, the significant 
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these parent company 
only financial statements. 

(1) Statement of compliance 

These parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Regulations”) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into 
effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C.. 

(2) Basis of preparation 

A. Basis of measurement 

The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis 
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. 

B. Functional and presentation currency 

The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates. The parent company only financial statements are 
presented in New Taiwan Dollars (NTD), which is the Company’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in NTD has been rounded to the nearest thousand unless 
otherwise stated. 

(3) Foreign currency 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of 
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent 
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the 
functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currencies using 
the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences relating 
to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income: 

A. an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive 
income; 

B. a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the 
extent that the hedge is effective; or 

C. qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective. 

(4) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities 

The Company classifies an asset as current when any one of the following requirements is met. 
Assets that are not classified as current are non-current assets. 
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A. It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle; 

B. It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading; 

C. It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

D. The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to 
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies a liability as current when any one of the following requirements is met. 
Liabilities that are not classified as current are non-current liabilities. 

A. It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle; 

B. It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading; 

C. The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

D. It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash comprise cash and cash in bank. Cash equivalents are short-term and highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and held for 
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes 
are classified as cash equivalents. 

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash 
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 
consolidated statement of cash flows. 

(6) Financial instruments 

Accounts receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets 
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a 
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an 
item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially 
measured at the transaction price.

A. Financial assets 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade 
date basis. 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) – equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets are 
not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business 
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on 
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

(A) Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 
is not designated as measured at FVTPL: 
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� it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect 
contractual cash flows; and 

� its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which the 
financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative amortization using 
the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss. 

(B) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’ s fair value in other 
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive 
income and are never reclassified to profit or loss. 

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to 
receive payment is established. 

(C) Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial 
asset is held at portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and 

information is provided to management. The information considered includes

� the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in 
practice. These include whether management’ s strategy focuses on earning contractual 
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the 
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or 
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

� how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s 
management; 

� the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those risks are managed; 

� how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on 
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

� the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons 
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition 
are not considered sales for this purpose, and are consistent with the Company’s continuing 
recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on 
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL. 

(D) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 
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For the purposes of this assessment, ‘ principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial 
assets on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money 
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular 
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, 
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether 
the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of 
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the 

Company considers

� contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows

� terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features

� prepayment and extension features and 

� terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets  e.g. 

nonrecourse features

(E) Impairment of financial assets 

The Company recognizes its loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial 
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts 
receivable, other receivables, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets). 

The Company measures its loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the 

following which are measured as 12-month ECL

� debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date  and 

� other debt securities and bank balances for which the credit risk (i.e. the risk of default 
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition. 

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and 
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’ s 
historical experience and informed credit assessment, as well as forward looking information. 

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of 
a financial instrument. 

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within 
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument 
is less than 12 months). 

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period 
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the 
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to 
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receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost 

are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a 

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data

� significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer

� a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due

� the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's 
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not 

otherwise consider

� it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization or 

� the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets.  

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For 
corporate customers, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing 
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The 
Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial 
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with 
the Company’ s procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

(F) Derecognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of 
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred 
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized. 

B. Financial liabilities and equity instrument 

(A) Classification of debt or equity 

Debt and or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities or 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. 

(B) Equity instrument 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the amount of 
consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing. 

(C) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged 
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or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are 
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a 
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a 
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss. 

(D) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement 
of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to 
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

(7) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is 
based on the weighted-average method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
present location and condition.  

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. 

(8) Property, plant and equipment 

A. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit 
or loss. 

B. Subsequent cost 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

C. Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit 
or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of 
property, plant and equipment. 

Land is not depreciated. 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of property, 
plant and equipment are as follows: 

(a) Buildings and structures          14 ~20 years 

(b) Machinery and equipment         3 ~ 10 years 

(c) Furniture and fixtures             3 ~ 10 years 

(d) Other equipment                 3 ~ 10 years 
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Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate. 

(9) Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A 
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  

A. As a lessee 

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end 
of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, 
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be reliably determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the 
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

(A) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 

(B) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index 
or rate as at the commencement date; 

(C) amounts expected to be paid under a residual value guarantee; and 

(D) payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised. 

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when: 

(A) there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or 

(B) there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be paid under a 
residual value guarantee; or 

(C) there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise an option to purchase the 
underlying asset, or 

(D) there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it 
will exercise an extension or termination option; or 

(E) there are any lease modifications 

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding 
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for 
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lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the 
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to 
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss. 

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease 
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position. 

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of 
low-value assets, transportation equipment, furniture and fixtures equipment. The Company 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

B. As a lessee 

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease is a 
finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall 
assessment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership incidental to the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if 
not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers 
certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset. 

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the 
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the 
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the 
Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating 
lease. 

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract. 

(10) Intangible assets 

A. Recognition and measurement 

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the 
product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are 
probable and the Company intends to, and has sufficient resources to, complete development and 
to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost, less accumulated amortization 
and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company including patents, computer software 
and drug permit licenses and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. 

B. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on 
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

C. Amortization 

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the 
date that they are available for use. 
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The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows: 

(A) Patents and drug permit licenses           3~10 years

(B) Computer software cost                  5~10 years 

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each annual reporting date 
and adjusted if appropriate. 

(11) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets 
(other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 
or CGUs.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 

For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

(12) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company recognizes revenue when 
it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. 
The accounting policies for the Company’ s main types of revenue are explained below. 

A. Sale of goods 

The Company recognizes revenue when control of the products has transferred, being when the 
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and 
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s 
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the 
specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and 
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the 
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for 
acceptance have been satisfied. 

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the 
Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. 

B. Testing revenue 

The company provides blood tests and other related services. This service is priced separately. 
When the service is provided according to the contract and has the right to collect the 
consideration unconditionally, the Company recognized revenue and accounts receivable. 
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C. Services revenue 

When the Company acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction, 
the revenue recognized is the net amount of commission made by the Company. 

The Company provides consulting and related management services to its customers. Revenue 
from providing services is recognized based on the actual service provided to the reporting 
date as a proportion of the total services to be provided. The proportion of services provided is 
determined based on the rendered services to date as a proportion of the total estimated 
rendered services of the transaction. 

(13) Employee benefits 

A. Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an 
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are provided by 
employees. 

B. Defined benefit plans 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(14) Income taxes 

Income taxes include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for items related to business 
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and 
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss. 

Current taxes include tax payables and tax deduction receivables on taxable profits (losses) for the 
year calculated using the statutory tax rate on the reporting date, tax payables that are calculated 
based on the part of the prior-year’s earnings that have been decided during the shareholders’ 
meeting in the current year which have not been distributed to the shareholders using the statutory 
tax rate, as well as and the tax adjustments related to prior years. 

Deferred taxes will be recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial purposes and their tax base, and will not be 
recognized for:  

A. temporary differences on the initial recognized of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or losses; 

B. temporary differences related the investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangement 
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reverse of the temporary 
differences and its probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 

C. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognization of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, 
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefits will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable 
profits improves. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, which is the tax rate that had been 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met: 

A. the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities; and 

B. the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority on either: 

(A) the same taxable entity; or 

(B) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, 
or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which 
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or 
recovered.

(15) Earnings per share 

The Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, such as 
employee bonus. 

(16) Operating segment information 

The Company has one reportable segment. The information of segment revenue, profit or loss and 
assets are in line with the parent company only financial statements. Operating results of the 
operating segment are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to 
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance. 

5. Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the parent company only financial statements in conformity with the Regulations 
and the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and 
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, 
liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management 
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in 
accounting estimates in the following period. 

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognized in the parent company only financial statements is as follows: None 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as 
follows. Those assumptions and estimation have been updated to reflect the impact of COVID-19 
pandemic: 

Valuation of inventories 

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, the Company estimates the net 
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realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the reporting 
period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. Please refer to note 6(5) for 
further description of the valuation of inventories. 

6. Explanation of significant accounts
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Petty cash $ 140 $ 230

Cash in banks 381,747 396,471

$ 381,887 $ 396,701

A. The above cash and cash equivalents were not pledged as collateral. 

B. Time deposits which do not meet the definition of cash equivalents are accounted for under other 
financial assets-current. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the amount of time deposits were 
$298,589 and $266,751, respectively. 

C. Please refer to note 6(19) for the foreign currency risk and sensitivity analysis of the financial 
assets of the Company. 

(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Items 
December 31, 

2021 
December 31, 

2020 
Equity instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income :  

Current $ 52,929 $  62,216 

Non - current 211,767 240,804 

$ 264,696 $ 303,020

A. Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 

The Company holds such equity investments as long-term strategic investment that is not held 
for trading purposes; thus, they are designated as equity investment measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. 

The Company sold some financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income for 
the year ended December 31, 2021. The shares sold had a fair value of $35,478 and the Company 
realized a loss of $20,543, which is already included in other comprehensive income. The loss 
has been transferred to retained earnings. 

The Company sold some financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income for 
the year ended December 31, 2020. The shares sold had a fair value of $182,784 and the 
Company realized a gain of $98,917, which is already included in other comprehensive income. 
The gain has been transferred to retained earnings. 

B. Please refer to note 6(19) for credit and market risk information. 

C. The above financial assets were not pledged as collateral.

(3) Notes receivable and accounts receivable (including related parties) 
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December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 
Notes receivable $  14,716 $  15,577  

Accounts receivable-measured at amortized cost  85,350  94,403  

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (  1,001 ) (  1,101  )

$  99,065 $  108,879 

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, which 
permit the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit 
losses, notes and accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics 
and the days past due, as well as forward looking information. The loss allowance provision was 
determined as follows: 

December 31, 2021 
Gross carrying 

amount 
Weighted-average 

loss rate
Loss allowance 

provision 
Not past due $  99,677  1%  $  997 

Past due 1~60 days  314  1%   3 

Past due 61~120 days  20  1%   - 

Past due 121~180 days  7  2%   - 

Past due 181~365 days  48  2%   1 

$  100,066 $  1,001 

December 31, 2020 
Gross carrying 

amount 
Weighted-average 

loss rate
Loss allowance 

provision 
Not past due $  109,312   1%  $  1,093  

Past due 1~60 days  612  1%   6 

Past due 61~120 days  24  1%   - 

Past due 121~180 days  31  2%   1 

Past due 181~365 days  -  2%   - 

Past due more than 365 days  1  100%   1 

$  109,980  $  1,101 

The movement in the allowance for notes and accounts receivable was as follows: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Balance on January 1 $ 1,101 $ 1,204
Impairment losses reversed ( 100) ( 103) 
Balance on December 31 $ 1,001 $ 1,101

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the accounts receivable and notes receivable for the Company 
were not pledged as collateral. 

(4) Other receivables 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 
Other receivables - Tax receivables $  501 $  700 
Other receivables - Interest receivables  495  561 
Other receivables - related parties -  65 
Others 68 1,655 

$  1,064 $  2,981 
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A. On February 14, 2020, Belviq was considered to have a higher risk of getting cancer, according 
to the result of a clinical trial conducted by the US Food and Drug Administration (hereinafter 
FDA). Therefore, the US FDA requested that Eisai Taiwan Inc., the owner of Belviq drug permit 
license voluntarily withdraw the drug from the U.S. market. Taiwan FDA also requested the 
Company to cease the sales of Belviq drug on July 16, 2020. 

According to the terms of the contract signed by the Company and Belviq supplier, Chuangyi 
Biotech Co., Ltd., the Company have the right to return the goods due to the abovementioned 
events, and the amount can reliably measure. Other receivables arising from the returned goods 
have been collected on September 25, 2020. 

B. For further credit risk information, please refer to note 6(19). 

(5) Inventories 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 
Merchandise $  35,567 $  38,325 
Raw materials and supplies  - drug  44,119  41,234 

- testing materials  1,046  869 
Less: Allowance for inventory market decline and 

obsolescence (  7,513 )(  2,522 )

$  73,219 $  77,906 

The cost of inventories recognized as operating cost for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020 amounted to $166,125 and $162,670, respectively. The cost of inventory for the year ended 
December 31, 2021 included the amount of $4,991, which the company wrote down from cost to 
net realizable value. The cost for the year ended December 31, 2020 included the amount of $496, 
resulting from the sale of goods or an increase of net realizable value. 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the aforesaid inventories were not pledge as collateral. 

(6) Property, plant and equipment 

The cost, depreciation, and impairment of the property, plant and equipment of the Company for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

Land Building and 
construction 

Machinery  
equipment

Office 
equipment

Other 
equipment Total

Cost 
Balance on January 1, 
2021 $ 5,846 $ 13,938 $ 9,908 $  5,228 $  6,974 $  41,894 
Additions  - - 209 173  -  382 
Disposals  -  - - ( 17 )  - (  17 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2021 $  5,846 $ 13,938 $  10,117 $  5,384 $  6,974 $  42,259 
Balance on January 
1,2020 $ 5,846 $ 13,843 $ 10,538 $  3,858 $  6,974 $  41,059 
Additions  - 95 501 1,370  -  1,966 
Disposals  -  - ( 1,131 )  -  - (  1,131 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2020 $  5,846 $ 13,938 $  9,908 $  5,228 $  6,974 $  41,894 
Accumulated depreciation 

and impairment: 
Balance on January 1, 
2021 $  - $ 3,079 $ 5,266 $ 2,913 $ 5,381 $  16,639 
Depreciation for the year  - 845 777 642 577  2,841 
Disposals  -  - - ( 13 )  - (  13 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2021 $  - $ 3,924 $  6,043 $ 3,542 $ 5,958 $  19,467 
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Land Building and 
construction 

Machinery  
equipment

Office 
equipment

Other 
equipment Total

Balance on January 
1,2020 $  - $ 2,242 $ 5,488 $ 2,407 $ 4,697 $  14,834 
Depreciation for the year  - 837 909 506 684  2,936 
Disposals  -  - ( 1,131 )  -  - (  1,131 ) 
Balance on December 31, 

2020 $  - $ 3,079 $  5,266 $ 2,913 $ 5,381 $  16,639 
Carrying amounts: 

Balance on December 31, 
2021 $  5,846 $ 10,014 $  4,074 $  1,842 $  1,016 $  22,792 

Balance on January 1, 
2020 $  5,846 $  11,601 $  5,050 $  1,451 $  2,277 $  26,225 
Balance on December 

31,2020 $  5,846 $ 10,859 $  4,642 $  2,315 $  1,593 $  25,255 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the property, plant and equipment were not pledged as 
collateral. 

(7) Right-of-use assets 

The movements in the cost and depreciation of the leased buildings and transportation equipment 
were as follows: 

Building and 
construction

Transportation 
equipment Total 

Costs: 

Balance on January 1, 2021 $  8,783 $  - $  8,783 

Additions  4,567  -  4,567 

Decrease  (  8,783 ) - (  8,783 ) 

Balance on December 31,2021 $  4,567 $  - $  4,567
Balance on January 1, 2020 $  8,218 $  183  $  8,401  

Additions  8,783  -  8,783  

Decrease (  8,218 ) (  183  ) (  8,401  ) 

Balance on December 31,2020 $  8,783 $  - $  8,783 
Accumulated depreciation: 

Balance on January 1, 2021 $  - $ - $  - 

Depreciation for the year  4,392 -  4,392 

Decrease (  4,392 ) - (  4,392 ) 

Balance on December 31,2021 $  - $  - $  -
Balance on January 1, 2020 $  4,109 $  101 $  4,210 

Depreciation for the year  4,109  82   4,191  

Decrease (  8,218 ) (  183 ) (  8,401  ) 

Balance on December 31,2020 $  - $  - $  -
Carrying amounts

Balance on December 31, 2021 $  4,567 $  - $ 4,567
Balance on December 31, 2020 $  8,783 $  - $  8,783
Balance on January 1, 2020 $  4,109 $  82 $  4,191
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(8) Intangible assets 

The cost, amortization and impairment of the intangible assets of the Company for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

Computer 
software 

Patent and drug 
permit license Total

Costs: 

Balance on December 31,2021 
(The same balance on January 
1, 2021) $ 696 $  42,191  $  42,887  
Balance on January 1, 2020 $  233  $  42,191  $  42,424 

Additions  463  -  463 

Balance on December 31,2020 $  696 $  42,191 $  42,887
Accumulated amortization and 

impairment loss: 
      

Balance on January 1, 2021 $  155 $  36,552  $  36,707  

Amortization for the year  136   2,416   2,552  

Balance on December 31,2021 $  291 $  38,968 $  39,259
Balance on January 1, 2020 $  50  $  34,135 $  34,185 

Amortization for the year  105  2,417  2,522 

Balance on December 31,2020 $  155 $  36,552 $  36,707 
Carrying amounts

Balance on December 31, 2021 $  405 $  3,223 $  3,628
Balance on January 1, 2020 $  183 $  8,056 $  8,239
Balance on December 31, 2020 $  541 $  5,639 $  6,180

A. Amortization expenses 

Amortization expenses for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 
were recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 
2021 2020 

Operating expenses $  2,552 $  2,522

B. Collateral

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the aforementioned intangible assets were not pledged as 
collateral. 

 (9) Other current assets and other non-current assets 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Other current financial assets $  298,589 $  266,751 

Other non-current financial assets  297  625 

Other current assets  13,219  28,407 

Refundable deposits  4,393  2,636 

$  316,498 $  298,419 
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A. Other current financial assets were time deposits which did not meet the definition of cash 
equivalents. For further credit and market risk information, please refer to note 6(19). 

B. Major of other current assets were prepayments. As the testing business was not as expected, 
the Company took the future cash flow and recoverable amount into account, and recognized 
an impairment loss amounting to $4,146 and $4,583 for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 

(10) Other payables

The nature of other payables was as follows: 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Salaries $  23,419 $  22,297  

Research expenses  17,103  25,033  

Commission  1,349  1,465  

Others  18,538  21,323  

$  60,409 $  70,118  

(11) Lease liabilities 

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were as follows: 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current $  4,567 $  4,365 
Non-current $ - $ 4,418 

For the maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(19). 

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 
2021 2020 

Interest on lease liabilities $  80 $  27 
Variable lease payments not included in the 
measurement of lease liabilities $ 300 $ 300 

Expenses relating to short-term leases $ - $ 41 
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, 
excluding short-term leases of low-value assets $ 245 $ 172 

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Company were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 
2021 2020 

Total cash outflow for leases $  4,970 $  4,755 

A. Real estate leases 

On January 1, 2019, the Company leased buildings for its office and plant. The leases of office 
typically run for a period of 2 years, and the 2 years lease was renewed on December 17, 2020. 
A supplementary agreement was signed in December 2021, and the new lease contract will be 
effective from December 1, 2021. Due to the early termination of some lease contracts, the 
Company reassessed lease period and decreased the lease liability by $4,439. 

On July 1, 2019, the Company leased buildings for its plant with a leases period of 13.5 years. 
Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration 
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after the end of the contract term. 

The lease payment of the plant contract is calculated on basis of the purchase quantity of the 
plant leased by the Company during the lease period. It is a variable lease payment that is not 
included in the measurement of the lease liability. Therefore, the Company will pay the 
relevant lease payment during the lease period to recognize the expense. 

B. Other leases 

The Company leases transportation equipment, with lease term of 1.5 years. The lease contract 
has expired in August, 2020 and these is no further renewed. 

In addition, the Company leases some of transportation equipment and office equipment, with 
lease terms of 1 to 5 years, these leases are leases of short-term or low-value items. The 
Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases. 

(12) Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the labor pension personal 
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension 
Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to the Bureau 
of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation. 

The pension costs incurred from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 
2021 2020 

Selling expenses $  2,898 $  2,970  

Administrative expenses  891  1,223  

Research and development expenses  392  320 

$  4,181 $  4,513  

(13) Income taxes 

A. Income tax expense 

The components of income tax in the years 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 
2021 2020 

Current income tax expense 

Current period $  15,212 $  15,786  

Adjustment for prior periods (  17 )(  641 ) 

Deferred income tax expense 

Origination and reversal of temporary 
differences (  754 )  517 

Income tax expenses $  14,441 $  15,662  

There was no income tax recognized directly in equity and other comprehensive income for 2021 
and 2020. 
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Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for 2021 and 2020 is as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 
2021 2020 

Profit before income tax $  61,549 $  77,232  

Income tax using the Company's domestic tax 
rate $  12,310 $  15,446  

Tax-exempt income (  1,272  )(  1,284  )
Tax incentives (  2,636 )(  1,032  )
Change in provision in prior periods (  17 )(  641 )
Surtax on unappropriated retained earnings  3,766  384 

Income basic tax  -  467 

Others  2,290  2,322  

$  14,441 $  15,662  

B. Deferred tax assets 

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

Impairment
loss 

Loss from 
inventory 

devaluation 
Others Total 

Deferred tax assets: 
Balance on January 1, 2021 ( $ 494) ( $ 505 )( $ 257 ) ( $ 1,256 ) 

Recognized in profit or loss 212 ( 998 ) 32 ( 754 ) 

Balance on December 31,2021 ( $ 282) ( $ 1,503 )( $ 225 ) ( $ 2,010 ) 
Balance on January 1, 2020 ( $ 706) ( $ 604 )( $ 463 ) ( $ 1,773 ) 

Recognized in profit or loss 212 99 206 517 

Balance on December 31,2020 ( $ 494) ( $ 505 )( $ 257 ) ( $ 1,256 ) 

C. Assessment of tax 

The Company’ s tax returns for the years through 2019 were assessed by the Taipei National 
Tax Administration. 

 (14) Capital and other equity 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the authorized capital of the Company amounted to 
$1,000,000, with par value of $10 per share, which consisting of 100,000 thousand shares of 
ordinary stock. The paid-in capital was $383,981 which consisting of 38,398 thousand shares. All 
proceeds from shares issued have been collected.  

A. Capital surplus 

The balances of capital surplus as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as following: 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Share Capital $  458,977 $  458,977 
Others 384 - 

$  459,361 $  458,977 

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and 
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as 
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cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting 
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received. According 
to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, 
capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not exceed 10% of 
the total common stock outstanding. 

B. Retained earnings 

The Company's article of incorporation stipulates that Company's net earnings should first be 
used to offset the prior years' deficits, if any, before paying any income taxes. Of the remaining 
balance, 10% is to be appropriated as legal reserve, until the accumulated legal reserve equals the 
Company's paid-in capital. In addition, a special reserve in accordance with applicable laws and 
regulations shall also be set aside. Then, any remaining profit, together with any undistributed 
retained earnings, shall be distributed according to the proposal by the Board of Directors and 
submitted to the stockholders’ meeting for approval. 

To enhance the Company’s financial structure and maintain investors’ equity, the Company 
adopts a stable dividends policy in which earnings distribution cannot be less than 50% of 
distributable earnings, and cash dividends payment has to be 50% of the distribution. 

(A)Legal reserve 

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’ meeting, 
distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and only the portion 
of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed. 

(B) Earnings distribution 

Earnings distribution for 2020 and 2019 was decided by the resolution adopted, at the general 
meeting of shareholders held on August 20, 2021 and May 29, 2020, respectively. The 
relevant dividend distributions to shareholders were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31,  
2020 2019 

Amount 
per share 
(dollars) 

Total 
amount 

Amount 
per share 
(dollars) 

Total 
amount 

Dividends distributed to ordinary 
shareholders: 

Cash $ 1.80 $ 69,116 $ 1.80 $ 69,117 

C. Other equity interests 

Unrealized gains (losses) on 
financial assets measured at 

fair value through other 
comprehensive income

Balance on January 1, 2021 $  16,760
Unrealized gains on financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (  21,094)

Disposal of equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income  20,543

Balance on December 31, 2021 $  16,209
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Balance on January 1, 2020 $  106,749 
Unrealized losses on financial assets measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income  8,928 
Disposal of equity instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income (  98,917 )

Balance on December 31, 2020 $  16,760 

(15) Earnings per share 

The calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share were as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Basic earnings per share 

Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders  $  47,108 $ 61,570 
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares  38,398   38,398 

$ 1.23 $ 1.60 
Diluted earnings per share 

Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders (after 
adjustment of dilutive potential ordinary shares) $  47,108 $ 61,570 

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares  38,398   38,398 

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares 

Effect of employee share bonus  35  32 

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (after 
adjustment of dilutive potential ordinary shares)  38,433   38,430 

$ 1.23 $ 1.60 

(16) Revenue from contracts with customers 

A. Disaggregation of revenue 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Major products/service lines: 

Pharmaceuticals $  387,192 $  424,851 
Test  24,188  20,898 

Services  2,103   2,113 

$  413,483 $ 447,862 

B. Contract balances 

December 31, 
2021 

December 31, 
2020 January 1, 2020 

Notes receivable $  14,716 $ 15,577  $  19,637 
Accounts receivable (included 

related parties)  85,350  94,403   99,539 
Less: Allowance for expected 
credit losses (  1,001 )(  1,101  )(  1,204 )

Total $  99,065 $ 108,879  $ 117,972  
Contract liabilities $  - $  - $  2,483 

For details on notes receivable, accounts receivable and allowance for expected credit losses, 
please refer to note 6 (3) 
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The amounts of revenue recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020 that was included in 
the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period was $2,483 . 

Contract liabilities are mainly caused by receipts in advance due to sales contracts. Revenue will 
be recognized when the products are delivered to customers. 

(17) Remuneration to employees and directors 

According to the Company's articles of incorporation, the Company should contribute 2% to 8% 
of annual profits as employee compensation and no more than 2% of annual profits as directors' 
remuneration when there is profit for the year. Directors' remuneration can only be settled in the 
form of cash. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to 
offset the deficit. The amount of employee compensation and directors' remuneration is reported 
to shareholders' meeting. The recipients of employee compensation may include the employees of 
the Company's affiliated companies who meet certain conditions. 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company estimated its employee 
compensation amounting to $1,282 and $1,282 and directors' remuneration amounting to $1,609 
and $1,609, respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are calculated based on the net 
profit before tax, excluding the remuneration to employees and directors of each period, 
multiplied by the percentage of remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors as specified 
in the Company's articles. These compensation and remunerations recognized as operating  
expenses during 2021 and 2020. There was no difference between the amount of employees' and 
directors' remuneration resolved at the Board of Directors meeting and the amount stated in the 
parent company only financial statements for 2021 and 2020. Related information is available on 
the Market Observation Post System website. 

(18) Non-operating income and expenses 

A. Interest income 

The details of interest income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020 

Interest income from bank deposits $  2,099 $  2,238 

B. Other income 

The details of other income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020 

Rent income $  48 $  57 

C. Other gains and losses 

The details of other gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as 
follows: 

For the year ended December 31,
2021 2020 

Foreign exchange gains (losses) ($  1,255) $  406 
Dividend income  6,360  6,420  
Gain on lease modification 47 - 
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Losses on disposals of property, plant and 
equipment (  4)  - 

Gains (losses) on financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss - (  1,558  )

Impairment loss (  4,146)(  4,583 )
Others  2,865 (  25 )

$  3,867 $  660 

D. Finance costs 

The details of finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

For the year ended December 31,
2021 2020 

Other finance costs - Interest expenses $  80 $  27 

(19) Financial instruments 

A. Credit risk 

(A) Credit risk exposure 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to credit 
risk. 

(B) Concentration of credit risk 

The Company's concentration of credit risk on the top one customer accounted for 12% and 
16% of the total receivables as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The 
concentration of credit risk accounted for 35% and 19% from the other top 10 customers of 
the Company of total receivables, respectively. 

(C) Credit risk of accounts receivables and debt securities

For credit risk exposure of notes and accounts receivables, please refer to note 6 (3). 

Other financial assets at amortized cost includes other receivables and time deposits. All of 
these financial assets are considered to have low risk, and thus, the impairment provision 
recognized during the period was limited to 12 months expected losses. Regarding how the 
financial instruments are considered to have low credit risk, please refer to note 4 (6). There 
were no recognition and reversal of impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 
2021 and 2020. The balance as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are both zero. 

B. Liquidity risk 

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated 
interest payments. 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

Within a 
year 2~3 years 4~5 years 

December 31, 2021 
Non-derivative financial 

liabilities 
Notes and accounts payable 

(including related parties) $ 12,719 $  12,719  $  12,719 $  - $ - 
Other payables  60,409  60,409  60,409  - - 
Lease liabilities  4,567  4,597  4,597  - - 

$  77,695 $  77,725 $  77,725 $  - $ - 
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Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Within a 
year 2~3 years 4~5 years

December 31, 2020
Non-derivative financial 

liabilities 
Notes and accounts payable 

(including related parties) $ 7,418 $  7,418  $  7,418 $  - $ - 
Other payables  70,118  70,118   70,118  - - 
Lease liabilities  8,783  8,892   4,446  4,446 - 

$  86,319 $  86,428 $  81,982 $  4,446 $ - 

The Company does not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur 
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts. 

C. Currency risk 

(A) Exposure to foreign currency risk 

The Company's significant exposure to foreign currency risk were as follows: 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 
Foreign 
currency 

Exchange 
rate TWD Foreign 

currency 
Exchange 

rate TWD 

Financial assets 
Monetary items 
USD $ 1,890 27.68 $ 52,306 $ 251 28.48 $ 7,135 
CNY 2,265 4.344 9,838 2,247 4.377 9,788 
EUR 104 31.32 3,262 104 35.02 4,061 

(B) Sensitivity analysis 

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of the foreign 
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents that is denominated in 
foreign currency. A strengthening (weakening) 1% of the TWD against the USD, CNY, and
EUR as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 would have increased (decreased) the net profit 
after tax by $523 and $168, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables 
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases. The analysis is 
performed on the same basis for both periods. 

(C) Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary items 

Information on the foreign exchange gains or losses, including these realized and unrealized 
by significant foreign currency, were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Foreign 
exchange 

gains (losses) 

Average 
exchange 

rate 

Foreign 
exchange 

gains (losses) 

Average 
exchange  

rate 
USD ( 796 ) - ( 458 ) - 

CNY ( 73 ) - 109 - 

EUR ( 386 ) - 755 - 

D. Interest rate analysis: None 
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E. Other market price risk 

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the sensitivity analysis for the changes in the 
securities price at the reporting date were performed using the same basis for the profit and loss 
with all other variable factors remaining constant as illustrated below: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Prices of securities at 
the reporting date

Other 
comprehensive 

income after 
tax Net income 

Other 
comprehensive 

income after 
tax Net income 

Increasing 10% $ 26,470 $ - $ 30,302 $ - 
Decreasing 10% ( $ 26,470) $ - ( $ 30,302 ) $ - 

F. Fair value of financial instruments 

(A) Categories of financial instruments and fair value hierarchy  

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is 
measured on a recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair value of the Company's 
financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value hierarchy, were as 
follows; however, except as described in the following paragraphs, for financial instruments 
not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the fair value, and 
lease liabilities, disclosure of fair value information is not required: 

December 31, 2021 
Fair Value 

Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income 

Domestic listed stocks $  182,433 $ 182,433 $ - $ - $  182,433 
Domestic OTC stocks  52,929  52,929 - -  52,929 
Domestic emerging stocks  14,563   - -  14,563  14,563 
Foreign unlisted stocks  14,771  - -  14,771  14,771 

Subtotal  264,696  235,362 -  29,334  264,696 

December 31, 2021
Fair Value

Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial assets measured at 
amortized cost 

Cash and cash equivalents $  381,887 $  - $ - $  - $  - 
Notes and accounts receivable 
(including related parties)  99,065  - -  -  - 

Other receivables  1,064  - -  -  - 
Other financial assets  298,886   - -  -  - 
Refundable deposits  4,393  - -  -  - 

Subtotal  785,295   - -  -  - 

Total $  1,049,991 $ 235,362 $ - $ 29,334 $ 264,696 
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Fair Value 
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial liabilities at amortized 
cost 

Notes and accounts payable 
(including related parties) $  12,719 $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Other payables  60,409 - - - - 
Lease liabilities  4,567 - - - - 

Subtotal  77,695 - - - - 

Total $  77,695  $ - $ - $ - $ - 

December 31, 2020 
Fair Value 

Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income 

Domestic listed stocks $  176,970  $ 176,970 $ - $ - $  176,970 
Domestic OTC stocks  62,216   62,216 - -  62,216 
Domestic emerging stocks  14,563   - -  14,563  14,563 
Foreign unlisted stocks  49,271   - -  49,271  49,271 

Subtotal  303,020   239,186 -  63,834  303,020 
Financial assets measured at 
amortized cost 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 396,701  $  - $ - $  - $  - 
Notes and accounts receivable 
(including related parties)  108,879   - -  -  - 

Other receivables  2,981   - -  -  - 
Other financial assets  267,376   - -  -  - 
Refundable deposits  2,636   - -  -  - 

Subtotal  778,573   - -  -  - 

Total $ 1,081,593  $ 239,186 $ - $ 63,834 $ 303,020 
Financial liabilities at amortized 
cost 

Notes and accounts payable 
(including related parties) $  7,418  $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Other payables  70,118  - - - - 
Lease liabilities  8,783  - - - - 

Subtotal  86,319  - - - - 

Total $  86,319  $ - $ - $ - $ - 
(B) Fair value hierarchy 

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value by the levels in the fair 
value hierarchy. The different levels have been defined as follows: 

a. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or liabilities. 

b. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

c. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

(C) Valuation techniques for financial instruments not measured at fair value 

The Company estimates its financial instruments, that are not measured at fair value, by 
methods and assumption as follows: 
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Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, other financial assets, notes payable and 
accounts payable are either close to their expiry date, or their future receivable or payable are 
close to their carrying value; thus, their fair value are estimated from the book value of the 
balance sheet date. 

(D) Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value 

Financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. The 
quoted price of a financial instrument obtained from main exchanges and on-the-run bonds 
from Taipei Exchange can be used as a basis to determine the fair value of the listed 
companies’ equity instrument and debt instrument of the quoted price in an active market. 

If a quoted price of a financial instrument can be obtained in time and often from exchanges, 
brokers, underwriters, industrial union, pricing institute, or authorities, and such price can 
reflect those actual trading and frequently happen in the market, then the financial 
instrument is considered to have a quoted price in an active market. If a financial instrument 
is not in accord with the definition mentioned above, then it is considered to be without a 
quoted price in an active market. In general, market with low trading volume or high bid-ask 
spreads is an indication of a non-active market. 

The fair value of the financial instruments held by the Company are determined by reference 
to the market quotation. 

If the financial instruments held by the Company have no active market, their fair values are 
listed as follows according to their categories and attributes: 

� Equity instruments without public quotation: The fair value is estimated by using a 
discounted cash flow model. The main assumption is that the expected future cash flow 
of the investee will be discounted at the rate of return that reflects the time value of 
money and investment risk. 

� Equity instruments without public quotation: The fair value is measured by using the 
transaction prices of the stocks of companies engaged in the same or similar businesses 
in the active market, the value multipliers implied by these prices, and related 
transaction information to determine the value of the financial instruments, as well as 
adjusted for considering liquidity discount. 

(E) Transfer between levels  

There was no change in valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value 
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, so there was no transfer between levels. 

(F) Reconciliation of level 3 fair values: 
Fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

Equity instruments without 
quoted price 

Balance as of January 1, 2021 $  63,834
Additions  14,771
Disposals ( 49,271) 
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $  29,334
Balance as of January 1, 2020 $ 52,280

Recognized in other comprehensive income  11,554

Balance as of December 31, 2020 $  63,834
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(G) Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value 
measurement 

The Company's financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value include 
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - equity investments. 

The significant unobservable inputs of the equity investments without an active market are 
individually, and there is no correlation between them. 

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows: 

Item 
Valuation 
technique

Significant 
unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable 

inputs and fair value 
measurement

Financial assets at fair 
value through other 

comprehensive income

equity investments without 
an active market 

Discounted 
cash flow 
method 

Weighted average 

cost of capital  
(as of December 31, 
2020 , the rate was 

13.32%) 

The estimated fair value 
would decrease if:

WACC was higher; 

The discount for lack of 

market liquidity was higher 
Discount for lack of 

market liquidity 
(as of December 31, 
2020 , the rate were 

both 20.6%) 

Financial assets at fair 
value through other 

comprehensive income

equity investments without 
an active market

Comparable 
companies 

method 

Discount for lack of 

market liquidity 
(as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, the 

rate were 20% ~ 
28.5% and 30%, 

respectively) 

The estimated fair value 
would decrease if the 

discount for lack of market 
liquidity was higher. 

expected volatility 
(as of December 31, 
2021 , the rate was 

60.84%) 

The estimated fair value 
would increase if the 
volatility was higher. 

(H) Fair value measurements in Level 3 – sensitivity analysis of reasonably possible alternative 
assumptions 

The Company’s measurement on the fair value of financial instruments is deemed 
reasonable. However, use of different valuation models or assumptions may lead to different 
results. The following is the effect on other comprehensive income from financial assets 
categorized within Level 3 if the inputs used to valuation models have changed: 
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Recognized in other 
comprehensive income 

Input value Degree of 
variation 

Favourable 
change 

Unfavourable 
change 

December 31, 2021 
Financial assets at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive income 

Equity investments without 
an active market 

Market 
liquidity 

discount rate 
1% 2 ( 2 ) 

December 31, 2020
Financial assets at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive income 

Equity investments without 
an active market 

Market 
liquidity 

discount rate 
1% 341 ( 341 ) 

The favorable and unfavorable effects represent the changes in fair value, and fair value is 
based on a variety of unobservable inputs calculated using a valuation technique. The 
analysis above only reflects the effects of changes in a single input, and it does not include 
the interrelationships with another input. 

(20) Financial risk management 

A. Overview 

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its financial instruments: 

(A) Credit risk 

(B) Liquidity risk 

(C) Market risk 

The following likewise discusses the Company’s objectives, policies, and processes for 
measuring and managing the above mentored risks. For more disclosures about the 
quantitative effects of these risk exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

B. Structure of risk management 

The objective of the Company's financial risk management is to manage foreign exchange risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk related to operating activities. In order to reduce 
adverse effects on the financial performance, the Company identifies, evaluates and hedges 
market uncertainties. 

The important financial activities of the Company are reviewed in accordance with relevant 
regulations and internal control systems approved by the Board of Directors. When performing
financial plan, the Company must comply with the overall financial risk management and the 
authorized procedure of financial operating. 

C. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
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financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities. 

(A) Accounts receivable and other receivables 

The Company's credit policy is to transact with creditworthy customers and to obtain 
collateral to mitigate risks arising from financial loss due to default. The Company transacts 
with customers with credit ratings equivalent to investment grade, and such ratings are 
provided by independent rating agencies. Where it is not possible to obtain such information, 
the Company assesses the ratings based on other publicly available financial information and 
the records of transactions with its customers. The Company continuously monitor the 
exposure to credit risk and counterparty credit ratings, and to evaluate the customers’ credit 
ratings and credit limits via annual review and approval by the finance department to 
manage the credit exposure. 

The Company did not have any collateral or other credit enhancement to avoid credit risk of 
the financial assets. 

(B) Investments 

The exposure to credit risk for the bank deposits, fixed income investments, and other 
financial instruments, is measured and monitored by the Company's finance department. The 
Company only deals with banks, other external parties, corporate organizations, government 
agencies and financial institutions with good credit rating. The Company does not expect 
any of the counterparties above to fail in meeting their obligations; hence, there is no 
significant credit risk arising from these counterparties.

(C) Guarantees 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not provide any endorsement or 
guarantee. 

D. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations 
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 
asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's 
reputation. 

F. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates, and equity prices, will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

(21) Capital management 

Based on the characteristics of the current operating industry and the future development of the 
Company, and considered changes in the external environment, the Company plans the 
requirement of working capital, research and development expenses, and dividend payments in the 
future to ensure that the Company to continue to operate, to provide a return on shareholders, to 
maintain the interests of other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to enhance 
shareholder value. 
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 
to the shareholders, issue new shares, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders, or buy 
back the stocks of the Company. 

The Company and other entities in the same industry use the debt-to-equity ratio to manage capital. 
This ratio is the total net debt divided by the total capital. The net debt from the balance sheet is 
derived from the total liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. The total amount of capital 
represents all the equity components (that is, share capital, capital surplus, retained earnings, and 
other equity) plus net debt. 

The Company's debt-to-equity ratio as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Total liabilities $  85,800 $  103,036  
Less: cash and cash equivalents (  381,887)(  396,701  )
Net debt (  296,087)(  293,665  )
Total capital  1,083,626  1,126,344 

Adjusted capital $  787,539 $  832,679  
Debt to equity ratio (  37.60%  )(  35.27%  )

(22) Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow 

The Company's investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow for 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

A. Acquisition of right-of-use assets under leases, please refer to note 6(7). 

B. The Company's investing activities from acquisition of property, plant and equipment which 
did not affect the current cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as 
follows: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020

Additions of property, plant and equipment $  382 $  1,966  
Net changes on other payable   - (  50 ) 
Cash payment for acquisition of property, 

plant and equipment $  382 $  1,916  

C. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows: 

Non-cash 
changes 

January 1, 
2021 Cash flow Others 

December 31, 
2021 

Lease liabilities $ 8,783 ( $ 4,345 ) $ 129 $ 4,567 

Non-cash 
changes 

January 1, 
2020 Cash flow Others 

December 31, 
2209 

Lease liabilities $ 4,215 ( $ 4,215 ) $ 8,783 $ 8,783 
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7. Related-party transactions
(1) Parent company and ultimate controlling company 

   TTY Biopharm Company Limited is both the parent company and the ultimate controlling party of 
the Company. 

(2) Names and relationship with related parties 

The followings are entities that have transactions with related party during the periods covered in the 
financial statements. 

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company 

TTY Biopharm Company Limited Parent company 

American Taiwan Biopharm(Thailand) Other related party 

Chuangyi Biotech Co., Ltd. Other related party 

(3) Significant related-party transactions 

A. Operating revenue 

The amounts of significant sales by the Company to its related parties were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Parent company- TTY Biopharm Company Limited $ 1,946 $ 1,947 

Other related parties 3,842 5,239 

$ 5,788 $ 7,186 

The selling price and payment terms to related parties were not significantly different from those 
of sales to third parties. The collection terms for sales to related parties were month-end 60 days, 
or 14 days after the date of shipment. The collection terms for commission were month-end 30 to 
90 days. 

B. Purchases 

The amounts of significant purchases by the Company from related parties were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Parent company - TTY Biopharm Company Limited $ 71,615 $ 97,759 
Other related parties - Chuangyi Biotech Co., 
Ltd.(Note) ( 13 ) ( 25,908 ) 

$ 71,602 $ 71,851 

Note: The reason of negative purchase amount with Chuangyi Biotech Co., Ltd for the year 
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, please refer to note 6(4). 

The pricing and payment terms with related parties were not materially different from those of 
purchases with third parties. The payment terms for purchases from related parties were month- 
end 30 and 90 days. 

C. Receivables from related parties 

The amounts of receivables from related parties were as follows: 
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Items
Related Party 

Categories 
December 31, 

2021 
December 31, 

2020 
Accounts receivable Parent company $ 218 $ 438 
Accounts receivable Other related parties - 1,983 
Other receivables Other related parties - 65 

$ 218 $ 2,486 

D. Payables to related parties 

The amounts of payables to related parties were as follows: 

Items
Related Party 

Categories 
December 31, 

2021 
December 31, 

2020 
Accounts payable- related parties Parent company $ 6,445 $ 3,114 
Other payables Parent company 2,473 1,731 

$ 8,918 $ 4,845 

F. Lease 

The Company leases offices and equipments from the parent company, and the refundable 
deposits amounted to $766 and $693, respectively, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

In January, 2019, the Company signed a period of 2 years lease contract with the parent company 
for office and equipment, with a total contract amount of $8,320. In addition, the Company 
signed a new two-year lease contract with the parent company on December 17, 2020 for lease 
office and equipment with a total contract amount of $8,892 and amended the lease contract in 
December 2021. The interest expenses of $80 and $27 were recognized for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balances of 
lease liabilities were $ 4,567 and $8,783, respectively. 

G. Others 

(A) For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the operating expenses paid by the 
Company to the parent company or other related parties due to the operating and business 
transactions amounted to $6,754 and $6,430, respectively.

(B) For the years ended December 31, 2020, the research fee paid by the Company to the parent 
company due to the entrusted research and project development contract was $374. 

(C) The company authorizes other related parties to sell specific products with contract period  
from June 1, 2020 to May 31, 2021. As the contract expired, the purchase volume of other 
related parties did not reach the minimum purchase amount of $3,000. Thus, the difference 
of $2,897 was paid in June, 2021, which were accounted for under other income. 

 (4) Key management personnel compensation 

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Short-term employee benefits $ 17,601 $ 15,200 

Post-employment benefits 495 536 

$ 18,096 $ 15,736 

8. Pledged assets: None.
9. Significant commitments and contingencies
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As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the unrecognized contractual commitments of the Company were 
as follows: 

December 31, 
2021

December 31, 
2020

Contract with other units for research and development $ 86,828 $ 122,787 
Acquisition of intangible assets 5,355 3,150 
Purchase of raw materials $ 162,400 $ 185,600 

10. Losses due to major disasters: None.
11. Subsequent events: None.
12. Others 

(1) The followings are the summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization by function 
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020: 

              By function 

By item 

For the years ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

Operating 
cost

Operating 
expenses Total 

Operating 
cost

Operating 
expenses Total 

Employee benefits 

Salary - 83,707 83,707 - 93,968 93,968 

Labor and health insurance - 7,005 7,005 - 6,914 6,914 

Pension - 4,181 4,181 - 4,513 4,513 

Director's remuneration - 3,772 3,772 - 4,397 4,397 

Others - 3,298 3,298 - 3,222 3,222 

Depreciation - 7,233 7,233 - 7,127 7,127 

Amortization - 2,552 2,552 - 2,522 2,522 

Additional information on the number of employees and employee benefits of the Company for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Number of employees 80 76 
Number of directors who were not employees 7 7 
Average of employees benefits $ 1,345 $ 1,574 
Average of salary $ 1,147 $ 1,362 
Average adjustment of salary  ( 15.79% ) ( 8.53% )
Supervisor's remuneration $ - $ - 

The Company's salary and remuneration policy (including directors, managers and employees) were 
as follows: 

A. The Company has constructed a salary structure table of different job attributes and ranks based 
on market standards and salary conditions in the same industry, and reviewed it based on the 
industry salary adjustment reports from time to time. 

B. Annual salary adjustment 

When the Company adjusted the annual salary, the main factors considered by the Company 
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were as follows: 

(A)Price index rate: The price index rate announced by the government is considered when the 
annual salary is adjusted. 

(B) Industry salary adjustment: The industry salary adjustment of market surveys, which was also 
one of the main indicators to determine the average salary adjustment. 

(C) Company's operating conditions: This is an important indicator to determine the average 
salary adjustment. 

(D)The market salary level of important positions in the Company.

(2) Others: 

The Company donated $7,136 and $6,485 to related medical foundation and associations to support 
non-profit organizations developing drugs, promoting disease prevention and correct dosages for 
the year ended December 31,2021 and 2020, respectively. 

(3) The impact of the COVID-19: 

The Company was affected by the COVID-19 this year, and its testing business was not as expected. 
After evaluation, the Company recognized impairment losses on prepayment. Please refer to note 
6(9) 2. 

13. Other disclosures 
(1) Information on significant transactions 

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing 
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Company 

A. Loans to other parties: None. 

B. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: None. 

C. Securities held as of December 31, 2021 (excluding those investments in subsidiaries, associates 
and joint ventures): 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

Name of 
holder 

Category and name 
of security

 Relationship 
with 

company 
Account title 

Ending balance 

Note Shares/Units 
(thousands) 

Carrying 
value 

Percentage of 
ownership 

(%) 

Fair 
value 

TSH 
Biopharm 
Corporation 
Ltd. 

Lumosa 
Therapeutics Co., 
Ltd. 

- 

Current financial 
assets at fair value 
through other 
comprehensive income 

1,315 52,929  0.81 % 52,929 

″ 

Fubon Financial 
Holding Co., Ltd. 
Preferred stock B 

- 

Non-current financial 
assets at fair value 
through other 
comprehensive income 

2,500 157,750  0.38 % 157,750 

″ 
Union Bank of 
Taiwan Preferred 
stock A 

- ″ 

 400 21,200  0.20 % 21,200 

Fubon Financial 
Holding Co., Ltd. 
Preferred stock C 

- ″ 

58 3,483 0.02% 3,483 

″ CellMax Ltd.  - ″ 1,593 14,771  0.67 % 14,771 

″ 
Chuangyi Biotech 
Co., Ltd. 

- ″ 
1,320 14,563  3.89 % 14,563 

D. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with an accumulated amount exceeding the lower 
of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None. 

E. Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% 
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Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

of the capital stock: None. 

F. Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of 
the capital stock: None. 

G. Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 
million or 20% of the capital stock: None.  

H. Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% 
of the capital stock: None. 

I. Trading in derivative instruments: None. 

(2) Information on investees: None. 

(3) Information on investment in mainland China:

A. The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other 
information: None. 

B. Limitation on investment in Mainland China: None. 

C. Significant transactions: None. 

(4) Major shareholders: 

Shareholding 
Shareholder’s name Total shares owned Percentage of ownership (%) 

TTY Biopharm Company Limited 21,687,177 56.47% 

14. Segment information 
The Company has one reportable segment. The information of segment revenue, profit or loss and 
assets are in line with the parent company only financial statements. Please refer to the balance sheets 
and statements of comprehensive income. 

(1) Geographic information 

The Company's main revenue is from domestic. 

(2) Information on products 

The Company's operating revenue is mainly from pharmaceuticals, chemical drugs and 
biotechnology services. 

(3) Major customer 

Major customer information of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

were as follows

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020

A403001 $ 69,809 $ 72,800 

-173-



TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Item Description Amount 
Petty cash $  140 

Cash in banks Checking accounts  127 
Demand deposits  264,804 
Time deposits 100,000 
Foreign currency deposits  16,816 

 381,747 

$  381,887 
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Notes Receivable 

December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Client Name Description Amount Note 
A403001 $ 6,425 
HBAC002  2,872 
G330043D  2,869 
G360001 2,773 
G351001F 2,556 
HAAF001  2,201 
G351001G 2,001 
HBAJ001  1,790 
HAAG004  1,481 
HAAA001  1,480 
Other  58,902 
Less: Allowance for expected credit 
losses (  1,001 ) 

Net amount $  84,349
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Other Financial Assets - Current 

December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount Note 
Other financial assets - current Time deposits over 3 months $ 298,589
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income - Current 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Beginning Balance Additions Decrease Ending Balance 

Name of investee Shares 
Percentage of 

ownership (%) Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares 
Percentage of 

ownership (%) Amount Collateral 
Lumosa Therapeutics Co., 
Ltd. 1,765,000 1.50% $ 62,216 - $ - 450,000 $ 9,287 1,315,000 0.81% $ 52,929 

None 

$  62,216 $ - ( $ 9,287) $ 52,929 
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income –Noncurrent 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Beginning Balance Additions Decrease Ending Balance 

Name of investee Shares 
Percentage of 

ownership (%) Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Evaluation Shares 
Percentage of 

ownership (%) Amount Collateral 
Fubon Financial Holdings 

Co., Ltd. Preferred 
Stock B 2,500,000 0.38% $ 156,250 - $ - - $ - $ 1,500 2,500,000 0.38% $ 157,750 

None 

Fubon Financial Holdings 
Co., Ltd. Preferred 
Stock C - -% - 57,969 3,478 - - 5 57,969 0.020% 3,483 

Union Bank of Taiwan 
Preferred Stock A 400,000 0.20% 20,720 - - - - 480 400,000 0.20% 21,200 

Chuangyi Biotech Co., 
Ltd. 1,319,808 4.89% 14,563 - - - - - 1,319,808 4.89% 14,563 

CellMax Ltd.  

1,592,516 2.03% 49,271 1,592,516 14,771 1,592,516 49,271 - 1,592,516 2.03% 14,771 

$  240,804 $ 18,249 $ 49,271 $ 1,985 $ 240,804 

-178-



TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Others Payables 

December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Please refer to note 6(10) 
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Operating Revenue 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Item Quantity Amount Note 
Sales revenue: 

Lozenges 153,628,407 $ 378,232 
Capsules 1,987,253 8,186 
Injections 52,526 3,363 

Sales revenue subtotal 389,781 
Testing revenue 24,706 
Service revenue 2,103 

Total 416,590 
Less: Sales returns and allowances ( 3,107 ) 

Net revenue $ 413,483
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Operating Costs 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Item Amount 
Raw materials and supplies 
Add: Raw material, beginning of the year $  42,103 
Add: Purchase  39,135 
Less: Raw materials, end of the year (  45,165 ) 

Return on raw material (  13 ) 
Loss on physical inventory (  150 ) 
Transferred to expenses and losses (  557 ) 

Raw materials consumed  35,353 

Raw materials consumed  35,353 
Add: Contract manufacture   114,623 

Cost of goods sold  149,976 

Merchandise 
Add: Merchandise, beginning of the year $  38,325 

Purchased  10,478 
Less: Merchandise, end of the year (  35,567 ) 

Transferred to expenses and losses (  1,914 ) 
Reclassification (  314 ) 

Cost of Merchandise sold  160,984 
Add: Loss from inventory market decline  4,991 

Loss on physical inventory  150 

Operating costs $  166,125
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Statement of Operating Expenses 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

Item 
Selling 

expenses 
Administrative 

expenses 

Research and 
development 

expenses Total 
Salaries $ 54,365 $ 24,612 $ 8,502 $ 87,479 
Meal expenses 1,410 472 211 2,093 
Pension 2,899 890 392 4,181 
Insurance expense 4,683 1,632 691 7,006 
Royalty expense 172 - - 172 
Rent expense 113 132 300 545 
Traveling expenses 1,156 42 42 1,240 
Freight 305 975 27 1,307 
Advertising expense 5,233 92 - 5,325 
Post and 
telecommunications 

477 
475 50 1,002 

Entertainment expenses 9,028 334 - 9,362 
Donation 7,082 54 - 7,136 
Depreciation 861 5,289 1,083 7,233 
Amortization  2,478 74 - 2,552 
Commission expenses 8,086 - - 8,086 
Professional service fees 1,955 2,942 3,095 7,992 
Sample cost 1,958 - - 1,958 
Research expense - - 6,916 6,916 
Meeting expense 5,730 142 60 5,932 
Transportation expense 5,073 468 28 5,569 
Employee welfare - 942 - 942 
Others 7,151 8,546 2,118 17,815 

Total $ 120,215 $ 48,113 $ 23,515 $ 191,843 
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VII. Review And Analysis Of Financial Status And 
Financial Performance And Risk Issues 

1.  Financial Status: The main reasons for the major changes in assets, liabilities and 
equity in the last two years and their effects. If the impact is significant, the future 
response plan should be explained. 

Unit: Thousand NT$ 

1. Main reasons for major changes 

 (1) Intangible Assets were decreased due to annual amortization of computer software, 
patents and drug licenses.  

(2) Non-current assets were increased with the launch of new products and the start of the 
bidding process of various medical institutions, and deposits have been made one after 
another, so that the non-current assets were increased compared with the same period last 
year. 

2. The impact of major changes and future response plans: Nil 

Year (Item) 2020 2021
Difference

Amount %

Current assets 943,841 919,972 (23,869) -3%

Real estate, plant and 

equipment
25,255 22,792 (2,463) -10%

Intangible assets 6,180 3,628 (2,552) -41%

Other assets 249,587 216,334 (33,253) -13%

Non-current assets 4,517 6,700 2,183 48%

Total assets 1,229,380 1,169,426 (59,954) -5%

Current liabilities 98,618 85,800 (12,818) -13%

Total liabilities 103,036 85,800 (17,236) -17%

Share capital 383,981 383,981 0 0%

Capital reserve 458,977 459,361 384 0%

Retained earnings 266,626 224,075 (42,551) -16%

Other equity 16,760 16,209 (551) -3%

Equity 1,126,344 1,083,626 (42,718) -4%
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2. Financial Performance: the main reasons for the major changes in operating income, 
operating net profit and pre-tax net profit in the last two years, the expected sales 
volume and its basis, the possible impact on the Company's future financial 
business and the corresponding plan. 

3.  Cash Flow: An analysis of the changes in cash flow in the last year, an 
improvement plan for liquidity deficiency, and an analysis of cash flow in the 
coming year. 

1. Cash flow changes analysis in 2021: 
Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Item 2020 2021 

Increase 

(decrease)  

amount 

Percentage 

Change (%)  

Operating income 447,862 413,483 (34,379) -8% 

Operating gross profit 285,192 247,358 (37,834) -13% 

Operating profit and loss 74,304 55,615 (18,689) -25% 

Non-operating income and 

expenditure 
2,928 5,934 3,006 103% 

Net profit before tax 77,232 61,549 (15,683) -20% 

Net profit (loss)  for the 

period 
61,570 47,108 (14,462) -23% 

1. The main reasons for the major changes:

Profit and Loss: Being affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, the number of outpatient visits in various medical institutions 

decreased in 2021, and some health examination centers were closed, resulting in a decline in the sales of various products. The 

progress of overseas R&D projects was also affected by the epidemic, resulting in delayed implementation of R&D milestone 

funds, causing the labor income lower than expected; at the same time, due to changes of the combination in product sales and 

market activities, profit and loss were decreased compared with the same period last year. 

The part of non-operating income and expenses was obtained from the distribution license fees from other companies, so that the 

non-operating income was increased compared with the same period.  

2. Expected sales volume and its basis: The Company expected to sell 162,120,000 oral preparations and 88,000 injections in 2022.  

The Company's expected sales volume is mainly based on the IMS statistical report, and takes into account possible future market 

supply and demand changes, the speed of new product development and the national health insurance policy.

3. The possible impact on the Company’s future financial business and the corresponding plan: The Company’s current business 

operations are showing a stable profitability, and the export of self-made products and the overseas authorization of early research 

and development products are accelerated in the same period. In addition to the maintenance of the original research and 

development product international certification progress In addition, it will also introduce international early new drugs for joint 

research and development and value-added, using the "dual engine" strategy to develop, and commit to international drug 

development and international marketing to improve performance. In addition, the new business model of the biotechnology 

industry will be introduced to test items for personalized medicine, which will have a positive impact on the Company's future 

financial business.

Beginning cash 

balance 

Annual net cash 

flow from operating 
activities

Annual net cash 

flow from 

investment and 

financing 

activities 

Cash surplus 

(less)  amount 

Remedial 
measures 

or cash 
shortage 

Investment 

plan 

Wealth 
management 

plan 

396,701 68,707 (83,521) 381,887 — —
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(1) Net cash inflow from operating activities: $68,707,000, mainly from operating profit.  

(2) Net cash flow from investment and financing activities for the year: Net outflow of $83,521,000, 

mainly due to the inflow of $20,707,000 from the disposal of financial assets at fair value 

measurement through other comprehensive gains and losses; other financial assets were 

decreased (matured time deposits but not renewed in response to demand): outflow of 

$31,838,000, due to the collection of investment financial assets to receive dividends of 

$6,360,000 and the distribution of cash dividends of $69,116,000 in 2020, etc. 

2. Insufficient liquidity improvement plan in 2021: 

Our company has sufficient working capital and no shortage of liquidity.
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3. Analysis of cash liquidity in the coming year: 

(1) Analysis of Changes of Cash Flow in the Next Year (2022): 

A. Cash inflow from operating activities: $68,092,000 mainly due to the estimated revenue 

in 2022, so that the net cash inflow from operating activities is a positive number. 

B. Estimated annual cash inflow: $53,220,000, mainly due to cash dividends expected to be 

distributed in the current year, dividends received from financial assets, and adjustments 

to other financial assets.    
(2) Remedial measures and liquidity analysis of cash shortage: N/A 

4.  Major Capital Expenditures In 2021 And Its Impact On Financial Business: 
The Company has no major capital expenditure in 2021. 

5.   2021 Reinvestment Policy, The Main Reason For Its Profit Or Loss, 
Improvement Plan And Investment Plan For The Next Year: 

1. Reinvestment policy: 

The Company complies with the "Acquisition or Disposal of Assets Processing Standards for Public 

Offering Companies" set by the competent authority, and formulates the "Processing Procedures for 

Acquisition or Disposal of Assets" of the Company as the basis for the Company's reinvestment 

business. 

(1) Invest in new drug development companies to participate in the early research and development 

of biotech companies to share the results of global patents on new drugs. For example: Shun Tian 

Pharmaceutical Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Shunyao Company). 

(2) Activating funds to increase non-operating income. For example: Union Bank A special stock 

(stock code: 2838A), Fubon Financial Holding B special stock (stock code: 2881B), and Fubon 

Financial Holding C special stock (stock code: 2881C). 

(3) Obtain product agency rights and channels to make it a strategic investment with synergy 

effect. For example: CellMax Ltd., Guzip Biomarkers Corporation 

2. The main reasons for the profit or loss of reinvestment and the improvement plan: 

(1) New drug development company: 

The current research and development progress of Shun Yao, including 

A. LT3001 is an innovative small molecule drug for the treatment of acute ischemic 

Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Beginning cash 

balance 

Projected net cash 

flow from operating 

activities for the full 

year 

Estimated annual 

net cash flow 

from investment 

and financing 

activities 

Projected cash 

balance (less)  

Remedial measures for expected 
cash shortage

Investment 

plan 

Financial 

Management 

Planning 

381,887 68,092  (53,220) 396,759 — —
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stroke:  

(a) In 2021, a single-dose clinical phase 2a trial completed in Taiwan and the United 

States showed that patients with ischemic stroke within 24 hours after stroke received 

treatment of T3001 without an increased risk of intracerebral hemorrhage, and 

potentials of improvement on neurobehavior and function were observed.. Phase II 

clinical trials of multi-dose administration and device thrombectomy are in progress.  

In January 2022, USFDA notice was received, saying that LT3001 has passed the 

USFDA's 60-day examination and obtained a "Fast Track Designation” of new drugs. 

According to this designation, LT3001 can obtain a variety of assistance from the 

USFDA, which is conducive to accelerating the process of applying for US drug 

certification in the future.  

(b) In 2022, based on the test plan reviewed by USFDA, a Phase II clinical trial 

application was submitted to the Ministry of Health and Welfare of Taiwan, and the 

case was accepted by a multinational multi-center. It was expected to complete the 

Phase II clinical multi-dose multi-center trial of LT3001 within 2 years, and 200 

patients with acute ischemic stroke within 24 hours after the onset of stroke symptoms 

were accepted, but the actual schedule would be adjusted according to the progress of 

the implementation. 

B. LT1001 new long-acting pain reliever: LT1001 is a long-acting dosage form of the 

precursor drug of the analgesic nalbuphine, which has been on the market for many 

years and it (Product Name in Taiwan:  NALDEBAIN®) has obtained marketing 

approvals in international markets including Singapore and Thailand. 

(a)   NALDEBAIN® is currently the only analgesic injection on the market that has an 

analgesic effect up to seven days.  Currently, most of the short-acting analgesic drugs 

on the market include the effect of relieving post-operative pains. According to the 

“Total Morphine Milligram Equivalent Sold” and “Price per Morphine Milligram 

Equivalent” estimated and published by the USFDA's white paper “FDA  Analysis of 

Long-Term Trends in Opioid Analgesic Products: Quantity, Sales, and Price Trends”,  

have a sales volume of opioids of about 7.1 billion US dollars in the United States in 

2015. However, in response to the higher USFDA regulations requirements and the 

corresponding increase in investment and development costs, Lumosa Therapeutics 

has decided to terminate the US "relative bioavailability pharmacokinetics trial" of the 

new drug NALDEBAIN® long-acting analgesic injection.   At the same time, we find 

suitable local partners to continue the development of this product, so as to complete 

all the human clinical trials required by the FDA before marketing. 

(c)  In December 2019, the development and commercialization rights of LT1001 in 

China were licensed to Jiangxi Jimincare Co., Ltd. who was responsible for the necessary 

clinical trials before launching products in China. In February 2022, the Company 
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received the results of the Phase III clinical trial of LT1001 from Jiangxi Jimincare.   In 

view of the fact that the main evaluation indicators of the trial did not reach a statistically 

significant difference, Jiangxi Jimincare will analyze the reasons for the failure to meet 

the standards, and aim to continue the clinical development in China by redesigning the 

clinical trial. 

As of December 31, 2021, there were still 1,315 shares held, with a shareholding 

percentage of 0.81%.

(2)Activating funds to increase non-operating income: the Board of Directors approved and 

authorized to invest within the quota, and the above special stocks were selected on the basis of 

better than fixed deposits and taking into account the security and profitability, mainly for the 

purpose of participating in the dividend distribution. 

3. Investment plan for the next year: Mainland China channel or drug development company is under      

negotiation.
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Item 2021 (Thousand NT$, %)  

Net interest income and expenditure 2,019 

Net gain or loss on exchange (1,255) 

Net interest income and expenditure as 

percentage of net pre-tax profit 
3.28% 

Ratio of net interest income and 

expenditure to net revenue 
0.49% 

Net gain or loss on exchange as a 

percentage of net pre-tax profit 
-2.04% 

Net gain or loss on exchange as a 

percentage of net revenue 
-0.30% 

6. Risks Analyzed And Evaluated For The Following Matters In The Most Recent 
Year And As Of The Publication Date Of The Annual Report 
(1) The impact of interest rate, exchange rate changes, and inflation on the Company's profits and 

losses and future countermeasures: 

(1)  Impact on company profit and loss 

(2) The impact of interest rate, exchange rate changes, and inflation on the Company's profit 

and loss 

A. Interest rate: 

In 2021 and 2020, the Company’s interest incomes/expenses were 

$2,019,000 and $2,211,000 respectively. Overall, changes in interest rates 

have no significant impact on the Company's profit and loss. However, the 

Company is still actively establishing and maintaining good relationships 

with banks to understand interest rate trends in order to strive for the most 

favorable deposit rates. 

B. Exchange rate: Since most of the Company's purchases of raw materials, 

commodities and equipment are paid in New Taiwan dollars, exchange rate 

changes have no significant impact on the Company's profit and loss. 

However, the Company will still pay attention to the trend of exchange rate 

changes from time to time to respond to potential exchange risks. 

C. Inflation: Inflation has no significant impact on the Company's profit and loss. 

(2)  Policies for engaging in high-risk, high-leverage investments, fund loans to others, 

endorsements and derivatives transactions, main reasons for profit or loss, and future 

countermeasures: 

(1) Based on the conservative principle, it has not engaged in high-risk or high-leverage 

investments. In the future, all investments of the Company will be carefully evaluated and 

implemented in accordance with company regulations. 

(2) In the most recent year and as of the date of publication of the annual report, the Company 

did not lend funds to others and did not endorse or guarantee for others. 
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(3) Derivative commodity trading policies, main reasons for profit or loss: 

The Company has not engaged in the trading of derivative financial products in the most 

recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report. 
(4) Future countermeasures: 

In the future, if the Company needs financing, endorsement or guaranty for others, or 

engaging in derivative financial product transactions due to business needs, it will still handle 

it in accordance with the relevant operating procedures established by the Company, and 

make timely and accurate announcements of each according to laws and regulations. 

(3) Future R&D plans and estimated R&D expenses: 

The Company’s future research and development program will focus on the development of new 

drugs, including cardiovascular, gastrointestinal and autoimmune diseases and other fields, 

actively involve in disease clinical research and drug treatment, with a view to become a 

provider of medicines for special chronic disease, and the drugs of high economic efficiency, and 

continue to develop international partners and undertakings. The annual research and 

development expenditure is expected to exceed $60,000 thousand in the next two years. 
• R&D expenditure and its percentage of turnover 

(4) . Impact of significant policy and legal changes at home and abroad on the Company’s financial 

operations and the corresponding measures: 

(1) In Taiwan, the total payment system has been implemented for many times to adjust drug 

prices. Through the total payment system, the drug prices and drug quantity of domestic drug 

factories are controlled, affecting the selling prices and sales of some drugs, resulting in the 

reduction of the drug factories’ revenue and profits. 

(2) Countermeasures 

In addition to establishing a complete sales network throughout the province, the Company 

can provide immediate services to medical institutions to increase the breadth of sales, and 

increase sales channels and customers for drugs with a certain market scale and value, and 

continue to increase the confidence of medical institutions and physicians in prescription 

drugs. In addition, strengthen the research of new drugs and the introduction of new products, 

and market competitive new products to avoid the situation that the Company's profitability 

is reduced due to the implementation of drug price adjustments. On the other hand, through 

the introduction of genetic testing-related products, we will step into the precision medical 

market and gradually increase the sales amount to reduce the financial impact from health 

insurance price cuts. 

(5) The impact of technological changes (including information security risks)  and industrial 

changes on the Company5 s financial business and corresponding measures: 

The success is low due to long drug development time and high R&D expenditure. Therefore, in 

the short term, technological changes and industrial changes will not have an immediate and 

significant impact on the Company's financial business, but the Company is still actively learning 

new knowledge of technology and investing in the research and development of innovative drugs 

to respond to technological changes and industrial changes.  In response to information security 

risks, the Company has taken countermeasures including implementing information security 

Unit: Thousand NT$ 

Year R&D expense Percentage of sales 

2020 28,681 6.40% 

2021 23,515 5.69% 

As of March 31,2022 N/A N/A 
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systems and system authority management, maintaining remote backup systems, conducting 

educational promotion and network monitoring, and regularly provide education and training to 

project or R&D-related information handlers.  

(6) The impact of corporate image change on corporate crisis management and

countermeasures: 

The Company is committed to the research and development and sales of drugs, and has been 

recognized by medical institutions and manufacturers and professionals in this field; and is 

committed to improving the Company's internal system and capital structure, which has a 

positive impact on the Company's reputation or corporate debt. 

(7) Expected benefits, possible risks and countermeasures of mergers and acquisitions: 
The Company currently has no plans for mergers and acquisitions. 

(8) The expected benefits, possible risks and countermeasures of the expansion of the plant: 

The Company has no plans to expand the plant in the most recent year and as of the publication 

date of the annual report in 2021, so it is inapplicable. 

(9) Risks of overconcentration in purchase or sales and countermeasures: 

(1)  Risk of overconcentration in purchases: the Company’s main purchasers are TTY Biopharm  

and Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd. 

TTY is currently the parent company that holds 56.48% of the Company. The Company was 

split from TTY on September 1, 2010, and 100% of the business of its medical and 

pharmaceutical business group is taken over. In the initial stage of the division, because the 

Company has not built its own pharmaceutical factory, except for some drugs purchased from 

foreign original factories, the manufacturing of related drugs must still assign the production 

of pharmaceutical factories in Taiwan that have passed the PIC/S certification. After its 

manufacturing is completed, it can be purchased as a commodity. This is the result of the 

relevant regulations of the domestic drug certification and is also a characteristic of the 

pharmaceutical industry. Since 2020, in order to effectively control the cost, product quality 

and production timeliness of each product, the production mode of each product has been 

changed from commodity purchase to customer supply mode. The Company is responsible 

for purchasing API and then submitting it to each commissioned factory for processing and 

production. The main items commissioned such as AMTREL, MOPRIDE, Rhynorm, etc. are 

commissioned to the Liudu factory of the parent company Taiwan Dong Yang for production, 

which has passed the PIC/S certification. Consequently, the proportion of purchases from 

TTY reached 43.61% (2021). In addition, the Company also commissioned Genovate 

Biotechnology Co., Ltd. to produce lipid-lowering drug film-coated tablets (LINICOR)  and 

the proportion of purchases in 2021 rose to 17.53% as sales 

increased year after year. 

At present, in addition to commissioning TTY and Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd. to 

produce products, the Company has also assigned some products to be produced by domestic 

PIC/S GMP-compliant pharmaceutical factories. We hope to maintain the flexibility of supply 

and ensure that the supply of goods is not interrupted and we can maintain the advantage of 

bargaining. In addition, the Company has actively planned to invest in product research and 

development and find strategic partners to respond to the future market demand for new 
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products. Therefore, it is expected that the proportion of future purchases from the parent 

company will gradually decrease, and the purchase suppliers will be gradually reduced. The 

number of merchants will also be gradually increased to reduce the overconcentration risk of 

purchases. 

(2)  Risk of overconcentration in sales: The Company's main customers are medical centers, 

local hospitals and regional hospitals, and the source of customers is scattered. However, as 

the Company’s cardiovascular pharmacological lipid film-coated tablets (Linicor), 

Rhynorm film-coated tablets (Rhynorm), and various testing products were launched on the 

market, the sales volume gradually increased, which caused the Company’s distributor, Top 

Pharma & Biotech achieved a proportion of sales up to 16.97% in 2021.  

(10) The impact, risks and countermeasures of the Company's massive transfer or replacement 

of shares by directors, supervisors, or major shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares: 

In 2021 and as of the publication date of the annual report, the directors of the Company or major 

shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares are not subject to substantial transfer or 

replacement of equity. 
(11) The impact, risks and countermeasures of the change of operating rights on the Company: 

Nil 

(12) For litigation or non-litigation events, the Company and its directors, supervisors, general manager, 
substantive responsible persons, major shareholders with more than 10% shareholding, and 
affiliated companies shall be determined by judgment or are still in the line of major litigation, 
non-litigation or administrative disputes, the results of which may have a significant impact on 
shareholder rights or securities prices, should disclose the facts in dispute, the amount of the subject 
matter, the commencement date of the litigation, the main parties involved in the litigation, and the 
handling conditions as of the publication date of the annual report. 

(1)  With regard to the case of TTY Biopharm’s former Chairman Lin Rong-jin 

involving aggravated breach of trust under the Securities and Exchange Act, the 

Taipei District Prosecutor's Office had filed, in June 2015, an indictment against 

Chairman Lin Rong-jin for violating the Securities and Exchange Act.  On 

September 1, 2017, the former Chairman Lin Rong-jin was acquitted by the 

Taiwan Taipei District Court for violating the Securities Exchange Act, and was 

subsequently acquitted by the Taiwan High Court on May 27, 2020, and the case 

was appealed to the Supreme Court of the third instance, which was sent back to 

Taiwan High Court by the Supreme Court on December  23, 2021 for trial.  In 

addition, the Taipei District Prosecutor's Office applied to the Taiwan High 

Court for a combined trial with the aforementioned second-instance trials on 

April 23, 2018 for the case that the "Risperidone Drug Development 

Agreement" between Center Laboratories Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 

"Central Lab.")  and TTY Biopharm signed by the former Chairman also 

violated the Securities and Exchange Act, and the application for the combined 

trial was rejected by Taiwan  High Court on May 27, 2020.  The Taipei District 

Prosecutor's Office still considered the case under trial at the third instance to be 

the same case, and applied to Supreme Court on September 29, 2020 for a 

combined trial.   On September 6, 2017, the criminal incidental civil litigation 
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was transferred to Taiwan Taipei District Court for trial.   On February 13, 2018, 

TTY Biopharm filed a criminal incidental civil claim for compensation in the 

aforementioned criminal case of the second-instance trial of the Taiwan High 

Court, and subsequently filed a joint trial with the Taipei District Prosecutor's 

Office for the drug "Risperidone", on June 29, 2018 In the aforementioned 

second-instance criminal incidental civil case, the former Chairman Lin 

Rong-jin was asked for additional compensation.

(2)  On May 31, 2016, TTY Biopharm filed a complaint with Inopha AG in the 

District Court, Zug of Switzerland, to confirm the invalidity of thirteen licensing 

agreements between the two parties, and requested Inopha AG of Switzerland to 

return the interest of the infringement.  Currently, the case is accepted by the 

court and in the preparatory process.   

(3)  With regard to the case that Janssen Pharmaceutica NV, at the request of 

TTY Biopharm, filed a tripartite arbitration case with Swiss Inopha AG and 

TTY Biopharm at the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO)  

Arbitration and Mediation Center on May 30, 2016 to confirm the ownership of 

the contract amount. Currently, WIPO Arbitration and Mediation Center has 

suspended the review process. As of December 31, 2021, Janssen Pharmaceutica 

NV has deposited the contract amount of EUR 21,538,000 in a trust account. 

(4)  With regard to the "Risperidone Drug Development Agreement" between 

Central Lab. and TTY Biopharm, Central Lab. filed a civil litigation against 

TTY Biopharm in the Taipei District Court on July 1, 2016 to confirm the 

contractual relationship.  The civil litigation was filed on March 1, 2018, and the 

Taipei District Court finished a judgment of first instance that the legal 

relationship exists.  On March 11, 2020, the Taiwan High Court rejected TTY 

Biopharm's appeal, and TTY Biopharm filed an appeal to the Supreme Court on 

April 10, 2020, following the Supreme Court on May 2021. The original 

judgment was abandoned and is now belonged to the Civil Division of Taiwan 

High Court. 

 TTY Biopharm filed a civil damage action against the original substantial 

beneficiary of the Swiss company Inopha AG Denis Opitz to the Labor Court, 

Dresden of Germany on February 28, 2020, and the case is currently accepted by 

the court and ready for proceedings.  

  (5)  On May 14, 2021, TTY Biopharm received a disciplinary citation from the           

Fair Trade Commission. The Fair Trade Commission recognized that TTY 

Biopharm and Lotus Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. had signed an exclusive agency    

distribution agreement of "Furil Capsules" on February 4, 2021 and constituted a 

concerted action, and a fine of $220,000,000 shall be imposed, which shall be 
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accounted for under other benefits and losses. TTY Biopharm had filed a 

petition to the Taipei High Administrative Court on July 12, 2021 to file an 

administrative lawsuit to revoke the disciplinary citation. At present, the case 

has been accepted by the court

(13 )  Other important risks and countermeasures: On October 30, 2020, the Board of Directors passed the 

"Risk Management Policy and Procedure" and established a risk management organization to define 

various risks that may be encountered in operational activities and formulate countermeasures to establish 

the risk identification, measurement, monitoring, and response and report in order to avoid or reduce risks 

to an acceptable range and ensure the sustainable development of the Company.  Please refer to the 

"Corporate Governance/ Corporate Governance Operation" section of the company's website for  the 

2021 Risk Identification and Management of  the Company. 

7. Other Important Matters: Nil 
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VIII. Special Notes 
1. Related Information Of Affiliated Enterprises: 

Please refer to pages 196-200 or details. 

2. In the latest year and up to the date of publication of the annual report, it is 
necessary to disclose the date and amount adopted by the shareholders meeting or 
the Board of Directors, on handling of the securities of private placement, the basis 
and rationality of the price fixing, the method chosen by the specific person, the 
necessary reasons for handling the private placement, the target of the private 
placement, the qualification conditions, the subscription amount, the relationship 
with the Company, the operation of the participating company, the actual 
subscription (or conversion)  price, the difference between the actual subscription (or 
conversion)  price and the reference price, the impact of handling the private 
placement on the shareholders equities, and the completion of the plan for the use of 
funds from the time when the funds or the prices have been fully received, private 
security fund utilization, project implementation progress and performance of the 
project: Nil

3. The holding or disposition of the shares of the Company in the latest year and up to 
the date of publication of the annual report: Nil

4. Other Necessary Supplementary Explanations: Nil

5. In the most recent year and up to the publication date of the annual report, any 
matters that have a significant impact on shareholders' equity or securities prices as 
specified in provision 2 of paragraph 3 of Article 36 of this law shall also be stated 
item by item: Nil
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Accountants Review Opinion of the Relationship Report

Recipient: TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

2021 Annual Relationship Report of TSH Biopharm has been reviewed by the accountant in accordance 

with the former Ministry of Finance Securities and Futures Management Committee letter TZZ(6)  No. 

044448 dated November 30, 1999. This review is to determine whether TSH Biopharm's 2021 relationship 

report was prepared in accordance with the "Compilation Standards for Affiliated Enterprises Consolidated 

Business Report, Affiliated Enterprises Consolidated Financial Statements and Relationship Report", and the 

disclosed information is consistent with this accountant. A review opinion is hereby issued for any significant 

discrepancies in the relevant information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for the same period 

checked on March 4, 2022. 

According to the audit results of this accountant, it was not found that the preparation of the 

above-mentioned relationship report violated the provisions of the "Compilation Standards for Affiliated 

Enterprises Consolidated Business Report, Affiliated Enterprises Consolidated Financial Statements and 

Relationship Report", and there is no material discrepancy with the relevant information disclosed in the notes 

to the financial statements for the same period. 

The engagement partners are Shin Chin Chih and Kuo Yang Tseng.

KPMG 

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)  

March 4, 2022
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Declaration 

We hereby declare the Company’s 2021 Relationship Report was 

prepared in accordance with the "Compilation Standards for Affiliated 

Business Consolidated Business Report, Affiliated Business Consolidated 

Financial Statements and Relationship Report", and there is no material 

discrepancy between the information disclosed and the relevant information 

disclosed in the notes to the financial report of the preceding period. 

Company name: TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 
Responsible person: Chuan Lin 

March 4, 2022
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TSH Biopharm Corporation Ltd. 

Chairman Chuan Lin 
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